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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Lid.
Balance sheet as at 31st Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NPR NIPR
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Assets
1) Non - Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 1A 3,522,582,246 3,682,755,018
(b) Capital Work In Progress 1B |, 1,035,267,382 272,349,277
(c) Right of Use Assets 1C 141,306,220 104,794,985
(d) Deferred Tax Assets 2
(e) Other Non - Current Assets 3 137,262,401 301,754,665
Total Non - Curren: Assets 4,836,418,249 4,361,653,935
2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 4 1,018,313,641 1,384,523,759
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 5 399,998,911 378,334,017
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 25,012,239 27,948,876
(iii) Bank Balances Other Than (ii) above 7 2,376,283,604 1,859,619,921
(iv) Others 8 39,940,936 166,883,729
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 - -
(d) Other Current Assets 10 357,349,081 239,102,346
Total Current Assets 4,216,898,412 4,056,412,648
Total Assets +  9,053,316,661 8,418,066,583
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 2,001,500,000 1,080,000,000
(b) Other Equity 12
(i) Reserve and Surplus 1,754,001,200 1,204,348,348
. (if) E.quity Contribution on Compounded 1,982,277 R
Financial Instrument
Total Equity 3,757,483 477 2,284,348,348
Liabilities
1) Non - Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities .
(i) Borrowings 13A 7 0
(ii) Lease Liabilities 13A 156,442,159 110,111,082
(b) Provisions 14 23,472,373 22,776,260
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities 2 181,085,996 160,804,554
(d) Other Non - Current Liabilities 15 - -
Total Non - Current Liabilties 361,000,528 293,691,896
2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 692,412,358 541,848,193
(ii) Trade Payables 17 496,236,358 1,273,748,073
(iii) Lease Liabilities 13B 1,428,937 6,024,933
(iv) Other financial Liabilities 18 962,985,507 1,360,639,989
(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 2,752,169,544 2,650,975,336
(c) Provisions 14 6,227,172 6,582,633
(d) Current Tax Liability (Net) 20 23,372,780 207,182
Total Current Liabiltics 4,934,832,656 £,840,026,339
Total Liabilities 5,295,833,184 6,133,718,235
Total Equity & Liabilities 9,053,316,661 8,418,066,583

In Terms of Our Report of Even Date Annexed

SUBHASH & CO. _

CHARTERED ACCOUN'!'_W%;";};.\
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CA.5.K. Jhunjhuhywala
Partner NZecourt
Place: Kathmandu

Dated: January 23, 2024
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.
Profit & Loss For The Period Ended 31st Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS

Post Ind AS
Note NPR NPR
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Income
I  Revenue From Operations 21 10,620,673,156 10,567,777 048
II Cther Income 22 253,777,611 202,902,435
111 ) Total Income (I + II) 10,874,450,766 10,770,679,484
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 23 3,212,235,976 3,448,797,206
(b) Excise Duty 2,004,830,812 2,461,233,385
(c) Purchase of Stock in Trade 24 1,300,639 314,414
d) Changes in inventories of finished goods, ;
itc')ck-invfra de & WIP & 25 97,966,069 (195,803,194)
(e) Employee Benefits Expense 26 686,320,795 573,627,038
(f) Finance Costs 27 124,645,510 226,770,014
(g) Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 28 501,287,096 486,601,479
(h) Other Expenses 29 1,920,398,737 2,742,415,273
Total Expenses (IV) 9,448,985,635 9,743,955,615
V  Profit/(loss) Before Prior Period Items (III-IV) 1,425,465,132 1,026,723,869
VI Prior Period Items 30 - -
VII Profit/(loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 1,425,465,132 1,026,723,869
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depn &
Ammﬁgz ation (EBITDA) P 1,797,620,127 1,537,192,927
VIII Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 208,083,995 173,589,127
(2) Adjustment of Tax Related to Earlier Periods 73,279,344 352,712,006
(3) Deferred Tax 20,281,442 28,528,954
Total Tax Expenses 301,644,781 554,830,087
IX Profit (Loss) For the Year (VII-VIII) 1,123,820,351 471,893,782
X OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 31
A Items That Will Not to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
(i) Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans =
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
toP&L
B  Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax -
X1 Total Comprehensive Income For The Year, 1123,820,351 471,893,782

Net of Tax (IX+X)

- CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In Terms of Our Report of Even Date Annexed
SUBHASH & CO. .
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
For The Year Ended 31st Dec, 2023

VBL Nepal in NPR
1C Right of Use Assets

, Particulars Land . Total
Leasehold

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1st January, 2022 105,133,314 105,133,314

Additions for the year 26,203,859 26,203,859

Disposals for the year -

Balance as at 31st December, 2022 131,337,173 131,337,173

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st January, 2022 16,821,330 16,821,330

Depreciation charge for the year 9,720,858 9,720,858

Reversal on disposals for the year -

Balqnce as at 31st December, 2022 26,542,188 26,5}42,188

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 104,794,985 104,794,985

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1st January, 2023 131,337,173 131,337,173
Additions for the year 46,493,198 46,493,198
Disposals for the year -
Balance as at 31st Dec, 2023 177,830,371 177,830,371
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st January, 2023 26,542,188 26,542,188
* Depreciation charge for the year 9,981,963 + 9,981,963
Reversal on disposals for the year - -
Balance as at 31st Dec, 2023 36,524,151 36,524,151
Carrying amount as at 31st Dec, 2023 141,306,220 141,306,220




Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting
Other  Explanatory
Information For The Year Ended 31st
Dec, 2023

Policies and

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NPR NPR
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
1A) Property, Plant & Equipment R.N.1A 3,522,582,246 b 3,682,755,018
1B) Capital Work in Progress R.N. 1B 1,035,267,382 272,349,277
1C) Right of Use Assets R.N.1C 141,306,220 104,794,985
2. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability)
Net
Unabsorbed Depn & Carry Forward
Losses - Deffered Tax (190,839,747) (170,163,053)
" Provision For Doubtful Debts -
Deffered Tax 5,059,276 5,059,276
Provision For Retirement Benefits -
Deffered Tax 4,694,475 4,305,223
(181,085,996) (160,804,554)
3. Other Non - Current Assets
Capital advances 133,826,426 297,669,071
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances - =
133,826,426 297,669,071
Advances other than capital advances
(a) Security Deposits 3,435,975 4,085,584
(b) Advances to Related Parties
(c ) Other Advances - -
' 137,262,401 301,754,655
4. Inventories
(a) Raw material 636,575,234 891,636,726
(b) Raw Material in transit 7,850,838 2,643,190
(c) Work-in-progress 815,111 4,687,989
(d) Intermediate g'00d5 32,047,922 -
(e) Finished goods 180,630,599 306,771,713
(f) Stores and spares 160,393,936 178,784,141 -
1,018,313,641 1,384,523,759

Fos



Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting
Other

information For The Year Ended 31st

Policies and Explanatory

Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS

Post Ind AS

Note NPR
31 December 2023

NPR
31 December 2022

5. Trade receivables
Trade Receivable, Considerad Good -

15,263,677 5,710,912
Unsecured
Trade Receivable, Considered Good - 384 735,234 372,623,104
Secured
Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired 27,078,048 27,078,048
427,076,958 405,412,064
(-) Allowances For Expected Credit (27,078,048) (27,078,048)
Losses ' !
399,998,911 378,334,017
6. Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 25,012,239 26,935,089
Cash on hand - 1,013,787
25,012,239 27,948,876
7. Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity >3 i
283,604
months but < 12 months * S, RSO pIEL
2,376,283,604 1,859,619,921
8. Other Current Financial Assets
Interest accrued on:
Term deposits 35,629,321 26,138,868
Others - 1,041,078
Employees™** - 4,048,169
Claims Receivable 4,311,615 135,655,615
39,940,936 166,883,729

9, Current Tax Assets

Advance Tax (Net of Provisions) '

L

by



Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Other Explanatory
Information For The Year Ended 31st
Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NPR NPR
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
10. Other Current Assets
(Unsecured Considered Good, Unless
Otherwise Stated)
Other Ad_vances:
Contractors & Suppliers*** 264,707,657 61,990,864
Prepaid Expenses 14,786,544 640,000
Balance. With Statutory/Government ) 32,848,617
Authorities
Others 77,854,880 143,622,865
357,349,081 239,102,346
11. Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
3,380,451 Equity Shares of '1000/- Each 3,380,451,000 3,380,451,000
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid - Up
1,442,370 Ordinary Shares of '1000/-
Each 2,001,500,000 1,080,000,000 .
559,130 Bonus Shares of '1000/- Each
2,001,500,000 1,080,000,000
12. Other Equity
Securities Premium Reserve
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 53,600,356 53,600,356
Add: Premium collected during the 629,629,000 i
Year
Less: Amount Utilised for Share Issue
Expenses
Balance at the End of the Year 683,229,356 53,600,356
Capital Reserve 88,071,842 88,071,842
Promotor Contribution In Equity IAS 1,982,277 -
B S e
~ K :'
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Other Explanatory
Information For The Year Ended 31st

Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS

Post Ind AS

31 December 2023

NPR
31 December 2022

Surplus in thz Statement of Profit ana

Loss

Balance At Beginning of the Year
Less: Dividend Paid

Less: Taxes on Dividend Paid
Less: Bonus shares issued

Add: Profit For the Year

Balance at the End of the Year

13A. Non - Current Financial
Liabilities

Loan From Others
Lease Liabilities

13B. Current Financial Liabilities

Lease Liabilities

14. Provisions

Non - Current

Gratuity

Compensated Absences

Current
Gratuity
Compensated Absences

1,062,676,151 1,454,782,369
(620,033,175) (820,800,000)
(32,633,325) (43,200,000)
(551,130,000) -
1,123,820,351 471,893,782
982,700,002 1,062,676,151
1,755,983,477 1,204,348,348
- 0
156,442,159 110,111,082
156,442,159 110,111,082
1,428,937 6,024,933
1,428,937 6,024,933
- 30,149
23,472,373 22,746,111
23,472,373 22,776,260
6,227,172 6,582,633
6,227,172 6,582,633




Varun Beverages (Nepal} Pvt. Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting
Other  Explanatory
Informadon For The Year Ended 31st
Dec, 2023

Policies  and

Post Ind AS

Post Ind AS

Note

31 December 2023

NPR
31 December 2022

15. Other Non - Current Liabilties

Provision for Contingent Liability (Net of tax paid under protest)

16. Current borrowings

Loans repayable on demand from:
A Body Corporate (unsecured)*
Banks - Working Capital Facilities

692,412,358 541,848,193
(Secured)
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts - -
692,412,358 541,848,193
17. Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than 496,236,358 1,273,748,073
micro enterprises & small enterprises
496,236,358 1,273,748,073
18. Other Financial Liabilities
Interest.Accrued But Not Due on 6,843,050 9,240,058
Borrowings
Payable for Capital Expenditure 17,011,109 71,655,868
Employee Related Payables 66,529,883 60,112,462
Unpaid Dividend 620,033,175 820,800,000
Security Deposits 252,568,290 398,831,601
962,985,507 1,360,639,989
19. Other Current Liabilities )
Advances From Customers 7,375,639 11,473,435
Statutory Dues Paya'ble 2,744,793,905 2,639,501,901
2,752,169,544 2,650,975,336




Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and  Other Explanatory
Information For The Year Foded 31st
Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS

Post Ind AS

NPR
31 December 2023

Note

NPR
31 December 2022

20. Current Tax Liabilities (Ilet)

Provision For Income Tax (Net of Taxes
Paid)

21. Revenue From Operations
Revenue From Operations (Gross)
Sale of Products

Other Operating Revenue

22. Other Income

Interest On:

- Bank Deposits

- Others

Excess Provisions Written Back
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Miscellaneous

23, Cost of Materials Consumed

Raw Material & Packing Material
Consumed

Inventories at beginning of the year
Purchases during the year (net)

Sold during the year

Inventories at end of the year

24, Purchases of Traded Goods
Cthers

23,372,780 207,182
23,372,780 207,182
10,597,778,316 10,553,591,561
22,894,839 14,185,487
10,620,673,156 10,567,777,048
171,185,512 176,563,800
21,262,033 13,967,373
1,007,959 2,808,946
18,386,784 6,124,896
41,935,323 3,437,421
253,777,611 202,902,435
894,279,916 381,823,069
2,964,609,424 3,962,595,554
3,858,889,340 4,344,418,623
2,227,291 1,341,501
644,426,073 894,279,916
3,212,235,976 3,448,797,206
1,300,639 314,474
1,300,639 314,414




Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and  Other Explanatory
Information For The Year Ended 31st

Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS

Post Ind AS

Note

NPR

31 December 2023

NPR

31 December 2022

25. Changes in Inventories of Finished
Goods

As At the Beginning of The Year

Finished Goods 306,771,713 110,159,642
Intermediate Goods - -
Work In Progress 4,687,989 5,496,865
311,459,701 115,656,507
As At the Closing of The Year
Finished Goods 180,630,599 306,771,713
Intermediate Goods 32,047,922 -
Work In Progress 815,111 4,687,989
213,493,632 311,459,701
97,966,069 (195,803,194)
Excise Paid 2,904,830,812 2,461,233,385
2,904,830,812 2,461,233,385
26. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries & Wages 614,596,992 514,707,233
Contribution to Provident & Other 32,415,901 28,892,639
Funds
Share Based Payments 1,982,277 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 37,325,625 30,027,166
686,320,795 573,627,038
27. Finance Costs
Interest On:
Working Capital Facilities 69,880,240 24,306,287
Financial Liabilities 12,041,883 10.075,568
Others 11,287,910 161,690,954
Other Borrowing Costs:
Processing Fees 2,901,122 2,698,300
Bank Guarantee Fees to Others 28,534,355 27,998,905
124,645,510 226,770,014
28. Depreciation & Amoriisaﬁon s '.rg
il -
Expense : _*.\:‘;/ \ '
Depreciation on Tangible Assets Qf \/ 491,305,133 476,880,621
Depreciation on Right of Use PO o\ 9,981,963

K/'/

9,720,858



Varun Beverages (Nepal) P'vt. Ltd.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Other Explanatory
Information For The Year Ended 31st

Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS
Note NPR NPR
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
501,287,096 . 486,601,479
29. Other Expenses
Power and fuel 212,803,920 233,355,046
Repair to Plant & Equipment 127,915,467 112,362,365
Repair to Buildings 21,622,121 24,985,668
Repair to Others 31,548,556 28,697,086
Consumption of Stores & Spares 78,478,634 70,074,703
Rent 13,285,894 11,811,716
Rates and Taxes 11,018,355 79,762,413
Insurance 10,609,038 17,440,045
Printing and stationery 3,753,634 4,197,254
Communication 3,969,895 3,423,988
Travelling and Conveyance 44,972,265 25,534,885
Payment to the Auditors As
Audit & Reviews 2,050,000 2,975,000
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 16,526,151 15,501,427
Security and service charges 27,840,983 23,528,953
Professional charges and consultancy 25,177,616 16,509,432
Bank charges 7,536,617 8,993,802
Advertisement and sales promotion 200,363,569 250,838,350
Meeting and conference 481,827 81,389
Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net) 576,940,270 601,814,963
Del‘lvery vehicle running and 66,181,505 63,534,397
maintenance
Distribution expenses 118,016,670 97,409,690
Loading and unloading charges 32,597,242 32,334,086
Donations 376,300 281,100
Allowance for Doubtful Debts - 1,176,117
General office and other miscellaneous 34,925,324 297,557,532
expenses 3
Management Fee 251,406,883 718,233,865
1,920,398,737 2,742 415,273
30. Prior Period Items
Depreciation of Leasehold Land for
Earlier Years e
A R g > -
P O
T/
31. Other Comprehensive Income of P \, 2
b, %y .'Q:J. f-'. L/




Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd.
Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Other Explanatory
Information For The Year Ended 31st
Dec, 2023

Post Ind AS

Post Ind AS

Note NPR
31 December 2023

NPR
31 December 2022

Remeasurement of the defined benefit
plans

IT relating to items that will not be
reclassified to P & L
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited (“the Company”) and the consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (“Group”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described to in the basis for qualified opinion section of our report, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects of the financial position of the
Company and the Group, as at 31 December 2023, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Since 2013 to 2017 Borrowing costs and exchange losses amounting to Rs. 658.8 million incurred on a loan obtained to
finance property, plant and equipment acquisition (Building and Plant and Machinery) have been capitalized under cost of
such items in these financial statements. This is not in compliance with the requirements of Sections 17,30 and 25 of the
SLFRS for SMEs. Due to the misstatement, the profit of the Company and Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
understated by Rs. 24.2 million (2022- Rs. 24.2 million) and accumulated profit of the Company and Group as of 31 December
2023 have been understated by Rs. 439.1 million (2022 - 463.6 million) respectively. Further the net book value of property
plant and equipment as of 31 December 2023 of the Company and the Group have been overstated by Rs. 439.1 million
(2022-Rs. 463.3). The misstatements represent the net impact of borrowing costs and exchange losses capitalized and the
depreciation charged on the capitalized costs.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of
Ethics) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, other
information was not made available to us.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and Group's financial reporting process.

M. Basheer Ismail FCA, 5. Lilani Jayasuriya FCA, Gerard J. David FCA, M. Sharnila ). Henry FCA, R. Hilmy M. Minfaz FCA, Sarala Y. Kodagoda ACA,
M. Manzeer M. Muzawwir FCA, W. A, Damith Gayan ACA, P. D. Rukshan Bharatha FCA, M. P. Madura Gunasekara FCA,
H. A. Chathumin Gunarathne FCA



Deloitte.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s and Group’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
o Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 163(2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007; we have obtained all the information and explanations
that were required for the audit and as far as appears from our examination, except for the matters referred in the basis for
qualified opinion paragraph, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company.

Qel allebesaoioder
Deloitte Associates
Chartered Accountants

Colombo /
23 January 2024 # 11, Castle Lane,

Colombo - 04,
Tel: 0115 444 400 /




Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Less: Expenditure

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Profit from operations

Finance and other costs

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/ (expense)
not to be reclassified to income
statement in subsequent period
Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee benefit
obligations

Deferred tax on actuarial gain / loss

Total comprehensive income / (expense)
for the year

Attributable to :
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

The accounting policies and notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

4 9,185,619,575 11,027,471,376 6,908,669,452 8,873,068,352
5 (5,792,161,313) (6,809,591,558) (4,945,484,814) (5,853,376,420)
3,397,458,262 4,217,879,818 1,963,184,639 3,019,691,931
6 668,348,684 701,830,388 1,029,932,208 1,046,073,920
4,065,806,945 4,919,710,206 2,993,116,847 4,065,765,851
(333,907,900) (378,460,921) (261,464,478) (301,898,245)
(2,211,903,646) (2,697,267,285) {1,669,046,479) {2,273,956,860)
1,519,995,400 1,843,982,000 1,062,605,890 1,4859,910,747
8 (32,840,512) (53,412,292) (384,382,232) {559,313,264)
7 1,487,154,888 1,790,569,708 678,223,658 930,597,483
9 (229,779,267) (339,560,472) (161,988,720) (175,422,243)
1,257,375,622 1,451,009,236 516,234,937 755,175,240
(975,051) (304,537) 347,083 2,011,863
(146,258) (146,258) (52,059) (551,500)
1,256,254,313 1,450,558,442 516,529,941 756,635,604
1,256,254,313 1,450,558,442 516,529,541 765,332,868
1,256,254,313_ 1,450,558,44; 516,529,94; 755,332,85é




VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

Company Group Company Group
Note 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 2,802,945,405 4,344,026,230 2,569,653,360 4,127,557,252
Capital work-in-progress 11 - - 17,358,461 19,795,361
2,802,945,405 4,344,026,230 2,587,011,821 4,147,352,613
Investment in subsidiary - Ole Springs Bottlers - 940,828,790 - 940,828,790 -
(Pvt) Ltd
Current Assets
Inventories 12 2,143,250,964 2,644,826,009 1,162,618,057 1,4B0,023,606
Trade and other receivables 13 1,317,525,844 1,514,869,911 791,335,528 1,043,245,643
Amounts due from related parties 22 664,170,801 . 731,377,536 -
Fixed depesits with banks ' 15 887,818,739 545,613,856 906,998,582 906,998,582
Cash and cash equivalents 14 897,292,657 929,187,326 166,880,590 185,937,744
5,910,059,005 6,034,457,102 3,759,210,293  3,616,205,575
Total Assets 9,653,833,200 10,378,523,332 7,287,050,904 7,763,558,188
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Stated capital 16 6,438,536,700 6,438,536,700 6,438,536,700 £,438,535,700
Accumulated profit /[loss) 1,062,569,497 1,150,248,851  (193,684,816) (300,309,591)
Total Equity 7,501,106,197 7,588,785,551 6,244,851,884 6,138,227,109
Non Current Liabilities
Bottle deposit payable 17 67,799,650 180C,906,148 61,127,342 181,966,818
Retirement benefit obligations 18 93,478,596 125,075,776 70,996,156 95,181,460
Deferred tax liability 9.2 292,373,707 619,925,763 120,181,552 362,664,966
453,651,993 925,907,687 252,305,050 643,813,244
Current Liabilities
Trade and nther payables 19 1,415,900,154 1,571,872,371 635,608,670 801,555,284
Income tax payable 20 47,503,248 56,286,115 = -
Amounts due to related parties 22 235,671,608 235,671,608 154,284,300 179,962,551
Total Current Liabilities 1,699,075,01C 1,863,830,094 789,893,970 581,517,835
Total Equity and Liabilities 9,653,833,200 _10,378,523,332 7,287,050,904 7,763,558,188

e e e e

| certify that the fijancial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

Findnte Officer

The Board of Directdqs is responsible for the preparation a financial statements.
Signed forpnd alf of the Board.

olombo -
Divettor Tj' 0115 444 400

23 January 2024

Director
23 January 2024

ETeRep ncCO~

The accounting policies and notes from 1 to 24 form an inte fhese financial statements.




VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Company

Balance as at 01.01.2022

Profit far the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31.12.2022

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31.12.2023

Group

Balance as at 01.01.2022

Loss for the year

Deferred tax adjustment of revalued gain on land
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31.12.2022

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31.12.2023

The accounting policies and notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Stated Accumulated Total
Capital Profit/ (Loss)
Rs. Rs. Rs.
6,438,536,700 (710,214,757) 5,728,321,943
= 516,234,938 516,234,938
- 295,003 295,003
6,438,536,700 (193,684,816) 6,244,851,884
- 1,257,375,622 1,257,375,622
- (1,121,308) (1,121,308}
6,438,536,700 1,062,569,457 7,501,106,197
Stated Accumulated Total
Capital Profit/ (Loss)
Rs. Rs. Rs.

6,438,536,700

(964,472,254)
(101,170,205)

5,474,064,446
(101,170,205)

; 763,872,504 763,872,504
s 1,460,364 1,460,364
6,438,536,700 (300,309,591)  6,138,227,109
- 1,451,009,236  1,451,009,236
. (450,795) (450,795)
6,438,536,700 1,150,248,851  7,588,785,551




VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before tax

Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Bad debt write off & provision for doubtful debts
Asset Scrap loss

Praovision for inventory obsolences

Provision for gratuity

Leakages and Brokerages

CWIP opening balance transfer to expense
Operating profit before working capital changes

Working Capital Changes

(Increase) in inventories

Increase in amounts due to related parties
Decrease in amounts due from related parties
{Increase) in trade and other receivable
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Cash generated from operations

Gratuity paid
Cash generated from operations

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Expenditure on capital work in progress

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
Withdrawal/(addition) to fixed deposits with banks
Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase/(decrease)/ in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 14)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 14)

Cash in hand and cash at bank

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Note 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
1,487,154,888 1,790,569,708 678,223,658 939,294,747
228,691,519 342,819,795 209,405,514 365,485,495
3,625,824 4,251,240 1,416,333 9,464,830
8 1,511,973 7,809,574 29,244,513 142,212,283
8 - - 34,852,635 55,719,977
18 25,511,341 33,999,719 15,588,484 19,772,313
100,265,276 114,193,287 16,708,850 25,406,114
- 2,436,500 - -
1,846,760,822 2,296,080,623 985,439,988 1,557,355,759
(1,080,898,183)  (1,278,995,690) (559,371,492} (675,335,563)
81,387,308 55,709,057 87,605,226 91,643,745
67,206,735 - 716,875,046 5,307,891
(522,687,801) (484,676,866) (609,400,746)  (467,412,709)
786,962,832 769,256,417 (179,254,562) (285,419,708)
1,178,731,713 1,357,373,541 441 893,459 226,139,415
18 (4,003,953) (8,409,939) (2,720,956) (3,251,774)
1,174,727,760 1,348,963,602 439,172,504 222,887,641
10.1 &10.2 (458,514,011) (562,117,224) (298,592,815)  (318,247,267)
11 (11,142,424) (11,142,424) (17,358,461) (19,795,261)
6,160,900 6,160,898 1,621,324 1,621,324
19,179,841 (38,615,273) (849,083,807) (645,501,635)
(444,315,694) (605,714,020)  (1,163,413,760) (981,922,940)
730,412,067 743,249,582 (724,241,256)  (759,035,299)
166,880,590 185,937,744 891,121,846 944,973,043
897,292,657 929,187,326 166,880,590 185,937,744
897,292,657 929,187,326 166,880,590 185,937,744

The accounting policies and notes from 01 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

General

Reporting Entity

Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka.
The registered office and its principal place of business is located at No.140, Low Level Road, Embulgama, Ranala.

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

The Company - Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited

The principle activity of the company is manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic beverages &
purified drinking water.

Subsidiary — Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd
The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic beverages
and purified drinking water.

Parent and Ultimate Parent Enterprises

The company’s parent undertaking is Varun Beverages Limited and in the opinion of the directors, the company’s
ultimate parent undertaking is Rl Corp Limited. Both intermediate parent and ultimate parent are incorporated
in India.

Date of Authorization for Issue
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 January 2024.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting
standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs) laid down by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka except for Notes 2.2.1 and 2.4.1 These three policies which deviate from SLFRS for
SMEs, are adopted to be in line with group accounting policies.

All values presented in these financial statements are in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.) rounded to the nearest rupee.
The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis.

The previous period figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current period
presentation.

Going Concern

When preparing the financial statements the directors have assessed the ability of the company and the group
to continue as a going concern. The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The company and the
group do not foresee a need for liguidation or cessation of trading, taking into account all available information
about the future and accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial
statements.

Consolidation

Consolidation Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the company for year ended 31 December 2023 includes Ole Springs
Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd which is a subsidiary of the company.




2.1.3.2

2.1.3.3

2.2

2.21

23
23.1

23.2
23.2.1

23.2.2

2.3.23

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date the control ceases

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition
of subsidiaries by the group. The cost of a business combination is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess
of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized is recorded as goodwill.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Appropriate adjustments have been made where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the group.

Investment in Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is recognized at cost less impairment losses in separate financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees which is the company’s and the group’s functional
and presentation currency. All financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless
otherwise stated.

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of such transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the comprehensive income except for the exchange
gain/loss on the translation of the foreign currency loans taken to finance fixed asset aquisition is capitalized
with the respective asset.

Revenue

Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and allowances. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there
is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

Other Income

Foreign Services Income

Foreign service income and subsidies are recognized in the financial statements at their fair value. When the
foreign service income or subsidy relates to an expense it is recognized as income over the period necessary to
match it with the costs, which it is intended to compensate for on a systematic basis.

Rent Income
Rent income is recognized on an accrual basis.

! Asso:
\0 \ttE O c/
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognized in the comprehensive income on the basis of a direct association between the cost
incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditures incurred in the running of the business
and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of efficiency have been charged to revenue in
arriving at the profit/ (loss) for the year.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost incurred on acquisition of property plant and equipment are capitalized as a part of the cost of
the asset .All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive in the period in which
they are incurred.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Rights to assets held under finance lease are recognized as assets of the company at the fair value of the leased
property (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the commencement of the lease. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring
profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated
and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets. Rental payables under operating leases
are charged to comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Income Tax Expense

Company

For a period of six (06) years reckoned from the year of assessment already determined by the Board of
Investment of Sri Lanka (BOI) (“tax exemption period”) the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act. No 45 of 2022
relating to the imposition, payment and recovery of income tax in respect of the profits and income of the
company shall not apply to the profit and income of the company.

For the above purpose the year of assessment shall be reckoned from the year in which the enterprise
commences to make profits or any year of assessment not later than two (02) years reckoned from the date of
commencement of commercial operations, whichever year is earlier, as specified in a certificate issued by the
Board of Investment of Sri Lanka (BO!).

After the aforesaid tax exemption period referred to above, the profit and income of the Enterprise shall be
charged at the rate of fifteen per centum (15%). Accordingly, current applicable tax rate is 15%.

Deferred Tax (Company & Subsidiary)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable profit in the future. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce taxable profit in the future, and
any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are measured at the highest amount that, on
the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is more likely than not to be recovered.

The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the
current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in comprehensive income.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

#11, Castle Lane,
Colombo - 04,
Tel: 0115 444 anp
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Subsidiary

Income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the comprehensive
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity

Current tax

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as reported in the financial
statements and computed in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act. No 45 of 2022 and
subsequent amendment there to.

Stated Capital
Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Tangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The group adds to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing parts
of such an item when that cost is incurred if the replacement part is expected to provide incremental future
benefits to the group. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to comprehensive income during the year in which they are incurred. Land is not
depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method is as follows:

Assets Rate (%)
Computers 25
Furniture and fittings 10
Motor vehicles 14.29
Trade equipment 12.5
Office equipment 25
Buildings 3.34
Plant and machinery 4.75
Bottles and crates 12.5

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if
appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognized within finance and other costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost. In respect of Projects under construction, incidental and attributable
expenses (net of incidental income) including interest expenses is carried as part of incidental expenditure during
construction to be allocated on major immovable project assets other than land and infrastructural facilities, on
commissioning of the project.
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets are reviewed
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an
indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is
estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying
amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
comprehensive income.

If an impairment loss for a non-financial asset other than goodwill subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not
in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
(or group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
comprehensive income.

Inventories :

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition, are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials - On actual cost on a weighted average basis
Finished goods - Valued at standard cost basis
Other inventories - On actual cost on a weighted average basis

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to significant risk of changes
in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in bank
net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial Instruments

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price. All sales are made on the basis of
normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. At the end of each reporting period, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that
the amounts are not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the transaction price (including transaction costs). Trade payables
are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. Interest bearing liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Bottle Deposit Payable

Deposit on returnable containers and crates represents the cash deposits collected from distributors when
issuing returnable containers and crates by the company. At the time of termination of a distributor the deposit
is refunded in case the returnable containers and crates were returned to the company or the deposit was
forfeited to the extent the returnable containers and crates were not returned to the company.

At each reporting date, the company evaluates the liability based on a mathematical formula that considers the

tenure of the distributorship and number of return crates and containers and any difference between the
calculated liability and the book balance is transferred to the comprehensive income.

11
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. In order to meet this liability, a provision is carried forward in the Statement
of financial position. The provision is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation as recommended by the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards for SMEs considering the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method and premium for the
period is charged as an expense to the Income Statement in the period which is relate. The fund is not externally
funded.

However, as per the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability arises only upon the completion of five
years of continuous service.

Defined Contribution Plan - EPF & ETF

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the
comprehensive income as in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Employees’ Provident Fund
The company and employees contribute 12% and 8% respectively on the salary of each employee to the
approved Provident Fund.

Employees’ Trust Fund
The company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the company’s and group’s financial statements require management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised or in the period of revision and future periods, only if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed below.

a) Defined benefit plans
The carrying value of defined benefit plans is determined using a formula which considers the actuarial
assumption. This involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, etc. Due to the
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and their long term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The assumptions used in the valuation and sensitivities there on are disclosed in note 18.

Events after the reporting period date
All material events after the reporting period date are considered and where necessary adjustments have been
made in the financial statements.

Capital commitments and contingencies

Capital expenditures and contingent liabilities as at the reporting period date are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts.

12
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31,12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Revenue
Local sales 10,531,370,741 12,671,508,464 7,576,004,744 9,894,996,447
Export sales 4,135,612 4,135,612 19,130,453 21,140,153
Trade discounts & Haulage (517,917,809) (637,158,773)  (116,636,352) (280,818,177)
10,017,588,544 12,038,485,303  7,478,498,844 9,635,318,424
Social Security Contribution Levy (211,010,805) (265,243,039) (37,997,311) (47,728,917)
Excise duty (616,958,165) (745,670,888)  (531,832,081) (714,521,155)
9,189,619,575 11,027,471,376 _6,908,669,452 8,873,068,352
Cost of Finished Goods Manufactured
Finished goods at the at the beginning of the year 376,803,024 421,341,619 97,403,013 128,647,006
Finished goods purchase 64,679,651 66,376,624 47,748,806 4,626,781
Factory cost transferred (Note 5.1) 5,749,205,434 6,757,541,920 5,177,136,019 6,141,444,253
Finished goods at the end of the (398,526,796) (435,668,604)  (376,803,024) (421,341,621)
5,792,161,313 6,809,591,558 _4,945,484,814 5,853,376,420
Factory Cost Transferred
Raw materials at the beginning of the year 431,864,593 652,376,463 369,445,899 570,513,692
Raw materials purchase 5,358,001,537  6,053,072,914  4,235,977,528 4,812,767,108
Raw materials at the end of the (1,415,469,534) (1,822,636,118)  (431,864,593) (652,376,463)
Raw materials consumed 4,374,396,596 4,882,813,258 4,173,558,834 4,730,904,337
Production overheads (Note 5.2) 1,374,808,839 1,874,728,662 1,003,577,184 1,410,539,917
5,749,205,434 6,757,541,920 5,177,136,019 6,141,444,253
Production Overheads
Salaries 150,658,850 177,542,902 131,229,894 157,768,866
Wages 21,779,421 82,441,550 20,218,651 99,426,613
Overtime 78,781,403 95,281,394 79,775,996 99,917,273
Bonus 18,184,496 22,446,405 17,498,093 21,630,746
Allowance 30,054,597 32,792,982 15,615,075 16,625,877
Employees' Provident Fund 19,020,295 22,260,733 16,568,634 19,768,425
Employees' Trust Fund 4,745,971 5,556,081 4,142,158 4,942,106
Staff Incentives 1,214,000 1,214,000 - -
Staff welfare 4,849,374 4,999,574 7,702,986 8,066,536
Medical 3,377,930 3,628,416 2,822,266 3,079,340
Terminal gratuity 2,935,850 3,651,348 2,387,350 3,209,537
Fuel 134,316,669 154,556,223 192,657,192 206,471,668
Chemicals 85,559,661 123,943,620 64,634,058 93,877,762
Lab consumables - 1,711,733 - 1,985,177
Lab testing charges 18,755,952 18,755,952 8,925,242 8,525,242
Tea and food 19,688,624 19,688,624 15,003,717 15,003,717
Foreign travelling 6,650,917 6,650,917 547,922 547,922
Electricity 313,779,737 454,728,599 155,403,134 219,139,222
Postage and courier charges 1,656,146 1,656,146 1,575,674 1,575,674
Telephone 286,718 1,056,718 258,536 1,324,353
General insurance 9,091,228 13,796,602 6,051,828 9,089,343
Printing and stationery 2,661,248 2,661,248 2,816,643 2,816,643
Security charges 6,923,429 18,068,445 5,510,718 15,099,610
Depreciation
- Factory building - 3,582,746 - 3,585,351
- Plant and machinery 114,436,018 137,493,584 109,221,450 132,357,188
- Office equipment - 52,777 - 28,501
- Furniture and fittings - 20,666 - 105,604
- Motor vehicles and forklift - 406,908 - 940,870
- Computers - 48,198 - 43,635
- Bottles and crates - 43,922,545 - 60,815,307
Building repairs and maintenance 22,905,548 49,260,064 4,664,799 13,634,534
Equipment maintenance 300,909,574 365,265,774 135,085,364 184,977,557
Travelling and transport 1,585,183 1,585,183 3,259,765 -
1,374,808,835 1,874,728,662 1,003,577,184 1,410,539,917
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Other Income

Foreign services income
Scrap sales

Rent income
Miscellaneous income
Exchange gain

Interest income

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Profit before Tax is Stated after Charging all Expenses Including the Following:

Personnel cost

Defined contribution plan costs - EPF &ETF
Provision for gratuity

Bonus

Depreciation

Insurance

Auditor's fee

Finance Cost and Other Costs

Bank overdraft and loan interest

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Loans and customer's guarantee interest
Impairment of inventory

Bank charges

Exchange loss

Interest cost on gratuity

Taxation
Income tax expenses

Deferred tax expense / (benefit) (Note 9.2)
Deferred tax charge against other comprehensive income

Income tax expenses (Note 9.1)

Reconciliation of the total tax charge

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
440,238,414 440,238,414 768,188,307 768,188,307
11,935,815 31,179,709 6,712,678 21,023,349
2,550,879 2,550,879 # =
61,500 61,500 79,000 79,000
30,952,843 38,089,618 - -
182,609,233 189,710,268 254,952,223 256,783,264
668,348,684 701,830,388 1,029,932,208 1,046,073,520
641,211,884 795,502,435 556,045,284 715,308,929
68,416,686 75,166,933 61,391,144 67,952,412
7,762,303 18,909,238 9,156,158 7,734,472
43,360,752 48,987,565 52,757,809 58,443,424
228,691,519 342,819,795 209,405,514 365,485,495
13,770,000 18,475,374 11,704,110 14,741,625
2,264,799 3,664,666 2,036,958 3,298,484
6,442,447 12,458,850 33,083,260 36,737,261
1,511,973 7,809,974 29,244,513 142,212,283
2,229,057 2,229,057 2,229,057 5,158,552
- - 34,852,635 £5,719,977
4,907,995 5,837,193 15,757,925 19,990,133
- - 260,058,683 278,758,954
17,749,039 25,077,218 9,156,158 12,037,839
32,840,512 53,412,292 384,382,232 559,313,264
172,192,156 257,260,797 162,040,780 175,973,742
(146,258) (146,258) (52,059) (551,500)
57,733,368 82,445,932 - -
229,779,267 339,560,472 161,988,720 175,422,243

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows:

Accounting profit / (loss) as per financial statement

Less: Investment income
Allowable credits

Non- deductible expenses
Investment income

Tax loss claimed

Tax profit / (loss) for the year of assessment

Tax expense

1,487,154,888  1,792,326,478 678,223,658 939,294,747
(182,609,233)  (189,710,268)  (254,952,223)  (273,796,491)
(244,773,367)  (299,119,951)  (503,175,076) (429,326,743

315,254,437 455,533,045 295,776,626 783,488,389
182,609,233 189,710,268 254,952,223 273,796,491
(1,172,746,837) (1,481,475,236)  (470,825,207)  (1,293,456,393)
384,889,121 467,264,336 ; ;
57,733,368 82,445,933 - -

Income tax rates are explained in "Note 2.6 Income Tax Expense"
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Deferred tax balances

Company

Balance as at 1 January 2022
Recognised in changes in equity
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 31 December 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2023
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 31 December 2023

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Impairment Property, Retirement Bad Debt Unused Tax Total
of Inventory Plant & Benefit Provision Losses
Equipment Obligation
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
- (309,828,601) 8,771,354 2,603,573 340,312,902 41,859,228
5,227,895 (3,467,169) 1,878,070 139,753 (165,819,328) (162,040,780)
5,227,895 (313,295,770} 10,649,423 2,743,326 174,493,574 (120,181,552)
5,227,895  (313,295,770) 10,649,423 2,743,326 174,493,574 (120,181,551)
- {1,130,462) 3,372,366 59,515 (174,493,574) (172,192,156)
5,227,895  (314,426,233) 14,021,789 2,802,841 - (292,373,707)

Deferred tax of the company has been calculated at the rate of 15% which is future tax rate applicable to the entity as per agreement with BOI.

Deferred tax balances

Group

Balance as at 1 January 2022
Recognised in changes in equity
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 31 December 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2023
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 31 December 2023

Impairment Property, Retirement Bad Debt Unused Tax Total
of Inventory Plant & Benefit Provision Losses
Equipment Obligation
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
- (580,090,195) 13,486,831 27,090,184 453,992,161 (85,521,019}
- (101,170,205) - - - (101,170,205}
11,488,098 (27,135,828) 5,618,184 15,005,810 (180,950,004) (175,973,742)
11,488,098  (708,396,229) 19,105,015 42,095,984 273,042,157 (362,664,966)
11,488,098  (708,396,229) 19,105,015 42,095,994 273,042,157 (362,664,966)
- 10,657,540 4,395,929 727,892 (273,042,157) (257,260,797)
11,488,098 _ (697,738,689) 23,500,943 42,823,886 = (619,925,763)

Deferred tax of the subsidiary has been calculated at the rate of 30% which is the future tax rate applicable to the entity.

#11, Castle Lane,
Colombo - 04,



10.

10.1

Property, Plant and Equipment

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Freehold property, plant and equipment

(Note 10.1 and 10.2)

Freehold Property, Plant and Equipment

Company

Cost

Buildings

Computers

Furniture and fittings

Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings

Computers

Furniture and fittings

Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Written Down Value

Company

31.12.2023

Rs.

2,802,945,405

Group
31.12.2023
Rs.

4,344,026,230

Company
31.12.2022
Rs.

2,569,653,360

Group
31.12.2022
Rs.

4,127,557,252

2,802,945,405 4,344,026,230 2,569,653,360  4,127,557,252
Balance at the Additions Reclassification Disposals/ Balance at the
Beginning of Write off End of the
the Year Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
915,563,567 32,923,413 - - 948,486,980
16,065,707 6,586,198 - = 22,651,905
17,561,274 5,408,564 - - 22,969,837
2,384,308,707 59,046,629 = - 2,443,355,336
211,407,686 = - = 211,407,686
7,362,000 1,758,776 - - 9,120,776
143,535,221 50,422,942 o (15,656,960) 178,701,203
659,232,422 313,509,914 - (4,594,837) 968,147,500
4,355,436,583 469,656,435 - (20,251,796) 4,804,841,223
259,642,410 30,912,794 « ~ 290,555,204
7,658,207 4,305,042 - - 11,963,248
2,414,836 2,244,833 - - 4,659,668
903,542,168 114,436,018 # - 1,017,978,186
196,677,490 6,210,649 - - 202,888,139
3,240,151 1,767,742 - - 5,007,892
24,012,573 12,285,425 - (8,602,530) 27,695,408
388,595,390 56,529,017 - (3,976,334) 441,148,072
1,785,783,223 228,691,519 - (12,578,924) 2,001,895,818

2,5689,653,360

#11, Castle Lane,

Colombo - 04,
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Freehold Property, Plant and Equipment

Group

Cost

Land

Buildings

Computers

Furniture and fittings
Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Bottle and crates
Trade equipment
Total

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings

Computers

Furniture and fittings

Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Written Down Value

Capital Work-in-Progress

Company

Description
Buildings
Plant and machinery

Groups
Buildings
Plant and machinery

Balance at the Additions Reclassification Disposals/ Balance at the
Beginning of Write off End of the Year
the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
972,314,280 = - - 972,314,280
1,058,5590,763 32,923,413 - - 1,092,514,176
20,777,103 6,586,198 - - 27,363,301
23,930,555 6,925,062 - = 30,855,617
2,870,394,138 59,250,319 = - 2,929,644,457
240,985,236 . - - 240,985,236
10,529,591 1,758,776 - - 12,288,367
1,215,105,138 152,305,966 - (39,058,142) 1,328,352,963
874,670,272 313,509,914 - (5,483,167) 1,182,697,019
7,288,297,076 573,259,648 - (44,541,309) 7,817,015,415
324,133,005 34,858,550 = 358,991,555
12,275,209 4,358,127 - - 16,633,336
7,063,610 2,616,895 - - 9,680,505
1,147,623,571 137,493,584 = - 1,285,117,155
224,362,521 7,370,712 - - 231,733,233
6,059,994 1,963,359 - - 8,023,353
918,427,375 56,207,970 - (25,729,701) 548,905,644
520,794,540 97,950,601 - (4,840,735) 613,904,405
3,160,739,825 342,819,796 - (30,570,437) 3,472,989,185
4,127,557,251 4,344,026,230
Balance at the Additions Transfers Balance
Beginning at the End of
of the Year the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
10,752,537 11,142,424 (21,894,961)
6,605,924 = (6,605,924)
17,358,461 11,142,424 (28,500,886) =
13,189,437 11,142,424 (24,331,861} -
6,605,924 - (6,605,924) -
19,795,361 11,142,424 (30,937,786) =

# 11, Castle Lane,

Colombo - 04.




12.

13.

14.

15.

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Inventories

Finished goods

Raw materials

Chemicals and fuel

Goods in transit

Spare parts

Less: Impairment of spare parts

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade debtors
Less: Impairment provision for trade debtors

Other receivables

Deposits and prepayments

VAT receivable

Staff loans and festival advances
Tax receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch
Nations Trust Bank PLC

Nations Trust Bank PLC-USD

Hatton National Bank - Kaduwela

HSBC-Head Office

Sampath Bank

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC-USD

Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC

People's Bank - Hanwella

People's Bank - Corporate Division

Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch (USD)
Saving AC - Hatton National Bank

Marginal AC - Nation Trust Bank

Marginal AC - Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Cash in hand

Fixed Deposits in Banks
Fixed deposits - Nations Trust Bank PLC

Fixed deposits - Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC
Fixed deposit - Hatton National Bank PLC

*

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

398,526,796 435,668,604 376,803,024 421,341,621
1,415,469,534  1,822,636,118 431,864,593 652,376,463
43,497,759 66,485,221 34,934,177 53,762,152
66,115,362 66,115,362 177,987,477 190,826,603
254,494,149 309,640,680 175,881,422 217,436,745
(34,852,635) (55,719,977) (34,852,635) (55,719,977)
2,143,250,964  2,644,826,009 1,162,618,057  1,480,023,606
739,333,576  1,049,176,391 521,897,004 853,478,252
(18,685,604) (152,089,086) (18,288,839) (149,464,397)
720,647,972 897,087,305 503,608,164 704,013,855
449,674,121 453,549,563 210,437,849 229,072,704
94,743,790 109,521,118 65,995,012 81,372,996
41,740,132 41,740,132 T .
5,432,999 6,213,486 5,894,995 6,607,540
5,286,830 6,758,306 5,399,507 22,178,548
1,317,525,844  1,514,869,911 791,335,528  1,043,245,643
7,078,345 7,620,324 1,942,638 5,586,846
11,366,898 15,386,538 6,510,978 9,729,284
148,416 148,416 167,587 167,587
16,867,508 19,405,983 3,128,829 7,508,852
5,570,581 5,570,581 6,813,966 6,813,366
3,678,676 3,678,676 882,225 882,225
33,379,275 48,357,770 754,989 7,004,665
899,606 899,606 1,024,894 1,024,894
191,024 191,024 - -
- 616,201 - 458,418
1,197,971 1,313,598 574,534 692,410
538,659,493 538,659,493 112,993,055 112,993,055
5,520,288 5,520,288 3,349,483 3,349,483
- 8,096,539 - -
268,390,000 268,390,000 24,931,798 24,931,798
4,344,576 5,332,291 3,765,616 4,794,261
897,292,657 925,187,325 166,880,590 185,937,744
583,917,369 641,712,486 29,079,404 29,079,404
- 100,410,959 521,082,192 521,082,182
100,410,958 - - -
203,490,411 203,490,411 356,836,986 356,836,586
887,818,739 945,613,856 906,998,582 906,998,582

c\o'\“e Assp o
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17.

18.

19.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Stated Capital
Issued and fully paid shares
Value of a share 10 10 10 10
Ordinary shares No. of shares 643,853,670 643,853,670 643,853,670 643,853,670
Total value 6,438,536,700 6,438,536,700 6,438,536,700 6,438,536,700
Bottle Deposits Payable
Deposits against assets 58,799,690 168,406,148 42,177,342 150,676,756
Dealership deposits 9,000,000 12,500,000 18,950,000 31,290,061
67,799,690 180,906,148 61,127,342 181,566,818
Retirement Benefit Obligations
Balance at the beginning of the year 70,996,156 99,181,459 58,475,690 84,672,786
Current service cost 7,762,303 18,909,238 9,156,158 7,734,472
Interest charge for the year 17,749,039 15,090,481 6,432,326 12,037,839
96,507,497 133,181,178 74,064,174 104,445,097
losses/(gains) arising from changes in actuarial 975,051 304,537 (347,063) (2,011,863)
valuation
Payments during the year (4,003,953) (8,409,939) (2,720,956) (3,251,774)
Balance at the end of the year 93,478,596 125,075,776 70,996,156 99,181,460
The following assumptions were used in determining the post employment benefit obligations :
Expected future salary increments 9% 9% 18% 18%
Discount rate 12.8% 12.8%,13.5% 25% 25% & 26%
Staff turnover rate 3% 3% 3% 3%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years
Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables 713,375,920 720,545,229 181,128,156 199,682,565
Stamp duty 92,975 110,350 94,450 119,375
Excise duty 125,589,550 146,911,797 109,238,814 136,692,980
Accrued and other payables 327,370,957 328,026,617 151,803,753 258,176,452
VAT payable - 10,504,904 21,621,223 35,160,635
Other creditors 249,470,752 365,773,475 171,723,274 171,723,277
1,415,900,154 1,571,872,371 635,609,670 801,555,284
Income tax payable
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - -
Tax expense for the year 57,733,368 82,445,932 - -
Payments made during the year - - - -
Tax credits (10,230,120) (26,159,817) - -
Balance at the end of the year 47,503,248 56,286,115 - -

#11, Castle Lane,
Colombo - 04.
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Securities Pledged for Short Terms Loans & Bank Overdrafts

a) Standard Chartered Bank

b) Commercial Bank

Related Party Transactions

Identification of Related Parties

Corporate Guarantee from Varun Beverages Ltd .

Primary Concurrent mortgage along with Standard Chartered Bank over
Stocks & Book debtors. General terms and conditions relating to
overdraft, import Demand Loans & Short Term Loans signed by the
Company. Corporate Guarantee from Varun Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Ltd
for the facility given for Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd.

Related parties include companies under common control and key management personnel defined as those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company. Transactions with related
parties during the year was taken place at agreed commercial terms.

During the year, Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuriya, Mr. Achal Kumar, Mr. Amit Joshi, and Mr. Tilak de Zoysa were the directors of the

company.

Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd - Subsidiary

Varun Beverages Ltd-Parent Company

Fellow Subsidiaries
Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd

Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd
Varun Beverages Ltd-Parent Company

Fellow Subsidiaries
Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd

Amount due from related parties

Amount due to related parties

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
664,170,801 - - -
£ - 208,892,398 208,892,398
- - 26,779,210 26,779,210
664,170,801 = 235,671,608 235,671,608

Amount due from related parties

Amount due to related parties

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
731,377,536 - = -
- - 60,614,597 86,292,848
- - 93,669,703 93,669,703
731,377,536 - 154,284,300 179,962,551

#11, Castle Lane,

Colombo - 04.
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Related Party Transactions (Contd...)

During the year, the Company and the group entered into the following transactions with related parties at agreed

commercial terms

Company
Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd-Subsidiary
Sales
Purchases
Payments/ settlements
Land lease expenses
Discounts and expenses
Other transactions

Varun Beverages Ltd, India -Parent Company
Purchases
Guarantee fee
Software license fee
Payments/ settlements

Varun Beverages Zambia Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Export sales
Payments received for export sales

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Purchases
Payments

Devyani Food International (Pvt) Ltd -Fellow Subsidiary
Export sales
Payments received for export sales

Group

Varun Beverages Ltd, India -Parent Company
Purchases
Software license fee
Guarantee fee
Payments / settlements

Varun Beverages Zambia Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Export sales
Payments received for export sales

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Purchases
Payments

Devyani Food International (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Sales
Payments received for export sales

#11, Castle Lane,
Colombo - 04,
QN Jel: 0115 444 400
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2023
Rs.

322,482,327
650,464,842
259,803,540

3,326,400

4,298,639

671,297,444
6,902,702
19,801,019
517,521,986

206,087,356
269,391,794

1,042,226,951
19,801,019
6,902,702
902,265,340

220,691,008
284,108,412

2022
Rs.

3,063,832,387
116,689,374
3,632,631,652
3,546,840
54,763,261
32,231,585

1,068,215,737

19,309,909
1,086,714,505

12,400,444
(16,497,000)

236,103,405
227,355,456

(5,208,450)

1,255,811,037
19,309,909

1,274,180,727

12,400,444
(16,497,000)

236,103,405
240,386,988

(5,208,450)
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Related Party Transactions (Contd...)
Key management personnel include members of the Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and the ultimate
parent company, RJ Corp Limited, India.

There was no compensations paid to key management personnel during the year other than the following:

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Directors emoluments 118,684,042 118,684,042 96,104,229 96,104,229
118,684,042 118,684,042 96,104,229 96,104,229

Capital Commitments and Contingencies

Assessment issued on subsidiary company
The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment for the subsidiary company on VAT for the quarter
ended December 31 2013 for Rs. 556,020, on which an appeal has been made.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment for the subsidiary company on VAT for the quarter
ended 31 March 2018 for Rs. 541,221, on which an appeal has been made,

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment for the subsidiary company on VAT for the quarter
ended 31 March 2020 for Rs. 21,691,777, on which an appeal has been made.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment for the subsidiary company on VAT for the quarter
ended 31 March 2021 for Rs. 1,647,673, on which an appeal has been made.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment for the subsidiary company on VAT for the quarter
ended 30 September 2021 for Rs. 540,467 on which an appeal has been made.

Legal cases have been filed against the company bearing the case numbers 99747/23 and 65150/23 for products and Civil
matters respectively.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital commitments not provided for (net of advance) is Rs.
13,161,790/-.

Apart from the above, there were no significant contingent liabilities and capital commitments as at the reporting period end
that would reguire adjustments to/or disclosures in the financial statements.

Events after the Reporting Period End
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date which require adjustments to or disclosures in the financial
statements.

# 11, Castle Lane,
* Colombo - 04. o
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023




VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Administrative Expenses

Salaries - staff

Wages

Overtime

Bonus

Tea and food

Medical expenses

Terminal gratuity

Employees' Provident Fund

Employees' Trust Fund

Lease rental

Foreign travelling

External auditor's remuneration

Internal auditor's remuneration

Telephone

Printing and stationery

Stamp duty

Repairs and maintenance - vehicles

Depreciation - Buildings
- Furniture and fittings
- Office equipment
- Motor vehicles
- Computer and software

Computer maintenance

Fees and penalties

Motor vehicle insurance

Staff welfare

Rent and accommaodation charges

Courier charges

Staff recruitment

Subscriptions and periodicals

Staff Incentives

Electricity charges

Staff insurance

Other allowance to staff

Legal and professional charges

Travelling and transport

Other taxes

Tax on tax on employees 's salary

Sundry balances written off

Water

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

73,374,393 79,026,248 61,106,687 67,068,812
4,283,789 7,573,096 1,825,230 4,089,251
4,014,633 4,667,750 2,015,423 3,383,049
4,812,271 5,707,139 17,191,115 17,889,856
13,726,858 13,726,858 3,632,105 17,603,070
4,910,098 5,641,281 4,108,462 4,884,470
1,429,828 1,580,247 1,111,660 1,296,368
9,727,151 10,532,759 7,973,520 8,818,374
2,464,975 2,666,377 2,013,401 2,224,615
3,168,000 - 3,168,000 -
3,180,796 3,180,736 4,695,883 4,897,179
2,264,799 3,664,666 2,036,958 3,298,484
3,175,010 3,175,010 2,810,413 2,810,413
2,513,787 3,151,127 2,737,410 3,168,392
2,964,259 8,295,867 2,254,601 7,849,818
232,800 317,400 132,500 294,075
33,941 33,541 4,746,251 4,746,251
30,912,754 31,275,804 30,187,700 30,362,759
2,244,833 2,596,228 1,267,218 1,353,621
1,767,742 1,910,581 1,357,628 1,614,133
6,210,649 6,963,804 7,051,205 7,323,401
4,305,042 4,309,928 3,450,327 3,522,443
25,706,440 27,195,760 25,251,364 27,566,964
- 1,867,697 - -
950 48,758 - 96,318
18,439,338 28,033,301 14,719,110 14,798,702
3,898,732 3,898,732 6,842,840 6,842,840
97,183 97,183 3,774,580 3,774,580
256,799 256,799 101,105 101,105
2,565,943 3,166,793 2,823,377 3,440,741
22,053 22,053 7,427,747 7,427,747
1,855,722 1,855,722 1,045,827 1,045,827
4,678,772 4,678,772 5,652,282 5,652,282
17,255,487 19,017,307 8,382,477 9,792,006.28
13,235,080 14,967,013 6,957,364 8,4590,851.38
10,955,359 13,501,614 5,300,890 7,524,812
1,415,448 4,646,605 5,609,721 5,608,721
51,280,360 54,692,118 - -
= - 653,009 1,185,785
244,850 244,848 68,424 68,424
333,907,900 378,460,921 261,464,478 301,898,245

#11, Castle Lane,
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Selling and distribution expenses
Salaries - staff

Wages

Overtime

Bonus

Employees' Provident Fund
Employees' Trust Fund

Medical expenses

Conference and meeting expenses
Terminal gratuity

Telephone

Printing and stationery

Sales promotions and discounts
Leakage and breakages

Tea and food

Other allowances to staff

Staff incentives

Rent and accommodation expenses
Staff welfare

Travelling expenses

Transport expenses

Foreign travelling

Motor vehicle maintenance and repairs

Motor vehicle fuel

Staff recruitment charges
Export handling charges
Contract outlet expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Provision for bad debts

Bad debts written off
Depreciation - trade equipment
Trade equipment maintenance

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

174,304,460 185,361,683 161,241,058 170,771,286
19,905,681 45,191,943 15,843,890 25,136,368
17,024,164 17,471,086 14,350,648 17,626,711
20,363,985 20,834,022 18,068,601 18,922,782
25,978,355 27,325,435 24,554,745 25,759,114
6,479,854 6,825,548 6,138,686 6,439,778
8,559,968 8,624,129 6,931,939 7,052,355
16,480,518 16,480,518 1,171,955 1,171,955
3,396,625 3,690,905 2,933,316 3,228,566
5,584,719 5,584,719 4,525,793 4,529,793
3,875,882 3,875,882 7,583,768 7,583,768
1,038,548,582 1,264,794,996 687,282,960 1,064,475,594
100,265,276 114,193,287 16,708,850 25,406,114
24,900,919 32,040,314 23,800,365 24,246,281
67,030,452 68,151,754 52,822,692 53,444,868
80,887,686 81,810,852 143,534,548 145,930,555
9,366,459 9,942,459 10,096,722 10,636,722
4,747,011 4,747,011 4,761,859 4,761,859
17,632,452 17,632,452 13,003,280 13,021,766
128,406,702 232,493,433 216,836,811 309,095,272
9,194,736 9,194,736 2,923,935 2,923,935
127,144,567 144,127,832 40,191,369 45,783,689
55,590,983 85,461,404 54,255,750 70,614,500
- = 35,000 35,000
5,113,636 5,113,636 9,021,104 9,021,104
125,689,701 125,689,701 44,677,182 44,677,182
= 902,432 56,050 56,050
- 2,227,924 = -
3,625,824 4,251,240 1,416,333 9,464,830
68,814,442 110,236,026 56,869,986 123,432,682
42,589,881 42,989,881 27,403,281 28,706,382
2,211,903,646 2,697,267,285 1,669,046,479 2,273,956,860
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD

Report on the Audit of the Financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd (“the Company”) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. At the date of this
auditor’s report, other information was not made available to us.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs), and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

M. Basheer Ismail FCA, S. Lilani Jayasuriya FCA, Gerard J. David FCA, M. Sharnila J. Henry FCA, R. Hilmy M. Minfaz FCA, Sarala Y. Kodagoda ACA,
M. Manzeer M. Muzawwir FCA, W. A. Damith Gayan ACA, P. D. Rukshan Bharatha FCA, M. P. Madura Gunasekara FCA,
H. A. Chathumin Gunarathne FCA




Deloitte

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information and
explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper accounting records
have been kept by the Company.

Deloitte Associates
Chartered Accountants
Colombo

23 January 2024




Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses
Profit from operations

Finance and other costs

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Note

Other comprehensive income/ (expense) not to be reclassified to income statement

in subsequent period

Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee benefit obligations

Deferred tax on actuarial gain/(loss)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Year Ended
31.12.2023
Rs.

2,678,362,480

(1,856,184,149)

Year Ended
31.12.2022
Rs.

4,862,533,052

(3,809,808,608)

822,178,331
36,649,705

(47,721,023)

1,052,724,444
19,309,711

(43,601,807)

(471,435,631) (596,213,076)
339,671,382 432,219,272

(34,499,791) (174,931,031)
305,171,590 257,288,241

(109,580,051)

(13,433,522)

195,591,539 243,854,719
670,514 1,664,800
(201,154) (499,440)
196,060,899 245,020,079

The accounting policies and notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.




OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Note Rs. Rs.

Assets
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 1,163,080,825 1,179,903,850
Capital work-in prograss 8.2 - 2,436,500
Investment property 9 378,000,000 378,000,000

1,541,080,825 1,560,340,790
Current assets
Inventories 10 502,435,350 316,509,078
Trade and other receivables 11 182,566,738 236,532,131
Deposits and prepayments 12 14,777,329 15,377,984
Fixed deposits with banks 13 57,795,117 -
Cash and cash equivalents 31,894,668 19,057,154

789,469,202 587,476,347

Total assets 2,330,550,027 2,147,817,137
Equity and liabilities
Stated capital 14 802,872,070 802,872,070
Accumulated profit 226,496,374 30,435,475

1,029,368,444 833,307,545
Non current liabilities
Deposits payable 15 113,106,458 120,839,475
Retirement benefit obligations 16 31,597,179 28,185,303
Deferred tax liability 7.3 327,552,056 242,483,415

472,255,693 391,508,193

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 155,972,222 165,945,611
Amounts due to related parties 21 664,170,801 757,055,788
Income tax payable 19 8,782,867 -
Total current liabilities 828,925,890 923,001,399
Total equity and liabilities 2,330,550,027 2,147,817,137

1 certify that the flnancial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07

of 2007.

Finance Officer

The Board of Directo
Signed for a

is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

If of the Board. —
oitte Assg

L)
0% 11, Castle Lane,

i * Colombo l 04 2l e,

Director : : Director

23 January 2024 497:!" 0115 444 400 ‘5{{" 23 January 2024
N&ep accont

.

The accounting policies and notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.




OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Stated capital Accumulated Total
profit
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance as at 01.01.2022 802,872,070 (113,414,398) 689,457,672
Profit for the year - 243,854,718 243,854,718
Other comprehensive income for the year - 1,165,360 1,165,360
Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation gain on land - (101,170,205) (101,170,205)
Balance as at 31.12.2022 802,872,070 30,435,475 833,307,545
Profit for the year = 195,591,539 195,591,539
Other comprehensive income for the year - 469,360 469,360
Balance as at 31.12.2023 802,872,070 226,496,374 1,029,368,444

The accounting policies and notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.




OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Note Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 305,171,590 257,288,241
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 8.1 114,128,277 156,080,018
Asset scrapped 6 6,298,001 112,967,770
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables 4 2,227,924 -
CWIP opening balance transfer to expense 2,436,900 -
Bad debt write off q 625,417 -
Breakages 6 13,928,011 8,697,263
Provision for gratuity 16 8,488,376 4,183,827
Operating profit before working capital changes 453,304,497 539,217,119
Increase in inventories (199,854,279) (100,011,143)
Decrease in trade and other receivables 51,737,469 153,692,324
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments 600,655 (3,655,820)
(Decrease) in trade and other payables (34,261,524) (106,165,144)
(Decrease) in amounts due to related parties (92,884,987) (698,831,371)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 178,641,830 (215,754,035)
Gratuity paid 16 (4,405,987) (530,819)
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 174,235,843 (216,284,854)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 8.1 (103,603,213) (19,654,463)
Expenditure in capital working progress - (2,436,900)
(Investment)/ withdrawal of fixed deposits with banks 13 (57,795,117) 203,582,173
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities (161,398,330) 181,490,810
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,837,514 (34,794,043)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,057,154 53,851,197
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31,894,668 19,057,154
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash in hand and cash at bank 31,894,668 19,057,154
31,894,668 19,057,154

The accounting policies and notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2.3.2

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

General

Reporting entity

Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd (the “Company”) is a limited liability Company incorporated and
domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office and the principle place of business is located at 140, Low
Level Road, Embulgama, Ranala.

Principal activities and nature of operations
The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic
beverages and purified drinking water.

Parent and ultimate parent enterprises

The Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited is the parent company and the company’s ultimate
parent undertaking is RJ Corporation Ltd. Intermediate parent and ultimate parent are incorporated
in Sri Lanka and India respectively.

Date of authorization for issue
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 January 2024.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs) laid down by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

All values presented in the financial statements are in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR) Rounded to the nearest
rupee. The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis.

The previous period figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to the
current year presentation. The current year figures cannot be directly compared with comparative
figures in relation to the Statetement of Changes in equity due to the difference in reporting periods.

Foreign currency and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the company’s functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented have been rounded to the nearest rupee,
unless otherwise stated.

Revenue

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized based on the effective interest rate.
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2.5

2.6.

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Other gains and losses

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from disposal of plant and equipment and other non-
current assets are accounted for in the comprehensive income statement after deducting from the
proceeds on disposal, the carrying amount of such assets and the related selling expenses.

Rent income and other revenues
Rent income and other revenues are recognized on an accrual basis.

Expenditure recognition

Expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on the basis of a direct
association between the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure
incurred in the running of the business and in maintaining property, plant and equipment in a state of
efficiency has been charged to the revenue in arriving at the profit/ (loss) for the year.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rights to assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the company at the fair value of
the leased property (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the
commencement of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring profit or loss. Assets
held under finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated and
assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets. Rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
comprehensive income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditures as reported in the
financial statements and computed in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act. No 45
of 2022 and subsequent amendment there to.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable profit
in the future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to
reduce taxable profit in the future, and any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets
are measured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit,
is more likely than not to be recovered.




2.6.

2.7
271

2.8
2.8.1

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Income tax expense (Contd.)

Deferred tax (Contd.)

The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to
reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in
comprehensive income. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which it expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the
deferred tax liability to be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Stated capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and conditions necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.

The company adds to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing parts of such an item when that cost is incurred if the replacement part is expected to
provide incremental future benefits to the company. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to comprehensive income during the
year in which they have incurred. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets are charged
so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method which is as follows:

Assets Rate (%)
Computers 25
Furniture and fittings 10
Motor vehicles 14.29
Trade equipment 12
Office equipment 25
Buildings 3.34
Plant and machinery 4.75
Bottles and crates 12.5

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within ‘other gains/ (losses) — net’ in the statement of comprehensive income.
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Investment property

Investment property, which is a property held to earn rentals and/ or for capital appreciation is
measured at cost including transaction cost. Subsequent to the initial recoganition, investment
property is measured at cost less any impairment losses. The investment property consist of a
freehold land which is occupied by the parent company.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost. In respect of Projects under construction, incidental and
attributable expenses (net of incidental income) including interest expenses is carried as part of
incidental expenditure during construction to be allocated on major immovable project assets other
than land and infrastructural facilities, on commissioning of the project.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets are
reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or
group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount,
and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the comprehensive income.

If an impairment loss for a non-financial asset other than goodwill subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
recognized for the asset (or group of related assets) in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in the comprehensive income.

Financial instruments

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price. All sales are made on the
basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. At the end of each reporting
period, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there
is any objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the transaction price (including transaction costs). Trade
payables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. Interest bearing
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. In order to meet this liability, a provision is carried forward in the
statement of financial position. The provision is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation as
recommended by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for SMEs considering the Projected Unit Credit
(PUC) method and premium for the period is charged as an expense to the income statement for the
related period. The fund is not externally funded.

However, as per the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability arises only upon the
completion of five years of continuous service.
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Defined contribution plan - EPF & ETF

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee
benefit expense in the comprehensive income as in the periods during which the services are rendered
by the employees.

Employees’ Provident Fund
The company and employees contribute 12% and 8% respectively of the salary of each employee to
the approved Provident Fund.

Employees’ Trust Fund
The company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Em ployees’ Trust Fund.

Bottle deposit payable

Deposit on returnable containers and crates represents the cash deposits collected from distributors
when issuing returnable containers and crates by the Company. At the time of termination of a
distributor the deposit is refunded when containers and crates were returned to the Company.
However, the deposit is forfeited if the returnable containers and crates were not returned to the
Company.

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates the liability based on a mathematical formula which
considers the tenure of the distributorship and the number of return crates and containers and any
difference between the calculated liability and the book balance is transferred to the Income
Statement .

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. The costs incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition, are
accounted for as follows:

Raw materials - On actual cost on a weighted average basis
Finished goods - Valued at standard cost basis
Other inventories — On actual cost on a weighted average basis

Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are disclosed below.

a) Defined benefit plans
The carrying value of defined benefit plans is determined using a formula which considers the
actuarial assumption. This involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, etc. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and their long
term nature a deflned benefit obllgatlon is h|ghly sensitive to changes in these assumptions All

sensitivities thereon are disclosed in Note 16.

Calu'nbo 04
11 Tel: 0115 444 400
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Events after the reporting period date
All material events after the reporting period date are considered and where necessary adjustments

have been made in the financial statements.

Capital commitments and contingencies
Capital expenditure and contingent liabilities as at the reporting period date are disclosed in the notes

to the accounts.
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

7.2

Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.
Other income
Scrap sales 19,243,894 14,310,671
Rent income 3,168,000 3,168,000
Exchange gain 7,136,776 -
Interest income 7,101,035 1,831,041
36,649,705 15,309,712
Profit before tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following:
Personnel cost 43,593,137 42,031,326
Defined contribution plan costs - EPF &ETF 6,750,247 6,561,267
Provision for gratuity 1,160,198 1,302,146
Bonus 5,626,814 5,685,615
Depreciation 114,128,277 156,080,018
Auditor's fees - audit related 1,399,868 1,261,526
Finance and other costs
Bank overdraft and loan interest 6,016,403 6,583,496
Bank charges 929,198 4,232,208
Exchange loss - 18,701,271
Assets scrapped 6,298,001 112,967,770
Impairment of inventory - 20,867,342
Breakages 13,928,011 8,697,263
Interest charge on gratuity 7,328,179 2,881,680
34,499,791 174,931,030
Taxation
Income tax expense / (benefit)
Deferred tax expense (Note 7.3) 85,068,641 13,932,963
Income tax expense (Note 7.2) 24,712,564 -
Deferred tax on actuarial (gain)/loss (201,154) (499,440)
109,580,051 13,433,523

Reconciliation of the total tax charge

A reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows:

Accounting profit as per income tax computation 305,171,590 257,288,241
Less: Investment income (7,101,035) -
Allowable credits (54,346,584) (103,478,352)
Non - deductible expenses 140,278,607 302,763,426
Taxable profit #11, Castle Lane, 384,002,577 456,573,315
Colombo - 04.
Income from investments 7,101,035 4,999,041
Tax loss claimed (308,728,399) (461,572,356)
Tax profit for the period of assessment 82,375,214 -
Tax @ 30% 24,712,564 -

13
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8.1

8.2

Property, plant and equipment

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Freehold property, plant and equipment (Note 8.1)

Freehold property, plant and equipment

Cost

Land

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Office equipment
Furniture & fittings
Computers

Trade equipment
Motor vehicles
Bottles and crates
Total

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Computers

Trade equipment
Motor vehicles
Bottles and crates
Total

Net book value

Capital working progress

Building
Machinery

31.12.2023

Rs.

1,163,080,825

31.12.2022
Rs.

1,179,903,890

1,163,080,825

1,179,903,890

Balance as at Additions/ Disposals/ Balance as at
01.01.2023 transfers write off 31.12.2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
594,314,280 - 594,314,280
144,027,196 - - 144,027,196
486,085,431 203,690 - 486,289,121
3,167,590 - - 3,167,590
6,369,281 1,516,498 - 7,885,779
4,711,396 - - 4,711,396
350,847,061 B (888,331) 349,958,730
29,577,550 - - 29,577,550
593,085,607 101,883,025 (23,401,182) 671,567,450
2,212,185,393 103,603,213 (24,289,513)  2,291,499,092
Balance as at Depreciation Disposals/ Balance as at
01.01.2023 charged write off 31.12.2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
64,490,596 3,945,756 - 68,436,352
244,081,402 23,057,566 267,138,968
2,819,844 195,617 - 3,015,461
4,648,774 372,062 - 5,020,836
4,640,877 53,085 - 4,693,962
236,793,619 41,421,584 (864,401) 277,350,802
27,685,030 1,160,063 - 28,845,093
447,121,360 43,922,545 (17,127,111) 473,916,793
1,032,281,502 114,128,277 (17,991,512) 1,128,418,266
1,179,903,890 1,163,080,825
Balance as at Additions Transfers Balance as at
01.01.2023 31.12.2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
2,436,900 - (2,436,900) -
2,436,900 - (2,436,900) -

15
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11.

12,
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14.

15,

Investment property
Land

Inventories

Finished goods

Raw materials

Chemicals and fuel

Spare parts

Less: Impairment of spare parts
Goods in transit

Trade and other receivables
Trade debtors
Less: Impairment of trade debtors

Other receivables

Tax receivables
Staff loans and festival advances

Deposits and prepayments

OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Security depasits and prepayments

Fixed deposits with banks

Fixed deposit - Nations Trust Bank PLC

Stated capital
Fully paid ordinary shares

Fully paid Class "A" ordinary shares

Deposit payables
Deposits against assets
Dealership deposits

16

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.

378,000,000 378,000,000
38,002,113 43,642,126
407,166,585 220,511,870
20,127,821 18,827,975

58,006,173 41,555,323
(20,867,342) (20,867,342)

- 12,839,126

502,435,350 316,509,078
309,842,815 331,581,248
(133,403,482) (131,175,558)
176,439,333 200,405,690

3,875,442 18,634,855

1,471,476 16,779,041

780,487 712,544

182,566,738 236,532,131
14,777,329 15,377,984

14,777,329 15,377,984

57,795,117 -

57,795,117 -

No. of shares

126 1,260 1,260
80,287,081 802,870,810 802,870,810
802,872,070 802,872,070
109,606,458 108,499,414

3,500,000 12,340,061

113,106,458 120,839,475




OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

16.

17.

18.

19.

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.

Retirement benefit obligations
Balance at the beginning of the year 28,185,303 26,197,096
Gratuity charge for the year 1,160,198 1,302,146
Interest charge for the year 7,328,179 2,881,680
Payments made during the year (4,405,987) (530,819)
Actuarial (gain) / loss (670,514) (1,664,800)
Balance at the end of the year 31,597,179 28,185,303
The following assumptions were used in determining the post employment benefit obligation.
Expected future salary increment 9% 18%
Discount rate 13.50% 26.00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Employee turnover ratio 3% 3%

Securities pledged for short term loans and bank overdrafts

Name of the bank and nature of the security

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Standard Chartered Bank

General terms and conditions relating to short term
loan / import loan and Corporate guarantee of
Varun Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

Corporate guarantee from Varun Beverages Ltd.

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables 7,169,314 18,554,409
Stamp duty 17,375 24,925
Excise duty 21,322,247 27,454,167
Value Added Tax 10,504,904 13,539,411
Accrued and other payables 116,958,383 106,372,699

155,972,223 165,945,611
Income tax payable
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Tax expense for the year oe\o\“e ASSO% 24,712,564 .

Payments made during the year
Tax credits
Balance at the end of the year

(¢
#11, Castle Lane, N
Colombo - g4,
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Related party transactions

Identification of related parties

Related parties include companies under common control and key management personnel defined as those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company. Transactions
with related parties during the year had taken place at the agreed commercial terms.

During the period Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria, Mr. Amit Joshi, Mr. Achal Kumar, were the Directors of the company.

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.
Amounts due to related parties
Varun Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Ltd (Parent) 664,170,801 731,377,537
Varun Beverages Ltd (Intermediate parent) - 25,678,251

664,170,801 757,055,788

The company entered into the following transactions with the related parties on the basis of the agreed
commercial term.

Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.
Varun Beverages Lanka (Pvt) Ltd ( Parent)
Purchases 322,482,327 3,063,832,387
Sales 650,464,842 116,689,374
Settlements / payment 259,803,540 3,632,631,652
Discounts and expenses - 54,763,261
Other 4,298,639 32,231,585
Land lease income 3,326,400 3,546,840
Varun Beverages Ltd - India (Intermediate Parent)
Purchase of finished goods and raw materials 370,929,508 187,595,299
Settlements 384,743,354 187,466,222
Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd (Fellow Subsidiary)
Purchased goods 14,603,652 -
Settlements 14,716,618 13,031,532

Remuneration to key management personnel
Key Management Personnel include members of the Board of Directors of the Company and its related companies.
During the period no remuneration was paid to its key management personnel.
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Capital commitments and contingencies
There were no capital commitments as at the end of the reporting period that would require adjustments to/or
disclosure in the financial statements.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment on VAT for the quarter ended March 31, 2020
for Rs 21,691,777, for which an appeal has been made.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment on VAT for the quarter ended March 2021 for
Rs 1,647,673, for which an appeal has been made.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment on VAT for the quarter ended December 2013
for Rs 556,020, for which an appeal has been made.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment on VAT for the quarter ended March 2018 for
Rs 541,221, for which an appeal has been made.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued a notice of assessment on VAT for the quarter ended September 2021
for Rs. 540,467, for which an appeal has been made.

Apart from the above, there were no significant contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting period that
would require adjustments to/or disclosure in the financial statements.

Events after the reporting period end
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date which require adjustments to or disclosures in the

financial statements.

Colombo - 04,
% Tel: 0115 444 400 /&

Yy
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Revenue

Local sales
Export sales
Trade discounts

Social Security Contribution Leavy (SSCL)
Excise duty

Cost of sales

Finished goods at the beginning of the period
Finished goods purchased during the period
Factory cost transferred (Schedule 2.1)

Finished goods at the end of the period

Cost of finished goods manufactured

Raw materials at the beginning of the period
Raw materials purchased during the period
Raw materials at the end of the period

Raw materials consumed during the period
Production overheads (Schedule 2.2)

Year Ended
31.12.2023
Rs.

2,980,648,402

(119,240,965)

Year Ended
31.12.2022
Rs.

5,217,125,856
2,009,700
(164,181,825)

2,861,407,438

(54,332,235)
(128,712,723)

5,054,953,731

(9,731,606)
(182,689,074)

2,678,362,480

4,862,533,051

43,642,126
189,973,545
1,660,570,592

34,130,371
2,197,711,912
1,621,608,451

1,894,186,263
(38,002,113)

3,853,450,734
(43,642,126)

1,856,184,149

3,809,808,608

220,511,870
1,347,305,484
(407,166,585)

138,649,095
1,296,508,490
(220,511,870)

1,160,650,769
499,919,823

1,214,645,719
406,962,732

1,660,570,592

1,621,608,451

#11, Castle Lane,
Colombo - 04,

%»P Tel: 0115 444 400 &
Zrep AccoONT
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2.2

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.

Production overheads
Salaries 26,884,053 26,538,972
Wages 60,662,129 79,262,872
Overtime 16,499,991 20,136,282
Bonus 4,261,909 4,132,653
Allowance 2,738,385 1,010,802
Employees' Provident Fund 3,240,439 3,199,791
Employees' Trust Fund 810,109 799,948
Staff welfare 150,200 363,550
Medical 250,486 257,074
Terminal gratuity 715,498 822,187
Fuel 20,239,554 13,814,476
Chemicals 38,383,959 29,243,704
Lab consumables 1,711,733 1,985,177
Electricity 140,948,862 63,736,088
Telephone 770,000 1,065,817
General insurance 4,705,374 3,037,515
Security charges 11,145,020 9,588,891
Depreciation - Factory building 3,582,746 3,585,351
- Plant and machinery 23,057,566 23,135,738
- Office equipment 52,777 28,501
- Furniture and fittings 20,666 105,604
- Motor vehicles and forklift 406,908 940,870
- Computers 48,198 43,635
- Bottles and crates 43,922,545 60,815,307
Building repairs and maintenance 26,354,516 8,969,736
Equipment maintenance 68,356,199 49,892,193
Loading charges - 450,000
499,919,823 406,962,734
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD

DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Administrative expenses
Salaries - staff
Wages
Overtime
Allowance
Bonus
Tax on Tax of Employees Salary
Sundry balances written off
Employees' Provident Fund
Employees' Trust Fund
Medical expenses
Staff welfare
Terminal gratuity
Tea and food
External auditor's remuneration
Telephone
Printing and stationery
Stamp duty
Depreciation - Building
- Furniture and fittings
- Office equipment
- Motor vehicle
- Computer & software
Computer maintenance
Fees and penalties
Motor vehicle insurance
Foreign travel
Consultancy fees
Legal fees
Subscriptions and periodicals
Motor vehicle fuel
Other tax
Travelling and transport

#11, Castle Lane,
Colombo- 04,
Tel: 0115 444 400 /&
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Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.
5,651,856 5,962,125
3,289,307 2,792,883
653,117 838,765
1,757,820 1,409,529
894,868 698,781
3,411,758 -

- 532,779
805,608 844,854
201,402 211,214
731,183 776,008
559,382 79,592
150,420 184,709

9,034,581 13,970,965
1,399,868 1,261,526
637,340 430,983
5,331,608 5,595,217
84,600 161,575
363,010 175,098
351,395 86,403
142,840 256,505
753,155 272,196
4,886 72,116
1,489,320 2,315,600
1,867,697 -
47,808 96,318
314,528 201,296
413,733 326,632
1,314,200 1,206,855
600,850 617,363
2,189,056 976,276
3,231,157 -
42,671 1,247,646
47,721,023 43,601,809




OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.
Selling and distribution expenses
Salaries - staff 11,057,229 9,530,229
Wages 25,286,262 12,061,566
Other allowance to staff 1,121,302 622,176
Overtime 446,921 506,975
Bonus 470,037 854,181
Staff incentives 923,166 2,396,007
Employees' Provident Fund 1,347,035 1,204,369
Employees' Trust Fund 345,654 301,092
Terminal gratuity 294,280 295,250
Medical expenses 64,161 120,416
Motor vehicle fuel 29,870,421 16,358,750
Freight expenses - 52,620
Tea and food 7,139,395 445,912
Discount and claims 226,246,414 377,192,634
Rent expenses 576,000 540,000
Provision for doubtful debts 2,227,924 -
Bad debts - written off 625,417 8,048,497
Motor vehicle maintenance and repairs 16,983,265 5,592,320
Transport charges 104,086,731 92,205,841
Trade eguipment maintenance 902,432 1,303,060
Travelling - 18,486
Depreciation - trade equipment 41,421,584 66,562,696
471,435,631 596,213,077
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Rs. Rs.
Cash at bank and cash in hand
Cash at bank
Margin money Nations Trust Bank 8,096,538.50 =
Commercial Bank of Ceylon 14,978,495 6,209,676
People's Bank - Hanwella 616,201 458,418
Hatton National Bank - Kaduwela 2,538,474 4,380,023
Commercial Bank of Ceylon - -
Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch 3 541,979 3,644,208
Nations Trust Bank PLC 4,019,639 3,218,306
People's Bank - International 115,627 117,877
Cash in hand 987,715 1,028,645
31,894,668 19,057,154

# 11, Castle Lane,
Colombo - 04,
% Tel: 0115 444 400 /&
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Tableau n°1
Balance Sheet (Assets)
VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO \
. XERCISE CLOSED ON 31/12/2023
Assets EXERCICE PREVIOUS YEAR
Gross Depreciations Net Net
and provisions 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

PROPERTY VALUE IN NO (a) 9 049 879,40 6 691 684,91 2 358 194,49 3 835 870,43
Preliminary expenses
Expences Deferred 9 049 879,40 6691 684,91 2 358 194,49 3 835 870,43
Bond redemption premiums
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (b) 126 646,00 51 149,62 75 496,38
Capital Research & Development
Patents, trademarks, rights, and similar 126 646,00 51 149,62 75 496,38
goodwill
Other intangible assets
PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT (c) 870 709 444,61 336 503 694,20 534 205 750,41 412 029 339,24
Land 80 551 444,10 80 551 444,10 79 059 094,10
Constructions 96 542 520,02 34 909 545,70 6163297432 61 866 007,21

Plant, machinery and equipment

531509 012,25

281 768 154,41

249 740 857,84

263 680 752,90

Transportation Equipment 17 104 905,57 13 631 967,90 3472 937,67 1108 402,28

Furniture, office equipment & facilities various 10 846 078,67 6194 026,19 4652 052,48 3396 818,27

Other tangible assets

Assets under construction and Asset in progress 134 155 484,00 134 155 484,00 2918 264,48

FINANCIAL ASSETS (d) 5237 516,13 5237 516,13 2 900 942,28

Term loans

Other financial receivables 5237516,13 5237516,13 2900 942,28

Equity securities

Other investments

TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS - ASSETS (e) 7102 919,93 7102 919,93 14 296 847,72

Decrease in nonperforming loans

Increase in borrowings 7102 919,93 7102 919,93 14 296 847,72
TOTAL I (a+b+c+d+e) 892 226 406,07 343 246 528,73 548 979 877,34 433 062 999,67

STOCKS (f) 221 237 276,10 221 237 276,10 195 354 431,30

Trading Goods 64 257 556,76 64 257 556,76 39 463 587,46

Consumable raw materials and supplies 104 085 469,67 104 085 469,67 112 674 176,18

Work in progress

Intermediate products and residual products

Finished goods 52 894 250 52 894 250 43216 668

CURRENT ASSETS (g) 289 353 009,92 7473 481,29 281 879 528,63 183 452 433,07

Supplier receivables, advances 49 323 163,39 49 323 163,39 8 495 920,92

Accounts receivable 164 370 181,84 7473 481,29 156 896 700,55 119 359 855,08

Staff and Employees 1332 020,76 1332 020,76 1195 924,48

State and taxes

46 119 820,56

46 119 820,56

28 820 301,14

Accounts associated & Account of shareholder

Other receivables

1127,18

1127,18

1127,18

Accrued Assets& Prepaid Exp

28 206 696,19

28 206 696,19

25579 304,27

SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES (h)

Exchange difference- ASSETS (i)
(Circulating items)

1 000 270,01

1 000 270,01

1 035 606,29

TOTAL IT (T+g+hH)

51T 590 556,03

7473 481,29

S04 117 074,74

379 842 470,66

CASH - ASSETS 9 642 083,04 9 642 083,04 7101 389,00
Checks and cash values ... 7 845 338,84 7 845 338,84 6 032 146,08
Bank T.G. and C.C.P. 1641 196,22 1641 196,22 871 293,43
Cash, Imprest and flow- 155 547,98 155 547,98 197 949,49
TOTAL III 9 642 083,04 9 642 083,04 7 101 389,00

TOTAL GENERAL I+II+III 1413 459 045,14 350 720 010,02 1062 739 035,12 820 006 859,33




Tableau n°1

VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO

Balance Sheet (Liabilities)

EXERCISE CLOSED ON 31/12/2023

Liabilities Exercise Exercice
PREVIOUS YEAR
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
EQUITY
Capital 869 638 000,00 869 638 000,00

fewer shareholders, subscribed capital uncalled

called capital

which paid .......ccoeeeniiniiiicncs

Premium, merger, contribution

Revaluation

Legal reserve

Other reserves

Retained earnings (2)& Acumulation of losses and gains

-557 585 140,71

-574 942 216,12

Net results pending allocation (2)

Net profit for the year (2)

52 049 530,68

17 357 075,41

TOTAL Equity (a)

364 102 389,97

312 052 859,29

ALLIED CAPITAL (b)

Investment grants

Regulated provisions

Donations

DEBT FINANCING ((c)

288 889 885,71

211 983 942,29

Bonds

Other borrowings

288 889 885,71

211983 942,29

Others Debt Financing

SUSTAINABLE PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES (d)

7102 919,93

14 296 847,72

Provisions for charges

Provisions for risks

7102 919,93

14 296 847,72

Exchange difference- Liabilities (e)

Increase in nonperforming loans

Decrease in borrowings

TOTAL I (a+b+c+d+e) 660 095 195,61 538 333 649,30
DEBT FOR CURRENT LIABILITIES 258 180 019,89 229 437 857,34
Accounts payable 189 428 426,59 182 440 220,77
Customers payable, advance payments 11 167 545,47 7008 618,25
Staff and Employees 409 503,87 359 392,33
Social security 3403 743,84 3367 897,38
State and Taxes 38 248 887,37 28 332 799,34
Accounts associated&Account of shareholder 13 124 335,31 6 892 153,73
Other creditors
Adjustment accounts - liabilities (Interest Payable) 2397 577,44 1 036 775,54
OTHER PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES(EXCHANGE) (g) 1000 270,01 1035 606,29
Exchange difference- Liabilities (Circulating items) 1430316,13 152 286,04
TOTAL II (f+g+h) 260 610 606,03 230 625 749,67
CASH - LIABILITIES 142 033 233,48 51 047 460,36
Discount credits 32494 214,68 5087 914,39
Credits CASH 25 000 000,00
Banking regulation(credit balance) 84 539 018,80 45 959 545,97
TOTAL III 142 033 233,48 51 047 460,36
TOTAL I+II+111 1 062 739 035,12 820 006 859,33

(1) Capital personnel debiteur
(2) Beneficiaire (+) . deficitaire (-)




Tableau n°2

PROFIT & LOSS
VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO
EXERCISE CLOSED IN 31/12/2023
OPERATIONS Totals of Totals of
Relating to the year| for earlier years the exercise the exercise
31/12/2023 PREVIOUS YEAR
1 2 3=1+2 31/12/2022
I [OPERATING INCOME
Sales of Trading goods (Turnover trading) 231 133 415,53 231 133 415,53 94 303 502,20
Sales goods&services produced &Turnover Manufact 1112762 477,60 1112762 477,60 842 503 074,05
Change in product inventory (+ -) 1& stock 9 677 582,01 9677 582,01 14 608 708,69
Asset Produced by the company itself
Operating subsidies
Other operating income
Operating Provision Reversed, transfers charges
TOTAL I 1353 573 475,14 1353 573 475,14 951 415 284,94
II |OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchases resold merchandise &Trading goods 168 127 876,59 168 127 876,59 89 990 802,88

1
v

VI

VII

Purchases consumed raw materials and supplies

480 171 689,90

480 171 689,90

367 800 551,34

Other external expenses

385284 847,33

385 284 847,33

242 158 804,54

Taxes

96 310 996,02

96 310 996,02

66 085 710,54

Staff costs

101 100 690,72

101 100 690,72

78 490 769,46

Other operating expenses

Operating allowances &Depreciation 43109 621 43109 620,67 43787 391,84
TOTAL II 1274 105 721,23 1274105 721,23 888 314 030,60
OPERATING INCOME (I-1I) 79 467 753,91 63 101 254,34
FINANCIAL PRODUCTS
Income from equity securities and other investments
Foreign exchange gains 3509 112,45 3509 112,45 1150876,09
Interest and other financial products
Financial times, transfers charges 15332454 15332 454,01 308 362,49
TOTAL IV 18 841 566,46 18 841 566,46 1 459 238,58
FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest expense 18 447 056,98 18 447 056,98 12 104 909,37
Foreign exchange loss 4253 892,15 4253 892,15 5456 241,39
Other financial charges
Provision exchange loss 8103 189,92 8 103 189,92 15332 454,01
TOTAL V 30 804 139,05 30 804 139,05 32 893 604,77
FINANCIAL RESULTS (IV-V) -11 962 572,59 -31 434 366,19
CURRENT INCOME (III - VI) 67 505 181,32 31 666 888,15




Tableau

n°2

VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO

PROFIT & LOSS

EXERCISE CLOSED ON 31/12/2023

OPERATIONS Totals of Totals of
Relating to the year| for earlier years The exercise L'exercise
31/12/2023 PREVIOUS YEAR
1 2 3=1+2 31/12/2022
VII CURRENT RESULT( Report ) 67 505 181,32 31 666 888,15
VIII NO-CURRENT RESULT
Proceeds from sale of Asset 20 446 881,21 20446 881,21 38 621 491,41
Balancing subsidy
Reversal of capital grants
Other No-current income 26 947,79 26 947,79 215 220,56
Non-current times, transfers charges
TOTAL VIII 20 473 829,00 20 473 829,00 38 836 711,97
IX NO-RECURRING EXPENSES
Net value of depreciation assets sold 20 454 286,14 20 454 286,14 49 208 232,30
Grants
Other non-current expenses 12 103 418,54 12 103 418,54 189 309,72
Allocations to non-current amortization and provisions
TOTAL IX 32 557 704,68 32 557 704,68 49 397 542,02
| X NO-CURRENT INCOME ( VIII- IV ) -12 083 875,68 -10 560 830,05
XI PROFIT AND LOSS BEFORE TAXES ( VII+ X ) 55 421 305,64 21 106 058,10
XII INCOME TAX 3 371 774,96 3 748 982,69
XI1IT NET PROFIT AND LOSS ( XI - XII ) 52 049 530,68 17 357 075,41
X1V TOTAL INCOME (I+1V + VIII) 1 392 888 870,60 991 711 235,49
XV TOTAL EXPENSES(II + V + IX + XII') 1 340 839 339,92 974 354 160,08
XVI NET PROFIT AND LOSS ( XIV - XV) 52 049 530,68 17 357 075,41




Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2023

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW | ZMW ZMW | ZMwW |
Note As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022
Assets
1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1A 309,479,949 | 321,174,774 - - 309,479,949 | 321,174,774
(b) Capital work in progress 1B 7,267,298 - - - 7,267,298 -
(c) Right of use assets 1C 55,173,458 55,782,736 - 55,173,458 55,782,736
(c) Intangible asscts 2 59,101 67,725 - . 59,101 67,725
(d) Financial asscts
(i) Loans 3 - - - - - -
(i) Others 4 450,743 352,049 - 450,743 352,049
(¢) Deferred rax assets (Ner) 5 - - : -
(f) Other non-current assets 6 21,441,721 6,227,413 - - 21,441,721 6,227 413
Total non-current assets 393,872,270 | 383,604,696 - - 393,872,270 | 383,604,696
2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 164,705,322 127,319,475 - - 164,705,322 127,319,475
(b) Financial asscts
(i) T'rade receivables 8 91,000,447 | 107,763,487 | (20,246,874)| (16,144,879 70,843,574 | 91,618,608
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents 9 5,406,468 5,243,805 = = 5,406,468 5,243,805
(i) Others 5,459,666 1,020,304 - 5,459,666 1,020,304
(c) Other current assets 6,768,291 37,513,350 = = 6,768,291 37,513,550
Total current assets 273,430,194 | 278,860,621 | (20,246,874)] (16,144,879)] 253,183,320 262,715,742
667,302,464 | 662,465,318 | (20,246,874)| (16,144,879)| 647,055,591| 646,320,438
Branch Balances - - - - - -
Total assets 667,302,464 | 662,465,318 | (20,246,874)] (16,144,879)] 647,055,501 646,320,438
Equity and liabilities
3) Equity
(a) Hquity sharc capital 207,890,000 | 207,890,000 - - 207,890,000 § 207,890,000
(b) Other cquity
Reserve and Surplus (46,563,145)] 48,061,497 | (20,246,874)| (16,144,879 (66,810,01 8| 31,916,618
liquity contribution in
compounded financial
instruments 36,856 E - . 36,856 -
Total equity 161,363,711 | 255,951,497 | (20,246,874)] (16,144,879)] 141,116,838 | 239,806,618
4) Liabilities
A) Non-current liabilities
(a) Minancial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 14 | 251,035,156 | 176,014,265 - " 251,035,156 | 176,014,265
(b) Provisions 15 4,319,199 4,850,564 - - 4,319,199 4,850,564
Total non-current liabilties 255,354,355 | 180,864,829 - - 255,354,355 | 180,864,829
B) Current liabilities
(a) I'inancial liabilitics
(1) Borrowings 16 74,725,780 60,523,592 - - 74,725,780 60,523,592
(11) T'rade Payables 17 113,264,878 | 116,690,720 - - 113,264,878 | 116,690,720
(ii)Other financial liabilitics 18 56,658,670 40,781,309 - 56,658,670 40,781,309
(b) Other current liabilities 19 5,428,902 7,143,673 - - 5,428,902 7,143,673
(c ) Provisions 15 506,167 509,698 - - 506,167 509,698
Total current liabilties 250,584,398 | 225,648,991 - - 250,584,398 | 225,648,991
Total liabilities 505,938,753 | 406,513,820 - - 505,938,753 | 406,513,820
Total equity and liabilities 667,302,464 | 662,465,318 | (20,246,874)] (16,144,879)] 647,055,591 646,320,438
For PKF Zambia
Chartered Accountants

Partner

Place: Lusaka

Date: QQ ‘Q\lQQQ q-

PKF

AM

B\R




Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 December 2023

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW ZMW
Note | 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022
Income
1 Revenue from operations 20 829,842,125 849,062,404 - 829,842,125] 849,062,404
11 Other Income 21 810,655 807,738 - - 810,655 807,738
11 Total Income (I + II) 830,652,780 849,870,142 - - 830,652,780] 849,870,142
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 461,438,203 483,262,887 4 - 461,438,203] 483,262,887
ixeise duty 2,076,003 2,055,994 4 2,076,003 2,055,994
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 3,624,382 5,188,514 - 3,624,382 5,188,514
(Ih:mg_‘!_-cs in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 24 (5,555,157) 3.207.664 1 ) (5,555,157) 3,207,664
work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 25 104,533,598 92,244,759, - - 104,533,598 92,244,759
linance costs 26 20,950,463 19,262,939 - - 20,950,463 19,262,939
Depreciation and amortization expensce 27 43,089,044 34,810,067 - - 43,089,044 34,810,067
Other expenses 28 295,120,887 180,970,899 4,101,994 4,197,339 299,222 881] 185,168,239
Total expenses (IV) 925,277,423 821,003,724 4,101,994 4,197,339  929,379,417| 825,201,063
V. Profit before prior period items (111-1V) (94,624643)  28,866,418] (4,101,994 (4,197,339) (98,726,638)| 24,669,079
V1 Prior period items 29 - . - - - -
VIl Profit before tax (V-VI) (94,624,643) 28,866,418)  (4,101,994)| (4,197,339) (98,726,638) 24,669,079
liarnings before interest, rax, depreciation and amortization (31,395,791) 82,131,687 (4,101,994)]  (4,197,339) (35,497,7183)] 77,934,348
(HBITDA)
VI Tax expense:
(1) Current tax X - - - - -
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to carlier periods =
(2) Deferred tax -
IX  Profit for the reporting period (VII-VIIL) (94,624,643) 28,866,418 | (4,101,994)| (4,197,339) (98,726,638)| 24,669,079
X Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (94,624,643) 28,866,418] (4,101,994)|  (4,197,339)  (98,726,638)] 24,669,079
For PKF Zambia

Chartered Accountants

<34MB\P~

Place: Lusaka

Date:

20|01 [2024
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement
(Indirect Method) (Amount in million)
Particulars Year ended on
31 Dec 2023
(Audited)
A. Operating activities
Profit before tax and share of profit in associates & Joint Venture (98,726,638)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment on property, plant and equipment 42,471,236
Amortisation of intangible assets and Right of use assets 617,807
Interest expense at amortised cost 20,950,463
Interest income at amortised cost =
Profit on sale of current investments
Excess provisions written back 810,655
Share based payment to employees 36,856
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant and equipment (Net) 3,065,220
Bad debts and advances written off 33,750
Allowance for expected credit loss 10,746,267
Unrealised foreign exchange fluctuation 67,615,189
Operating profit before working capital changes 47,620,807
Working capital adjustments
Increase in inventories (37,385,847)
Increase in trade receivables 9,995,017
Increase in current and non-current financial assets and other current and non-current 26,207,203
Increase in current financial liabilities and other current and non-current liabilities and
provisions 9,391,199
Total cash from operations 55,828,378
Income tax paid -
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 55,828,378
B. Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including adjustment on (56,323,143)
account of capital work-in-progress, capital advance paid and capital creditors)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0)
Interest received -
Decrease in other bank balances -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (56,323,143)
C. Financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings =
Repayments of long term borrowings -
Repayment of lease liabilities =
Proceeds/(repayments) from/(of) short term borrowings (N et) 14,202,188

Proceeds from issue of share capital (including share premium thereon)
Interest paid (inclusive of interest paid on lease liabilities)

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (D=A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year (E)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (F= D+E)

(PKF

Zame\S

(13,544,761)

657,427

162,662
5,243,805

5,406,467
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Statement of changes in equity

11 Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of ZMW 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

(In ZMW)
Particulars No of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2022 20,789,000 207,890,000
Changes in share capital during the period - -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 20,789,000 207,890,000
Changes in share capital during the period - -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 20,789,000 207,890,000

12 Other Equity

(In ZMW)

Particulars Promoter Contribution Retained Total
in Equity earnings

Balance as at 01 January 2022 - 7,247,539 7,247,539
Profit for the year ended 2 24,669,079 24,669,079
Balance as at 31 December 2022 - 31,916,618 31,916,618
Profit for the period ended - (98,726,638) (98,726,638)
ESOP granted 36,856 - 36,856
Balance as at 31 December 2023 36,856 (66,810,020) (66,773,163)

For PKF Zambia

Chartered Accountants

Partner

Place: Lusaka
Date:

For and on behalf of Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

Whole Time Director

24 0) lQoaq



Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023

N

1A Property, plant and equipment (In ZMW)

Gross block Buildings Plant and Furniture and Vehicles Office Computer Containers  Post-mix vending Total
equipment fixtures equipment equipments machines and
refrigerators (Visi
Cooler)

Balance as at 1 January 2022 85,543,247 155,140,859 1,831,142 30,217,812 1,010,468 2,280,017 112,332,697 63,711,379 452,076,621
Additons for the year ended 2,457,793 45,945,280 227,700 990,765 288,886 976,505 24,436,917 805,259 76,129,113
Disposal for the year ended (471,832) (16,838,072) (525,701) (B08,871)  (436,897) (180,055) - (16,462,560)  (35,723,987)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 87,529,207 184,248,076 1,533,142 30,399,706 862,457 3,085,467 136,769,614 48,054,078 492,481,747
Additions for the year ended 529,480 264,178 58,947 8,771,734 392,354 413,712 19,917,007 3,494,126 33,841,537
Disposal for the year ended (1,390,721) (640) - (2,795,734) (67,782) (239,799)  (34,702,926) - (39,197,601)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 86,667,966 184,511,613 1,592,088 36,375,706 1,187,029 3,259,380 121,983,696 51,548,204 487,125,683
Accumulated depreciation
Balancc as at 01 January 2022 9,718,300 38,307,221 1,415,126 23,862,302 480,387 1,773,949 55,058,192 30,712,406 161,327,883
Depreciation charge during the period ended 1,606,259 7,600,497 76,984 2,714,190 107,798 311,289 16,427,897 5,354,027 34,198,940
Reversal on disposal of assets (106,165) (7,323,204) (467.435) (737,638)  (299,7806) (156,579) - (15,129,043)  (24,219,849)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 11,218,395 38,584,514 1,024,675 25,838,854 288,399 1,928,659 71,486,089 20,937,390 171,306,973
Depreciation charge during the period ended 1,636,544 8,358,297 153,236 1,955,622 129,012 480,660 23,789,955 5,967,910 42,471,236
Reversal on disposal of assets (1,390,721} - - {2,576,355) (14,394) (178,701)  (31,971,696) (608)  (36,132,476)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 11,464,217 46,942,811 1,177,911 25,218,121 403,017 2,230,617 63,304,348 26,904,692 177,645,734
Net block
Balance as at 31 December 2022 76,310,813 145,663,562 508,467 4,560,853 574,058 1,156,808 65,283,526 27,116,688 321,174,774
Balance as at 31 December 2023 75,203,749 137,568,803 414,178 11,157,586 784,011 1,028,762 58,679,348 24,643,512 309,479,949

1B Capital work in progress

(In ZMW)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2021 -
Addition during the year 46,280,346
Capitalisation during the year 46,280,346
Balance as at 31 December 2022 -
Addition during the year 7,267,298
Capitalisation during the year -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 7,267,298
AU
SAMBIN
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial
statements for the period ended 31 December 2023

2 Intangible assets

(In ZMW)
Gross block Franchise rights/ Software Total
trademarks

Balance as at 1 January 2022 129,977 8,726 138,703
Additions for the year ended -

Disposal for the year ended - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 129,977 8,726 138,703
Additions for the year ended -

Disposal for the year ended - (3,526) (3,526)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 129,977 5,200 135,177
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 January 2022 62,027 929 62,956
Amortisation for the year 6,174 1,849 8,023
Reversal on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 68,201 2,778 70,979
Amortisation for the year 7.613 M7 8,529
Reversal on disposal of agsers - (3,432) (3,432)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 75,813 263 76,076
Balance as at 31 December 2022 61,777 5,948 67,725
Balance as at 31 December 2023 54,164 4,937 59,101

&:,MBW
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial

statements for the period ended 31 December 2023

1c

Right of use assets

Land leasehold Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 January 2023 57,296,605 57,296,605
Additions for the year - =
Disposals for the year - -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 57,296,605 57,296,605
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2023 1,513,869 1,513,869
Depreciation charge for the period 609,278 609,278
Reversal on disposals for the year ; -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 2,123,147 2,123,147
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2023 55,173,458 55,173,458
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 January 2022 57,296,605 57,296,605
Additions for the year - z
Disposals for the year -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 57,296,605 57,296,605
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2022 910,765 910,765
Depreciation charge for the year 603,104 603,104
Reversal on disposals for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1,513,869 1,513,869
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 55,782,736 55,782,736
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

s v of signifi ing policies and other expl on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023
Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
ZMW ZMW IMW [ ZMW ZMW ZMW
As at As at As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31Dec 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
1A. Property, plant and equipment 0ATY9H 320,174,774 - H19.479,949 AZLNTATTH
As at As at As at Asat As at As at
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023  31Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
1B. Capital work in progress T.267,298 - 7267298
As at As at As at As at As at Asat
1 Dec2023  31Dec2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
1C. Right of use assets 55,173438 53,782,730 33,173,458 33, 7R2,730
As As at As at As at Asa As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
2. Intangible assets EURTH 67,723 39,101 67,723
3. Non-eurrent loans
As ar As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise shited)
Loan 1o related Parnes -
Other Loans
4. Other financial assets
Asat As at As at As at As at As at
31Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Buank deposirs having maturity more than 12 months - -
Security deposirs 434,743 3B2N9 4MLT43 332049
450,743 352,049 - - 450,743 352,049
5. Non Current tax assets
As at As ar As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023  31Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
MAT credw entitlement 3 - 2 = =
Ineome s pard (includes amount pad under protes)
6. Other non-current assets
As at Asat As at Asar As at As at
31Dec2023  31Dec2022 | 31Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Capial adbvances 0,709,422 5,495,114 . - 20,709,422 495,114
dvances other than capiral advances
() Security Deposits 732,300 732,300 732,300 732,300
() Addvances to relared parnes
() Other Advances
Balanee with saanutory authorines (paid under profust)
Prepud expenses
21,441,721 6,227,413 0 5 21,441,721 6,227,413
7. Inventories
As a As at As an Asat As at As at
M Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dee 2023 31 Dec 2022
() Raw maternal 109,254,529 B2070,328 - - 109,254,529 R2070,328
(1) Roww maarerial an reansie . = S A
(¢) Waork-in-progress 76,386 - Th,3860 =
(d) Intermediate goods
(e} Fimished goods 26,271,070 20,792,500 26,271,070 20,792,500
(1) Srores and spares 2,103,137 24,450,647 29,103,137 24 A30,647
164,705,322 127,319,475 - - 164,705,322 127,319,475
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

8 v of signi ing policies and other expl fi on the fi for the period ended 31 December 2023
8. Trade receivables
As at As at Asat Asar As at As at
3 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Trade recervable, considered good - Unsecured SLI0AHT LT, 763,487 (20,246,574) (1, 14879 T0R43574 DLGIR,608
Trade receivable, considered gond - Secured - . - - . -
Trade recervable - Credie impairee 6,044,273 - 21 246,874 16,144,579 26,891,147 16,14-4879
97,734,720 107,763,487 - - 97,734,720 107,763 487
Less © Allowance for expecred eredir losses 6,044,273 - H1L240,H74 L6, 144,879 26,891,147 16,141,879
91,090,447 107,763,487 | (20,246,874)  (16,144,879) 70,843,574 91,618,608
9. Cash and cash equivalents
As ar As at As at As at As at As at
3 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Balanee with hanks
- (hn current accounts 904,509 4794504 4904509 AT 504
- Beposits with orignil maturity of less than theee months
Cashoand eash equivalents
- Chegues/drafts on hand - - - - -
= Cash on hand 950 921 01,959 449211
5,406,468 5,243,805 - - 5,406,468 5,243,805
10. Other current financial assets
As at As at Asat As at Asar As at
31Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Clnms recevable 301,381 140,026 - - 3,641,381 140,026
Advance 1o Employees 118,285 HHO,278 1,518,285 RED,278
5,459,666 1,020,304 - - 5,459,666 1,020,304
1L Other current assets
As at Asat Asat As at As at As at
31Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise srared)
Aebvances o
Contracrors and suppliers 5042199 26,293,978 - 3942199 26,293,978
Prepad expenses H26,092 (RUEE 826,002 LOELA28
Balance with staturory /government authorities - - - .
Advances Recoverable in cash or kind 10,208, 144 103,208, 144
6,768,201 37,513,550 = : 6,768,201 37,513,550
12. Equity share capital
As ar As at Asat Asat Asat As at
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Authorised share capital 35,000,000 35,000,000 33,004,004 35000000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Fauity shares of ZMK 10 each isued, subscribed and fully pad up 207 890,000 2007 B0 207,890,400 R IR ]
207,890,000 207,890,000 - - 207,890,000 207,890,000
13. Other equity
Asat As at As at As at As a As at
31 Dec2023  31Dec2022 | 31Dec2023  31Dec 2022 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance ar the beginning of the year
Add: Adjustment during the year = =
Balance ar the end of the year - - = % E 2
Retained earnings
akince at the bemnming of the reporting penod /yer 8,061,499 19195079 | (16, L-8T9] (11,9475 316,619 7,247,539
ranster to debenture redemprion reserve - -
Lasss: Divadend Paid -
Lasss: Taxes on Diadend Pad - - -
Adld: Profit for the repornng period /year (94,624,643 2H 60,418 (101594943 (4,197,339 (946,726,634) 21,669,079
Balance ar the end of the repornng penod/ year 46,503,145) 48,061,497 | (20,246,874 (16,144,879) (66,810,018) 31,916,618
Fyuity conrrbution n comy ded financia 36,830
(46,526,280)] 48,061,497 246,874 |
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14, Borrowings

As at As at As at Asat As at As at
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023  31Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Term loans (secured)
From banks
Term loan (unsecurcd) ‘ =
from a Parent Company 250,035,156 176,004,265 231,035,156 176,014,265
Dreferred value added ras (unsecured) - - -
251,035,156 176,014,265 - - 251,035,156 176,014,265
Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
5 y of signifi aec ing policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023
15. Provisions
As at Asat As at Asat As at Asat
M Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefirs
Cirarnty 4,319,199 B0 - 4319199 -, 830,50
Compensared absences . - = - -
Laabliry for foreign currency denvative confrict -
4&1'&199 4,850,564 - - 4,319,199 4,8&5&4
Current
Provision for employee benefies
Gratuty - = - . F
Compensated absences Ao, 167 A 6UE - 6167 HMI.6OR
506,167 509,698 - - 506,167 509,698
16. Current borrowings
Asat As at Asat As at As at Asat
31 Dec 2023 31Dec2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Lexans repayable on demand from:
A bedy corporate (unsecured) - -
Orthers (Unsecured) - - - - -
Bankeworking capital Eretlinies (secured) 74,725,780 61,523,592 74,725,780 60,523,592
Current mamiritics of long-rerm debr - - - - -
74,725,780 60,523,592 - - 74,725,780 60,523,592
17. Trade payables
Asan As at As at As at As ar As at
3 Dec2023  31Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Trade payables
Toral curstanding dues ro micro enterprises and smull Cnterprises - = - -
Totl outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and {113,264, 878 116,690,720 - 113,261,878 L1665 720
113,264,878 116,690,720 - - 113,264,878 116,690,720
18. Other Current financial liabilities
As at As at As at As at As at As at
1 Dec2023  31Dec2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Interest payable to parent company 23,778,963 10,582,036 - - 23,778,965 10,382,036
Caprtal creditors - - . ;
Employee related payabiles 3,509,667 ToAA62 3.509,667 TnAG2
Unpaid Dividend - - - -
Secunty deposits 29,143,757 249 154,284 - 29,145,757 29,154,284
BG Commision Payable to Holding Company 166,250 974,527 166,280 974,527
56,658,670 40,781,309 - - 56,658,670 40,781,309
19. Other current liabilities
As ar As ot As art As at As at Asar
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023  31Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Advances from customers TRLUIE 1,318,523 - TRLO18 1,318,823
Sratutory dues payable 6,984 3524850 406,954 3824850
5,428,902 7,143,673 = - 5,428,902 7,143,673
20. Revenue from operations
Asat As at Asat Asat As at Asat
3 Dec 2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Revenue from operations (gross)
Sale of producrs HIE 902,424 BR,071,54 - B2RH2.424 HAROT150
Other operating revenue
Serap sales u3n 701 WHLEOS 939701 SHLEGY
829,842,125 849,062,404 - - 829,842,125 849,062,404
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other expl y infe on the fi 1 for the period ended 31 December 2023
2L Other income
As at As at As As at As at As at
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Interest on:
-bank deposies - -
Net gun on foregn curreney mansachons and transkitons - - - - -
Fxeess provemons wortten hack RULG3S BT 738 - BI0L653 HOT.738
G on sale of Rxed assers (ner) - - -
Miscellaneous Income - -
Amornsanon of government grant ¥
810,655 807,738 - - 810,655 807,738
22. Cost of materials consumed
Asan As at As at As at As a As ar
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventones at heginming of the reporting period/year R2T0,328 93.0139,454 R2,07T0,328 93,039,459
Purchages dunng the reporting period /year (ner) 01,608,212 312917902 01808212 512917902
S83.HTH,54) 603,957,301 - ARIHTH 540 613,957 361
Sold during the reportng period /year 13,185,814 AGZE 140 - 13,185,801 A0,624, 146
Inventones ar end of the reporting puenod/vear 108,254,329 HZOT0,328 109,254,529 B2 0TILAZH
461,438,203 483,262,887 - - 461,438,203 483,262,887
23, Purchases of traded goods
Asat As at Asat As at As at As ar
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31Dec2023  31Dec2022 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Beverages 3.624,352 5,188514 . 3,624,382 5. 088,514
Others
3,624,382 5,188,514 - - 3,624,382 5,188,514
24, Changes in i of finished goods, work-in-p and traded goods
Asat As at As at As ar As at As at
31 Dec2023  31Dec2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
As at the beginning of the reporting period/year
Fimshed goods 20,792,500 24000, 164 20,792,500 24000, 164
Intermedere goods 2 - < =
Work in propress - - - -
20,792,51H) 24,000, 164 2,792,500 24000, 164
As at the closing of the reporting period/year
Finshed goods 26,271,070 20,792,500 26,271,070 20,792,500
Intermediate goods - - - -
Wark in progress 76,586 - 76,586 -
26,347,656 20,792,500 26,147,656 20,792,500
Finished goods used as fixed assets = =
(5,555,157) 3,207,664 = - (5,355,157) 3,207,664
25. Employee benefits expense
Asat As at As at As at As ar Asat
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dee 2022
Satlaries and wapes UR,201 A4 H3,6BE,520 - GE200 A0 B5,688,820
Contribunon ro provident and other funds 2473768 204,983 2475768 2.040,983
Staff welfare expenses 3819570 4314947 3BI19370 ESIER )
Share based payments 36,830 - - 36,830 -
104,533,598 92,244,759 - - 104,533,508 92,244,759
26. Finance costs
Asat As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Interest on:
Term loans . - = i < =
Waorkimg capiral facilines 5,056,107 9,632,348 - 3,056,107 9,632,348
Others - . - -
Loan from Parent Company 14,847,227 B 662 - 14847.227 B0, 662
Other borrowing costs: : £
Processing fees GER,6T3 331,300 GEHGTS 331,300
Finance Costs (INDAS) : . _ L ;
Corporate Guarantee Commision 338455 1,018,629 338,435 1AHE.629
20,950,463 19,262,939 - - 20,950,463 19,262,939
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Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other

inf ion on the fi F

for the period ended 31 December 2023

27. Depreci and amorti s
As at As at As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dee 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2025 31 Dec 2022
Deprecianion on tanghle assers A3, 0080,514 3HOZ044 f(ﬂJ‘J.?.'.I‘S” (0013, 1) A2471.236 34,198,940
Ameortisaton of miangible H32 8023 - - 8329 023
Deprecation on nght of use ; 609,278 LR TIE] 14,278 603,114
43,089,044 34,810,067 - - | 43,089,044 34,810,067
28. Other expenses
As As at As at As at As ar As at
31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec2022 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Power and fuel 27 Hi6,491 21,198,283 - - 27 BR6,491 21,198,283
Repairs 1o plant and cquipment 12,763,499 H.736,4970 12,763,499 H.736,970
Repanrs to buiddings: S3K,30H0) 639,702 - - H3H,3H) 630,702
Other repairs fiH43 872 6,817,887 P g 6,043 872 6,817,887
Consumpnon of stores and sparcs T74,859 6,973,247 = = TR 6,975,247
Rent 3416,0123 3342811 - 3416123 3HZEN
Rates and taxes 119,584 2537 - 119,384 W2537
Insurnee 22027 LA, 012 - 2221027 A0 2
Prinning and srationery T1L,996 HIOH16 711996 26 H16
Communicinon 1. 275,480 1,146,925 1,273,480 1,146,925
Teaveling and conveyance HAT48H5 6,401,138 H1T4.885 6,401,138
Payment to the auditors as = -
Auchit and reviews HILBA6 634,192 H3LB56 634,192
Taxation matters
Other marrers -
Reimbursement of expenses . <
Vehicle minning and mamntenanee 5,279,830 $418.374 3,279,830 +A18.374
e and hire chirges - 4,500 = = 4,500
Management Fee - - - - -
Seeurity and service charges 232,040 2293315 - - 232R,046 2293313
Professional charges and consultaney 2089 444 0,796,079 - 2ARD 446 6,796,079
Bank charges 1,383,984 3029959 - 1,383,984 3,029,950
Advertizement and sales promotion 11,624,432 9,244,781 - 11,624,432 0,244,761
Meenng and conference - - -
Royalry = - - -
Frewhr, octron and msurance pad (net) 61.424,371 A4 61,424,571 2449424
Delwvery velucle running and manrenance 10,914,937 10,035,465 15,014,937 1,035,465
Distnbution expenses 34,551 3A02,023% - 34531 3402023
Loading and unloading chaepes 1, H98, 738 1,733,236 1,498,738 1,733.236
Donations - S
Property, plant and equipment weirten off - - - - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and cympment (net) 3,063,220 4,181,282 - - 3,063,220 4,181,282
Bad debts and advances written off 33,730 1,644,204 “ s 33,730 1,644,204
Allowance for expected credit losses 6,644,273 z RN R 4,197,339 10,746,267 4,197,339
Net Ioss on foregn currency transachions and reanslations 110,732,573 20,393,526 110,732,573 2,593,526
General office and other miscellaneous expenses 2476,7T9 2189213 - 2476,779 2,189,213
295,120,887 180,970,899 4,101,994 4,197,339 299,222,881 185,168,230
29, Prior period items
Asa Asat As at As at As at As at
31Dec2023 31 Dec2022 | 31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022




Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2023

Total Total
Particulars Note USD USD
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Assets
1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1A 30,195,286 27,312,372
(b) Capital work in progress 1B 8,230,662 3,859,684
(c) Right of use assets 1C 2,224,470 -
(d) Financial assets
(i) Othets 2 81,556 63,298
(e) Other non-current assets 3 1,072,614 205,026
Total non-current assets 41,804,588 31,440,380
2) Current assets
(a) Inventoties 4 26,583,556 24,850,704
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 4,537,852 5,528,503
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 6,973,249 2,862,523
(iif) Bank balances other than (ii) above 7 - -
(iv) Others 8 143,473 233,328
(c) Current tax assets 9 - -
(d) Other current assets 10 7,795,761 3,092,472
Total current assets 46,033,890 36,567,529
Total assets 87,838,478 68,007,910
Equity and liabilities
3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 1,100 1,100
(b) Other equity 12
Reserve and Surplus 58,334,033 32,767,906
Equity contribution in compounded financial
instruments 35,270 -
Total equity 58,370,403 32,769,006
4) Liabilities
A) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 11,840,000 14,850,000
Total non-current liabilties 11,840,000 14,850,000
B) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 - 1,000,000
(i) Trade payables 15 9,143,751 11,581,967
(iif) Other financial liabilities 16 5,904,607 3,515,805
(b) Other current liabilities 17 2,579,717 4,291,131
(c) Cutrent tax liabilities (Net) 18 - -
Total current liabilties 17,628,075 20,388,904
Total liabilities 29,468,075 35,238,904
Total equity and liabilities 87,838,478 68,007,910

PRC

For PKF Zimbabwe
Chartered Accountants
Sydney Bvurere (Partner)

Place: Harare
Date: 23-01-2024

Director

For Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd

o //j )
"

Director




Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 December 2023

of tax

Total Total
. USD USD
Particulars Notel 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Income
1 Revenue from operations 19 174,080,557 121,143,019
1I Other income 20 39,457 41,872
111 Total Income (I + II) 174,120,014 121,184,891
v Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 72,594,465 46,959,718
Excise duty 1,717,081 533,368
Purchase of traded goods 22 7,607,297 7,228,031
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in- 23 60,930 (602,310)
progress
Employee benefits expense 24 14,021,378 9,459,915
Finance costs 25 1,360,767 1,683,262
Depreciation expense 26 4,357,090 3,279,381
Other expenses 27 46,834,880 30,201,845
Total expenses (IV) 148,553,888 98,743,210
\% (Loss)/profit/ before prior period items (III-IV) 25,566,126 22,441,681
V1 Prior period items - -
VII (Loss)/profit before tax (V-VI) 25,560,126 22,441,681
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 31,244,526 27,362,453
(EBITDA)
VIIII Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - -
(3) Deferred tax - -
Total Tax expenses - -
X (Loss)/profit for the year (VII-VIII) 25,566,126 22,441,681
X Other comprehensive income for the reporting period/year, net 25,566,126 22,441,681

For PKF Zimbabwe
Chartered Accountants
Sydney Bvurere (Partner)

Place: Harare
Date: 23-01-2024

Director

F )‘ T For Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd
- ;

Director




'Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited
Statement of changes in equity

1. Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of USD 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

(Amount in USD)
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2022 1,100 1,100
Changes in share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1,100 1,100
Changes in share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 1,100 1,100
2. Other equity
Particulars Promoter contribution | Retained earnings Total

in equity

Balance as at 01 January 2022 - 50,114,246 50,114,246
Profit for the year ended - (17,346,340) (17,346,340)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 - 32,767,906 32,767,906
Profit for the year ended - 25,566,126 25,566,126
ESOP granted 35,270 35,270
Balance as at 31 December 2023 35,270 58,334,032 58,369,302

For PKF Zimbabwe
Chartered Accountants

Sydney Bvurere (Partner)

Place: Harare
Date: 23-01-2024

\ 1'-:|_
AL

Director

For and on behalf of Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

\ iz,

Director
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Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

statements for the period ended 31 December 2023

1C  Right of use assets

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial

Land leasehold Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 January 2023 - -
Additions for the year 2,247 250 2,247,250
Disposals for the year - -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 2,247,250 2,247,250
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2023 - -
Depreciation charge for the period 22,780 22,780
Reversal on disposals for the year -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 22,780 22,780
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2023 2,224,470 2,224,470

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 01 January 2022 -
Additions for the year -
Disposals for the year -

Balance as at 31 December 2022 -

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2022 -
Depreciation charge for the year -
Reversal on disposals for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022 -

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 -




Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period

ended 31 December 2023

Total Total
USD UsD
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Property, plant and equipment Refer Note 1A 30,195,286 27,312,372
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Capital work in progress Refer Note 1B 8,230,662 3,859,684
1C. Right of use assets Refer Note 1C 2,224,470 -
2. Other financial assets
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 81,556 63,298
Loan to related parties - -
Other loans - -
81,556 63,298
3. Other non-cutrent assets
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Capital advances 1,072,614 205,026
1,072,614 205,026
4. Inventories
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Raw material 18,971,544 19,097,149
Stores and spares 4,254,193 2,334,805
Intermediate Goods 1,978,366 -
Work in Progress 6,026 256
Finished goods 1,373,427 3,418,493
26,583,556 24,850,704
5. Trade receivables
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
‘T'rade receivable, considered good - Unsecured 4,537,852 5,528,503
'Trade receivable, considered good - Secured - -
‘T'rade receivable - Credit impaired - 112
4,537,852 5,528,615
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses - 112
4,537,852 5,528,503
6. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 6,424,029 2,633,284
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
Cash and cash equivalents:
- Cheques/drafts on hand - -
- Cash on hand 549,220 229,239
6,973,249 2,862,523
7. Other bank balances
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 - -
months *
8. Other current financial assets
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Security deposits - -
Advance to Employees 143473 233,328

Yo



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

9. Current tax assets

Advance tax (net of provisions)

10. Other current assets

(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances to:
Contractors and suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Balance with statutory/, government authorities

11. Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of USD 1 each

12. Other equity

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Adjustment during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period/year
Add: (Loss)/profit for the reporting petiod/year
Balance at the end of the reporting period/year

Promoter contribution in equity

13. Non Current Borrowings

Loans from bank (secured)
Loan from Parent Company (unsecured)

Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

14. Current Borrowings
Working capital facilities
-from banks- (secured)
Current maturities of long term debt

15. Trade payables

'Trade payables
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

16. Other financial liabilities

143,473 233,328
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
7,771,200 3,005,138
24,561 87,333
7,795,761 3,092,472
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
1,100 1,100
1,100 1,100
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
- (12,308,175)
0 (39,788,021)
0 (52,096,196)
32,767,906 62,422,421
25,566,126 22,441,681
58,334,033 84,864,102
35,270 -
58,369,303 32,767,906
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
11,840,000 14,850,000
11,840,000 14,850,000
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
- 1,000,000
- 1,000,000
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
9,143,751 11,581,967
9,143,751 11,581,967




Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Payable for capital expenditure

Employee related payables

Interest payable to parent company on Loan
Commission payable to parent company

17. Other current liabilities

Advances from customers
Statutory dues payable

18. Current tax liability

Provision for income tax (net of taxes paid)

19. Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations (gross)
Sale of products

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales

20. Other income

Interest on:
-bank deposits
Net gain on foreign curtency transactions and translations
Gain on sale of fixed assets (net)
Miscellaneous
Excess provisions wtitten back

21. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventories at beginning of the year
Purchases during the year (net)

Sold during the year
Inventories at end of the year

22, Purchases of traded goods

Beverages

'Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

23. Changes in inventories of traded goods

As at the beginning of the year
Finished goods
Intermediate goods
Work In Progress

As at the closing of the year

As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
- 583
3,975,582 50,626
517,099 619,404
1,263,208 2,737,103
148,718 108,088
5,904,607 3,515,805
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
218,800 427,158
2,360,911 3,863,973
2,579,717 4,291,131
As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

173,978,770

121,090,245

101,787 52,775
174,080,557 121,143,019
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
19,221 41,857
- 0
15,821 -
- 15
4,415 -
39,457 41,872
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
19,097,149 12,895,822
72,969,957 53,667,759
92,067,106 66,563,581
501,098 506,714
18,971,544 19,097,149
72,594,465 46,959,718
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
7,607,297 7,228,031
7,607,297 7,228,031
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
3,418,493 2,816,202
256 237
3,418,749 2,816,439




Finished goods
Intermediate goods
Work In Progress

24. Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Staff welfare expenses
Share based payments

25. Finance costs

Interest on:
Term loans
Bank guarantee fees to Parent Company
Loan from patent company

26. Depreciation expense

Depreciation on tangible assets
Depreciation on ROU

'Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

27. Other expenses

Power and fuel
Repairs to plant and equipment
Repairs to buildings
Other repairs
Consumption of stores and spares
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Printing and stationery
Communication
'Travelling and conveyance
Payment to the auditors as

Audit and reviews

‘T'axation matters

Other matters

Reimbursement of expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance
Lease and hire charges
Security and service charges
Professional charges and consultancy
Bank charges
Advertisement and sales promotion
Meeting and conference
Royalty
Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net)
Delivery vehicle running and maintenance
Distribution expenses
Loading and unloading charges
Donations
Property, plant and equipment written off
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Bad debts and advances written off
Allowance for expected credit losses
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
General office and other miscellancous expenses
Management Fees

1,373,427 3,418,493
1,978,366 -
6,026 256
3,357,819 3,418,749
60,930 (602,310)
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
11,837,940 7,868,542
2,148,168 1,591,372
35,270 -
14,021,378 9,459,915
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
124,750 516,387
40,630 100,346
1,195,387 1,066,530
1,360,767 1,683,262
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
4,334,309 3,279,381
22,780 -
4,357,090 3,279,381
For the period For the period
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
5,575,912 3,513,004
3,440,621 1,828,198
174,118 19,817
191,292 192,794
962,171 234,024
1,424,258 938,468
41,748 29,236
398,482 206,065
144,865 75,051
397,432 236,252
1,160,802 551,060
33,549 50,023
111,934 13,428
915,811 1,065,972
689,768 402,593
205,046 155,227
1,803,040 1,369,702
1,475,476 1,153,384
12,134,541 8,125,492
1,480,937 1,321,299
101,749 6,622
1,833,484 990,223
- 0
- 30,950
- 85,635
5,388,104 2,977,369
119,018 80,585
6,630,722 4,549,371
46,834,880 30,201,845




Varun Beverages RDC SAS
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2023

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
CDF CDF CDF "CDF CDF CDF
Note As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Assets
1) Non-current assets
() Property, plant and equipment 1 991.873.190 111.239.071 - 991.873.190 111.239.071
{b) Caprmal work in progress 1B 37.726.900.557 +124.116.741 (139.579.385) 375873301471 4124116741
(c) Raght of use assers 1C - 2.249.341.046 2249341046 -
(d) Intangble assets 2 - - =
(€) Financial assets
(1) Loans 2 - - - <
(if) Others 4 218511128 105.760.000 X 238511128 105.760.000
() Deferred rax assets (Net) 5 5 ' ;
() Other non-current assers G 36.352.543.076 - - 36.552.543.676 -
Total non-current assets 75.509.837.551 4.M1.115.5812 2.109.761.661 - 77.619.599.212 4.341.115.812
2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 22964.906 - - 22964.906
(a) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 8 - - -
(ir) Cash and cash equivalents 3 12368367042 RU3.690.860 3 - 12.368.367.042 8056908601
() Others 10 22.945.740 - 22.945.740 -
(L) Other curcent assets 4 369.780.691 194,643.776 - 369.780.691 194.643.77
Total current assets 12.784.058.379 1.090.334.636 - - 12.784,058.379 1.090.334.636
§8.,293,895.929 5.431.450.448 2.109.761.661 - 90.403.657.591 5.431.450.448
Branch Balances - -
Total assets £8.293.895.929 5.431.450.448 2.109.761.661 - 90.403.657.591 5.431.450.448
Equity and liabilities
3 Equity
(a) Expaty share capual 5 20,000,000 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 20,000.000
(b) Other equiry 6
Reserve and Surplus (126.464.027) (62395.312) - - (126.464.029) (62.595.312)
Equity contribution 1n compounded financial instruments 6300681 - - 6.300.681 -
Total equirty (100.163.348) (42.595.312) - - (100.163.348) (42.595.312)
4) Liabilities
A) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial habilies
(1) Borrowings T B4.463.268.632 5. 200,000,000 - - 84.463.268.632 S200u000.000
(1) Lease Trabilines 2074.625.016 - 2074625016
(b) Provisions 15 = . . B "
Total non-current liabilties 84.463.268.632 5.200.000.000 2.074.625.016 - 86.537.803.648 5.200.000.000
B) Current liabilities
(a) Financial habilines
(1) Borrowmngs 8 - - =
(it)Trade Payables 8 2526.821214 92098.760 - - 2520821.214 YZU8.760
(11) Lease liabilines - 35.136.645 35136.645 -
(1) Other financaal habilines 9 934.527.511 97.008.000 - 934.527.511 97.008.000
{b) Other current labilities 19 460,441 922 84.939.000 - 469.441.922 B4.930.000
(e ) Provisions 15 - - - =
(d) Current tax habilines (Net) 2 ; = = =
Toml current liabiltes 3.930.790.646 274.045.760 35.136.645 - 3.965.927.201 274.045.760
Torl linbilites £8.304.059.278 5.474.045.760 2.109.761.661 - 90.503.820.939 5.474.045.760
Total equity and liabilities 88.203,895.930 5.431.450.448 2.,109.761.661 - 90.403.657.591 5.431.450.448
() i - [0 0
Place: Kinshasa, Democeane Republic of Congo
Dage: 17 January 2024




Varun Beverages RDC SAS

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 December 2023

Date: 17 January 2024

Flace: Kinshasa, Democratic Republic of Congo

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
CDF CDF CDF CDF CDF CDF
Note| 31Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

Income
1 Revenue from operanons 64.873.465 - 64,873,463
u Other Income AR1GT 480 300,000 38167480 300,000
1 Total Income (1 + II) 38.167.480 65.173.465 - 38.167.480 65.173.465
IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed - -

Exeise duty - - -

Purchase of stockan-trade 104.734.728] - 104.734.728

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and - -

work-in-progress

Employee benefits expense 10 . . I

Finance costs 11 - - -l

Deprecianon and amortization expense 12 102.036.198 22,946,929 102.036.198 22.946.929

Other expenses 13 - - - - =

Total expenses (IV) 102.036.198]  127.681.657 2 102.036.198]  127.681.657

v Profit before prioe period items (T11-IV) (6IBOB.T1H) (62.508192) - (63.86B.T18)  (62.508.192)
Vi Prior perind items - : i 2
VIl Profit before tx (V-VI) (63.868.718)|  (62.508.192) - (63.868.718)|  (62.508.192)
VI Tax expense:

(1) Curcent tax < 2 4

(2) Adjustment of tx relating w earlier periods - = < P =

(2) Deferred tax - - - - -
IX  Profit for the reporting period (VII-VIIT) (63.868.718)|  (62.508.192) - - (63.808.718)]  (62.508.192)
X Total comprehensive income for the year, net of ax (63.868.718)]  (62.508.192) - (63.868.718)]  (62.508.192)

<=




VB_RDIC SAS
Cash Flow Statement as on 31st Dec 2023

Cash Flow (CDF)

As at 31st Dec 2023

As at 31st Dec 2022

Cash Flow From operations
PAT
Depreciation
Interest on Loan
Interest Income
Working Capital Changes
Inventory
Debtors
Security deposit paid
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

i) Contractors and suppliers

(63.868.718)

(22.964.906)

(132.751.128)

(175.136.915)

(62:508.192)

(105.760.000)

(194.643.776)

ii) Advance to Employce (22.945.740)
Trade Payable 2434.722.454 92.098.760
Other Current Liabilites
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 837.519.511 91.008.000
Employee related payables 6.000.000
Duties & taxes payables 384.502.922 84.939.000
Security deposit received
Toral (A) 3.239.077.480 (88.866.208)
Cash Flow From Investments
Capex
(a) Property, plant and equipment (880.634.119) (111.239.071)
(b) Capital work in progress (33.602.792.816) @.124.116741)
(c) Other non-current assets (36.552.543.676) -
Interest Income
Total (B) (71.035.970.611) (4.235.355.812)
Cash Flow From Financing
Equity Change in Sahreholders Equity 6.300.681 19.912.880
Debt i) From Financial Institution 15.999.448.067 -
ii)From Parent Company 63.263.820.564 5.200.000.000
Interest -
Total (C) 79.269.569.313 5.219.912.880
Total Cash Flow (A+B+C) 11.472.676.182 895.690.860

Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents

895.690.860
12.368.367.042

895.690.860

Diff check




Varun Beverages RDC SAS

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

11 Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of CDF 20,000 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

(In CDF)
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2022 1.000 20.000.000
Changes in share capital during the period -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1.000 20.000.000
Changes in share capital during the period - -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 1.000 20.000.000

12 Other Equity

Particulars Promoter contribution in equity Retained earnings Total
Balance as at 01 January 2022 - (87.120) (87.120)
Profit for the year ended - (62.508.192) (62.508.192)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 - (62.595.312) (62.595.312)
Profit for the year ended - (63.868.718) (63.868.718)
ESOP granted 6.300.681 6.300.681
Balance as at 31 December 2023 6.300.681 (126.464.029) (120.163.348)

Plac Kinshasa, Democratic Republic of Congo
Date 17 January 2024

For and on behalf of Varun Beveragks RDC SAS

\ /\'/
Q}o/\‘ L”)- Whéle Time Director
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Varun Beverages RDC SAS

1C  Right of use assets

(IN CDF)
Land leasehold Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 January 2023 i g
Additions for the year 2.345398.315 2.345.398.315
Disposals for the year -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 2.345.398.315 2.345.398.315

Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciation charge for the period 96.057.269 96.057.269
Reversal on disposals for the year

Balance as at 01 January 2023

Balance as ar 31 December 2023 96.057.269 96.057.269

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2023 2.249.341.046 2.249.341.046

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 01 January 2022

Additions for the year

Disposals for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022 -
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 01 January 2022

Depreciation charge for the year

Reversal on disposals for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022 -

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2022




Varun Beverages RDC SAS

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023

Before IND AS IND AS-ADJUSTMENT Total
CDF | CDF CDF | cprF CDF | CDF
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
1 Property, plant and equipment Note 1A 991.873.190 111239071 - 991.873.190 111.239.071
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
1B. Capital work in progress Note 113 37.726.909.557 4124116741 (139.579.385) - 37.587.330.171 4124116741
As at As at As at As ar As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
1C) Righrtof use assers - - 2.249.341.046 - 2.249.341.046 -
2. Intangible assets Nowe 2 - - - a
2. Non-current loans
As ar As at As at As at As mt As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Loan to related Partes -
Other Loans
4. Other financial assets
As at As at As at As ar As ar As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Bank deposits having maturity more than 12 months B =
Security deposits 238511128 105.760.000 - - 238511128 105.760.000
Interest acerved on loans
Income accrued on Invesmments
238.511.128 105.760.000 - - 238,511,128 105.760.000
5. Non Current tax assets
As ar As ar As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
MAT credit enntlement - - - - -
Income tax paid (includes amount paid under protest)
6. Other non-current assets
As at As ar As at As art As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 3 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Capital advances 36.552.543.676 - 36.552.543.6706
Advances other than capital advances
(@) Security Deposits - - - -
(b) Advances to relared parties
(e ) Other Advances
Balance with stanurory authorities (paid under protest)
Prepaid expenses
36.552.543.676 - - - 36.552.543.676 -
7. Inventories
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dee 2023 31 Dec 2022
(a) Raw material - = - k =
(b) Raw material in transit = = -
() Work-in-progress = * 5 =
(d) Inteemediate goods
(e} Finished goods - - - - - -
(f) Swores and spares 22.064.906 - Y = 22964906 .
22.964.906 - -\ - 22.964.906 -




Varun Beverages RDC SAS

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial smtements for the period ended 31 December 2023

8. Trade receivables

As ar As at As at As at As at As ar
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

Trade receivable, considered good - Unsecured 5 - s £

Trade receivable, considered good - Secured - - - " »

Trade recetvable - Credit impaired & < E 5 = =

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses - = - = = T
3. Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at As at As at As ar As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Balance wath banks

- On current accounts 4.500.121.122 591.830.340 - - 4.500.121.122 891.830.340

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 7.852.404.965 - - - 7.852.404.965 -
Cash and cash equivalents

- Cheques/ drafs on hand & = = s = =

- Cash on hand 15.840.955 3.860.520 - - 15.840.955 3.860.520

12.368.367.042 £95.690.860 - - 12.368.367.042 895.690.860
10. Other current financial assets
As at As at As at As ar As ar As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Claims receivable - - - - - -
Advance to Employees 22.945.740 - - - 22945.740 -
22945740 - - - 22.945.740 G
4. Other current assers
As at As at As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stared)
Advances to:

Contractors and suppliers 264308610 194.643.776 - - 264.308.610 194.643.776
Prepaid expenses 101.391.070 B - - 101.591.070 -
Balance with stanatory/ government authorities 3.881.011 - - - 3.881.011 -
Advances Recoverable in cash or kind - - - - 2

369.780.691 194.643.776 - - 369.780.691 194.643.776

RCCM - L0 KKE BCCN 72-5-05289
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5. Equirty share capital

As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Authorised share capital 10,000 10,000 10000 10,000
& - 10.000 10.000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Eqquity shares of CDF 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up 20,000.000 20,000.000 20,000.000 20,000.000
20.000.000 20.000.000 20.000,000 20.000.000
6. Other equity
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Foreign eurrency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - 5
Add: Adjustment during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - | - = =
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period/ year (62.595.312) (87.120) (62.595.312) (87.120)
Add: Profit for the reporting period/ year (63.868.718) (62.508.192) (63.868.718) (62.508.192)
Balance at the end of the reporting period/year (126.464.029) (62595.312) (126.464.029) (62.595.312))
Promoter contribution in equity 6.300.6581 6.300.681 -
(120.163.348) [ (62.595.312) (120.163.348) (62595312




Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023

7. Borrowings
As at As at As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Term loans (secured)
From banks 15.999.448.067 - - - 15.999.448.067 -
Termloan (unsecured)
from a Parent Company 68.463.820.564 5.200.000.000 - - 68,463.820.564 5.200.000.000
Deferred value added tax (unsecured)
84.463,268.632 5.200.000.000 - - 84.463.268.632 5.200.000.000
Varun Beverages RDC SAS
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023
Non Current lease liabilites
le:we Liabilines - - 2074625016 - 2074.625.016 -
- - 2.074.625.016 - 2.074.625.016 i
15. Provisions
As at As As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits
Granity 2 . . . B E
Compensated absences - i = = = =
Liability for foreign currency derivative contract = - = = - -
. Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity - ” - " = .
Compensated absences - - . - - =
16. Current borrowings
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dee 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Loans repayable on demand from:
A body corporate (unsecured)
Others (Unsecured)
Banks-working capital facilities (secured) - - = = - -
8. Trade payables
As at As at As ar As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dee 2022
Trade pavables
Total outstanding dues 1© micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 2 = - -
Tomwl oustanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 2526.821.214 92.098.760 - - 2526.821.214 92.098.760
smuall enterprises
"
2.526.821.214 92.098.760 - - [ 2.526.821.214 92.098.760
Current lease liabilities
Lease liabililites - - 35.136.645 - 35.136.645 -
- - 35.136.645 - 35.136.645 -

9. Other Current financial liabilities
L




As ar As ar As at As at As at As ar
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 | 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Current maturities of long-term debt - - e = = E
Interest acerued bur not due on borrowings = = = = g
Interest payable to parent company #35.380537 91.008.000 - - 835.380.537 91008000
Capital creditors - - = » .
Employee relared payables - 6.000.000 - * - G00.000
Unpaid Dividend _ = = _ .
Security deposits . = 5 = i 2
BG commission payable to Parent company 99.146.974 - - - 09.146.974 -
934,527,511 97.008.000 - - 934.527.511 97.008.000
19. Other current liabilities
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Advances from customers - - - % = =
Stanutory dues payable 469,441,922 84.939.000 - - 469.441.922 54,939,000
469.441.922 84.939.000 - - 469.441.922 84.939.000
20. Current tax liabilities (net)
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Provision for tax, net of prepaid taxes - A = = =
10. Revenue from operations
As at As at As at As at As at As ar
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Revenue from operations (gross)

Sale of products - 64.873.465 - - - 64.873.465
Other operating revenue

Scrap sales - - - - - -

- 64.873.465 - - - 64.873.465
Varun Beverages RDC SAS
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023
21. Other income
As at As at As at As at As at As ar
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Interest on:

-bank deposits 38167480 - - - 38.167.480 -
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translatons - - - - - -
Excess provisions written back - - - - - -
Gain on sale of fived assers (net) - - - - - -
Miscellaneous Income - 300.000 - - - 300,000
Amortisanon of government grant - - = - - -

38.167.480 300.000 - - 3B.167.480 300.000
22, Cost of materials consumed
As at As at As at As art As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventories at beginning of the reporting period/year - = - - -
Purchases during the reporting period/year (net) - = = = s -
= g = / AG =
Sold during the reporting period,/ year - = = b <b(-,\'ER GES'? -
Inventories at end of the reporting period/ vear £ - S /_NO . i
AY :? / o
- - 13 —\p\-
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23, Purchases of raded goods

As at As ar As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Heverages - 104.734.728 - - - 104.734.728
Others
- 104.734.728 - - - 104.734.728
24. Changes in invenwries of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
As at As at As at As ar As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
As at the beginning of the reporting period/year
Finished goods - - N - = =
Intermediate gnods - - - - - ~
Work in progress - - = > = -
As at the closing of the reporting period/year
Finished goods = - % = L
Intermediate goods = - - 2 -
Work in progress - - - . .
Finished goods used as fixed assers . - : . - &
10. Employee benefits expense
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Salaries and wages = - = = = =
Contribution to provident and other funds - - - » - -
Staff welfare expenses - = - - -
Share based payments - - - e & -
11. Finance costs
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Interest on:
Term loans = = = = = =
Working capital facilities = - = = " 5
Others - - - = - =
Loan from Parent Company/ Subsidiary - = = - 3 -
Other borrowing costs: = -
Processing fees - - - - - -
Finance Costs (INDAS) - - - - - -
Varun Beverages RDC SAS
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2023
12, Depreciation and amortisation expense
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Depreciaton on mngible assets 102.036.198 22946929 = - 102.036.198 22.946.929
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - » -
R, W
Deprecianon on ROU - - ~ - CRAGE . =
102.036.198 | 22.946.929 - - | 7 aldi03e e 23,946,929
7 L%/
/ "oy // O
o
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13, Other expenses

As at
31 Dec 2023

As at
31 Dec 2022

As at
31 Dec 2023

As at
31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

As at As at
31 Dec 2022

Power and fuel
Repairs © plant and equipment
Repairs o builldings
Other eepairs
Consumprion of stores and spares
Rent
Rates and raxes
Insurance
Printing and smtionery
Communication
Travelling and conveyance
Payment to the auditors as
Auwdit and reviews
Taxation marters
Other matters
Reimbursement of expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance
Lease and hire charges
Management Fee
Security and service charges
Professional charges and consultancy
Bank charpes
Advertisement and sales promoton
Meeting and conference
Royalty
Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net)
Delivery vehicle running and maintenance
Diseribution expenses
Loading and unloading charges
Donations
Property, plant and equipment writien off
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Bad debts and advances written off
Allowanee for expected credit losses
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and rranslanons

General office and other miscellancous expenses

29, Prior period items

As at
31 Dec 2023

As at
31 Dec 2022

As ar
31 Dec 2023

As at
31 Dec 2022

31 Dec 2023

As at As at
31 Dec 2022

COM - L0 VRO PICN 22 B-L328
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Shareholder
Varun Beverages International DMCC
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Report on the audit of the standalone financial statements of Varun Beverages
International DMCC for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Varun Beverages International
DMCC ("the Company"), which comprises the statement of financial position as at December
31, 2023, and statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 and its financial performance
and its cash flows for year ended December 31,2023 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for Small and Medium Sized Entities.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA's). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditors responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the 'International Ethics Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have
fulfilled our other Ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs and their preparation in compliance with the
implementing regulations of DMCC authority, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements,
the management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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VARUN BEVERAGES INTERNATIONAL DMCC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA's
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA's, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism through out the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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VARUN BEVERAGES INTERNATIONAL DMCC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We confirm that the financial statements comply with provisions of Implementing Regulation
2020 issued by the Dubai Multi Commeodities Centre,

TEC PAmcLe Hh

TRC PAMCO Middle East Auditing & Accounting
Reg No: 423

Dubai

January 20, 2024




Varun Beverages International DMCC
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023

(Figures In AED)
Note As on As on
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Assets
1) Naon-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 92,719,426 6,531,777
(b) Capital work in progress 1B = *
(c) Intangible assets 2
[b) Financial assets
(i) Investment 2 37 -
(i) Others 4 31,630 31,630
{e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 - -
{f) Other non-current assets 6 1,836,250 80,639,359
Total non-current assets 94,587,343 87,202,766
2) Current assets
(a) Inventaries T 4,773,167 3,148,534
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables B 3,676,004 9,489,316
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 3 5,714,869 1,476,532
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 1,100,000 .
(iv) Cthers 10 24,275,556 6,654,695
{c) Other current assets 4 19,536,016 1,015,380
Total current assets 59,075,612 21,784,457
153,655‘955 108,987,223
Total assets 153,662,955 108,987,223
Equity and liabilities
3} Equity
(a) Equity share capital 5 1,000,000 1,000,000
(b) Other equity 6
Reserve and Surplus 26,325,593 13,063,699
Equity contribution in compounded financial instruments 108,229 )
Total equity 27,433,823 14,063,699
4) Lliabilities
A)] Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 7 88,874,361 85,200,660
(b) Provisions 15 206,396 | 55,188
Total non-current liabilities A6L, 1233,
B) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 19,110,468 .
{i|Trade Payabies B 9,772,287 8,613,252
{ii)Other financial liabilities 9 B,265,021 1,054,424
(b) Other current liabilities 19 - .
{c ) Provisions 15 v e
Total current liabilities 37,147,775 9,667,676
Total liabilities 126,229,132 94,923,524
Total equity and liabilities Jp2“-1531662,955 108,987,223

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on Jqﬁhqmifgfg%f’:ﬂ&igned on their behalf
by: & .3 b ~3 N

]

For Varun Beverages Internatlonal DMCC

Mr. Satyanarayan‘Sharm
Director
January 20,2024




Varun Beverages International DMCC

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2023

(Figures in AED)

Year Ended | Year Ended
Note | 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022
Income
I Revenue from operations 20 151,052,708] 37,129,750
Il Other Income 21 34,614 7,346,389
Il Total Income (I + 1) 151,087,321| 44,476,139
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - -
Excise duty - -
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 92,041,595 20,090,740
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in- 24 (1,624,633)] (3,148,534)
trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 25 6,029,534 1,194,922
Finance costs 10 8,882,332 1,058,292
Depreciation and amortization expense 11 3,293,516 251,713
Other expenses 12 29,203,083 11,965,306
Total expenses (1V) 137,825,427|  31,412,440|
V  Profit before prior period items (11-1V) 13,261,894 13,063,699
VI Prior period items - -
VIl Profit before tax (V-Vi) 13,261,894, 13,063,699|
Earnings befare interest, tax, depreciation and 25,403,129 7,027,316
amortization (EBITDA)
VIl Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods -
(2) Deferred tax -
IX Profit for the reporting period (VII-VIII) 13,261,894 | 13,063,699
X  Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 13,261,894] 13,063,699

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on January 20, 2024 and

signed on their behalf by:

For Varun Beverages International DMCC

V="

Mr. Satyanarayan Sharma
Director
January 20,2024




Varun Beverages International DMCC

Cash Flow Statement
(Indirect Method)

{Amount in AED)

Particulars Year enﬂidon
31 Dec 2023
A. Operating activities
Profit before tax and share of profit in associates & Joint Venture 13,261,894
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment on property, plant and equipment 3,293,516
Amaortisation of intangible assets and Right of use assels -
Interest expense at amortised cost 8,882,332
Interest income at amortised cost (34,614)
Profit on sale of current investments
Excess provisions written back .
Share based payment to employees 108,229
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant and equipment (Net)
Bad debts and advances written off
Allowance for expected credit loss
Unrealised foreign exchange fluctuation -
Operating profit hefore working capital changes 25,511,358
Working capital adjustments
Increase in inventaries (1,624,633)
Increase in trade receivables 5,813,312
Increase in current and non-current financial assets and other current and non-
current assets (36,141,534)
Increase in current financial liabilities and other current and non-current
liabilities and provisions 8,521,439
Total cash from operatlons 2,079,942
Income tax paid -
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 2,079,942

. Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including
adjustment on account of capital work-in-progress, capital advance paid and
capital creditors)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Interest received

Decraase in other bank balances

Net cash {used in) investing activities (B)

Financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayments of long term borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities

Proceeds/{repayments) from/({of) short term barrowings (Net)
Proceeds from issue of share capital (including share premium thereon)

Interest paid (inclusive of interest paid on lease liabilities)
Dividends paid

n

Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (D=A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year (E)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (F= D+E)

(10,678,053)

34,614
(1,100,000

(11,743,440

3,673,701

19,110,468

(8,882,332)

13,901,836

4,238,338
1,476,532

5,714,870

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on Jonuary 20, 2024 and signed on

their behalf by:
For Varun Beverages International DMCC

e

Mr. Satyanarayan Sharma
Director «¥“0\TFNG 7.

January 20, 2024 E/’"‘\‘fq-.
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Varun Beverages International DMCC

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

11 Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of AED 1000 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up
(Figures In AED)

Particulars Number of
shares Amount
Balance as at 01 January 2022
Changes in share capital during the period 1,000 1,000,000
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1,000 1,000,000
Changes in share capital during the period - -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 1,000 1,000,000
12 Other Equity
(Figures In AED)
Particulars Promoter Retained Total
contribution in| earnings
equity
Balance as at 01 January 2022 - - -
Profit for the year ended 13,063,699 13,063,699
Balance as at 31 December 2022 - 13,063,699 13,063,699
Profit for the period ended 13,261,894 13,261,894
ESOP given to employess 108,229 108,229
Balance as at 31 December 2023 108,229 | 26,325,593 26,433,823

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on January 20, 2024 and

signed on their behalf by:

For Varun Beverages International DMCC

Mr. Satyanarayan Sharma
Director
January 20,2024




Varun Beverages International DMCC
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

A Property, plant and equipment (In AED)

Gross block Buildings ~ Fumiture  Veliieles Cifice Cumputer Aircraft Tutal
und fixtures ayuipment  equipments

Balance as at 1 January 2022 - - = e . 2 2
Additions for the year ended 3,335,121 93,882 3,177,400 166,278 10,810 - 6,783,491
Disposal for the year ended - . « = < =
Balance as at 31 December 2022 3,335,121 93,882 3,177,400 166,278 10,810 = 6,783,491
Additions for the perdod ended 5254241 1,886,947 1,728,600 = - 80,611,375  B9481,163
Disposal for the penod ended - - - - . 2
Balance as at 31 December 2023 8,589,362 1,980,828 4,906,000 166,278 10,810 80,611,375 96,264,654

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2022 - - . = . .
Depreciation charge during the period 83,677 2,389 159,910 4,759 978 - 251,713

Reversal on disposal of assets - - - - - = -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 83,677 2,389 159,910 4,759 978 - 251,713
Depreciation charge during the period 157,557 113,899 667,684 33,256 2,162 2,318,957 3,293,516
Reversal on disposal of assets - . - - . - &
Balance as at 31 December 2023 241,234 116,288 827,595 38,015 3,140 2,318,957 3,545,229
Net block

Balance as at 31 December 2022 3,251,444 91,493 3,017,490 161,519 9,832 - 6,531,777

Balance as at 31 December 2023 8,348,128 1,864,540 4,078,405 128,263 7,670 78,292,418 92,719,426




Varun Beverages International DMCC

|statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

{Figures in AED)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial

As on As on
31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

2. Non-current financials assets

1. Property, plant and equipment Refer Separate Note 92,719,426 6,531,777
As on Ason
31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
1B, Capital work In progress Refer Separate Note - -
Ason As on
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
2. Intangible assets Refer Separate Note - -

As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

|investments

4. Other financial assets

37 -

37 -

As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

Bank depaosits having maturity more than 12 months

Security deposits 31,630 31,630
Interest accrued on loans
Income accrued on Investments
31,630 31,630
5. Non Current tax assets
As on Ason

31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

MAT credit entitlement
Income tax pald (Includes amount paid under protest)

4 ,\— &

BN

oy
r

‘%1,«,:" AW
; ?‘_""?‘.E-.;b;IHEE;ﬁ“QA‘



Varun Beverages International DMCC

statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

6. Other non-current assets

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financiall

As an As on
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec2022
Capital advances 1,836,250 80,639,359
Advances other than capital advances
(a) Security Deposits - -
(b) Advances to related parties
(c ) Other Advances
Balance with statutory authorities (paid under protest)
Prepaid expenses
1,836,250 80,639,359
7. Inventories
As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
(a) Raw material - -
(b) Raw material in transit - s
(c) Work-in-progress % .
(d) Intermediate goods
() Finished goods 4,773,167 3,148,534
(f) Stores and spares 2 -
4,773,167 3,148,534
Varun Beverages International DMCC
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
8, Trade receivables
As on Ason
31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Trade receivable, considered good - Unsecured 3,676,004 9,489,316
Trade receivable, considered good - Secured - -
Trade receivable - Credit impaired - -
3,676,004 9,489,316
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses - -
3,676,004 9,489,316




Varun Beverages International DMCC

statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial

As on Ason
31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Balance with banks

- On current accounts 5,653,514 1,439,685

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
Cash and cash equivalents

- Cheques/drafts on hand - -
- Cash on hand 61,354 36,846
5,714,869 1,476,532
4. Other bank balances
As on Ason
31Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 1,100,000 -
months
1,100,000 -
10. Other current financial assets
As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Claims receivable - -
Advance to Employees 70,410 -
Other receivable 24,205,146 6,654,695
24,275,556 6,654,695
4. Other current assets
Ason Ason
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances to:

Contractors and suppliers 19,386,894 825,605
Prepaid expenses 149,122 189,774
Balance with statutory/government authorities -

Other Advances - -
19,536,016 1,015,380




Varun Beverages International DMCC |
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financiall
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
5. Equity share capital
As on Ason
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Authorised share capital =
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of AED 1000 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up 1,000,000 1,000,000
1,000,000 1,000,000
|6. Other equity
As on Ason
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Add: Adjustment during the year -
Balance at the end of the year - -
|Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period/year 13,063,699 -
Less: Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - -
Less: Dividend Paid -
Less: Taxes on Dividend Paid - -
Add: Profit for the reporting period/year 13,261,894 13,063,699
Balance at the end of the reporting period/year 26,325,594 13,063,699
26,325,594 13,063,699
7. Borrowings
As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Term loans (secured)
From banks - -
Term loan (unsecured) -
from a Parent Company 88,874,361 85,200,660
Deferred value added tax (unsecured) - -
88,874,361 85,200,660




Varun Beverages International DMCC

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial
|statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

15. Provisions
As on Ason
31Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 206,996 55,188
Compensated absences - -
Liability for foreign currency derivative contract - -
206,996 55,188
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity - -
Compensated absences - -
16. Current borrowings
Ason As on

31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

Loans repayable on demand from:

A body corporate (unsecured) - -
Others (Unsecured) - -
Banks-working capital facilities (secured) 19,110,468 -

19,110,468 -

B. Trade payables

As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

Trade payables
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and sma 9,772,287 8,613,252

9,772,287 8,613,252

: :{-'l::‘_'-r“
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Varun Beverages International DMCC

statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
9. Other Current financial liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financiall

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales

As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Current maturities of long-term debt - -
Interest payable to parent company 8,078,733 877,609
|Capital creditors = =
Employee related payables 7,345 2,567
Unpaid Dividend - -
Security deposits - -
BG Commission payable 178,943 174,248
8,265,021 1,054,424
19. Other current liabilities
As on Ason
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Advances from customers - -
Statutory dues payable - -
Other payables - -
20. Revenue from operations
Yearended Year ended
31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
Revenue from operations (gross)
Sale of products 108,731,773 19,682,995
Rendering of services 42,320,935 17,446,755

21. Other income

151,052,708 37,129,750

Yearended Year ended
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Interest on:

-bank deposits 34,614 -
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and - -
translations
Excess provisions written back - -
Gain on sale of fixed assets (net) - -
Miscellaneous Income - 7,346,389
Amortisation of government grant g . .

o zn} Iy S,
= NN
34,614 7,346,389




Varun Beverages International DMCC |

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financiall
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

22. Cost of materials consumed

Yearended Year ended
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventories at beginning of the reporting period/year =
Purchases during the reporting period/year (net) -

Sold during the reporting period/year
Inventories at end of the reporting period/year -

23. Purchases of traded goods

Yearended Year ended
31Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

Beverages

|Others 92,041,595 20,090,740

92,041,595 20,090,740

24, Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Yearended Yearended
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

As at the beginning of the reporting period/year

Finished goods 3,148,534
Intermediate goods : 3
Work in progress = -

3,148,534 -

As at the closing of the reporting period/year

Finished goods 4,773,167 3,148,534
Intermediate goods . .

Wark in progress = =
4,773,167 3,148,534

|Finished goods used as fixed assets

(1,624,633)  (3,148,534)

LWES
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Varun Beverages International DMCC

|statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

25. Employee benefits expense

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information on the financiall

Yearended Year ended
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

Salaries and wages
LContribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

10. Finance costs

5,522,166 1,178,628

507,369 16,294

6,029,534 1,194,922

Year ended  Year ended
31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

Interest on:

Term loans

Working capital facilities

Bank Guarantee fees to Parent company
Loan from Parent Company/ Subsidiary
|Other borrowing costs:

Processing fees

Finance Costs (INDAS)

11. Depreciation and amortisation expense

1,014,462 7,708
646,836 174,248

7,221,033 876,336

8,882,332 1,058,292

Yearended Year ended
31 Dec2023 31 Dec 2022

|Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

3,293,516 251,713

3,293,516 251,713




|varun Beverages International DMCC

]

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on the financial|

statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

12. Other expenses
Yearended  Year ended
31Dec2023 31 Dec 2022
|Power and fuel 2,872 2,655
Repairs to plant and equipment - %
Repairs to buildings 163,755 2,159,713
Other repairs 10,253 -
Consumption of stores and spares - »
Rent 68,750 239,705
Rates and taxes 1,213,238 112,144
Insurance 25,275 13,130
Printing and stationery 50,626 19,905
Communication 108,029 49,664
Travelling and conveyance 3,778,114 6,286,818
Payment to the auditors as - -
Audit and reviews 52,500 51,500
Taxation matters - -
Other matters . -
Reimbursement of expenses = =
Vehicle running and maintenance 16,706,587 326,404
Lease and hire charges o =
Management Fee - -
Security and service charges 21,867 16,922
Professional charges and consultancy 3,707,645 2,208,712
Bank charges 677,926 348,756
Advertisement and sales promotion - -
Meeting and conference 2,206,717 -
Rovyalty - =
Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net) - -
Delivery vehicle running and maintenance - -
Distribution expenses - -
Loading and unloading charges ' - -
Donations % #
Property, plant and equipment written off - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) - -
Bad debts and advances written off - -
Allowance for expected credit losses - -
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and 145,741 30,506
translations
General office and other miscellaneous expenses 263,190 98,772
29,203,083 11,965,306
29. Prior period items
Year ended  Year ended
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022




Varun Beverages South Africa (PTY) Ltd

Balance sheet as on 31 December 2023

Particular Amountin ZAR
Assets

Bank account 1,683.47

Advance to vendor 6,242.50
Total Assets 7,925.97
Equity Share capital 10,000.00
Other Equity (2,074.03)
Total Liabilities 7,925.97

For Varun Beverages South Africa (PTY) Ltd

SDJ\M—HD
Date: D uloan

Y.P. Gulati
Place: 'S (o\ [ 201\\ (Director)




Varun Beverages South Africa (PTY) Ltd

Statement of Profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023

Particular Amount in ZAR
Revenue -
Expenses
Professional Fee 2,012.50
Bank Charges 61.53
2,074.03
Profit before tax (2,074.03)
Tax expenses -
Profit After tax (2,074.03)

For Varun Beverages South Africa (PTY) Ltd

&mw\&,:a
Date: b Us—QoCux : Y.P. Gulati

Place: Cj\ o\ k e )/.,( (Director)



LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st DECEMBER, 2023

{Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note AS AT AS AT
Particulars No. 31ST DECEMBER |} 31ST DECEMBER 2022
2023
Assets
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 9,637.61 5,419.89
b} Capital work in progress 3(b) 236.85 -
¢) Right-of-use asset 3{c) - 92.03
d) Financial assets
i) Other financial assets 4 80.77 102.64
€) Other non current assets 5 716.61 1,375.89
Total non-current assets i 10,671.84 6,990.55 }
Current assets
a) inventories 6 2,329.63 1,836.26
b) Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 7 1,287.88 6,243.98
ii) Cash & cash equivalents 8 2,205.06 4,341.38
iii) Other bank balances 9 5,690.37 1,416,33
iv) Other financial assets 4 220.54 118.34
¢) Other current assets 5 1,145.29 362.15
Total current assets | 12,878.77 14,348.44 |
Total assets { 23,550.61 21,338.99 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 10 99.50 99.50
b) Other equity 11 17,637.39 13,565.20
Total equity | 17,736.89 13,664.70 |
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a)Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 12 1,002.82 2,368.93
if) Lease liabilities 13 - 32.21
b) Provisions 14 82,76 63.14
¢) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 532.68 68.55
Total non-current liabilties i 1,618.26 2,532.83 |
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 12 1,479.71 2,894.86
ii) Lease liabilities 13 - 82.82
iii) Trade payables :
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 16 1.72 57.77
Dues to Others 16 1,546.33 993.68
iv} Other financial liabifities 17 78.92 58.82
b} Other current liabilities 18 825.15 301.40
c) Provisions 14 9.69 7.99
d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 19 253.93 744.02
Total current liabilities l 4,195.45 5,141.46 |
Total liabilities { 5,813.71 7,674,29 |
Total equity & liabilities i 23,550.61 21,338.99 |

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the

In terms of our report of even date annexed

ATUL AGGA

WAL

PARTNER N L/
MG. DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
M.No. 92856 {DIN:-00061354) (DIN:-02745454)
Place: New Delhi
Dated:
~H i %“}‘{




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2023

(Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated) )

. For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars NoteNo. | 31stDecember 2023 | '31st December 2022 l
Income
Revenue from operations 20 20,011.04 22,813.70
Other income 21 365.56 569.89

Total income | 20,376.60 | 23,383.59 |
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 22 10,707.12 11,532.34
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 491.10 1,588.20
Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 23 -207.92 380.88
Work-in-progress
Employee benefit expenses 24 791.74 72327
Finance costs 25 120.22 152.73
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 961.16 819.02
QOther expenses 27 2,112.10 1,668.85
Total expenses B 14,975.52 16,866.29 |
Profit before exceptional items & tax | 5,401.08 6,517.29 |
Exceptional items
Depreciation of earlier years - .
Profit before tax | 5,401.08 6,517.29 l
Tax expenses
Current tax
Current year 825.24 1,685.74
Adjustment of earlier years 36.18 75.26
Deferred Tax 464.97 -32.22
Profit for the year i 4,074.70 4,788.51 |
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit & loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit -3.35 -3.40
Less: Deferred tax on above item -0.84 -0.86
Total Other comprehensive income | -2.50 2.54 |
Total comprehensive income i 4,072.19 4,785.97 |
Earning per share (Basic / Diluted) ( Rs.) 44 409.51 481.25
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements.

in terms of our report of even date annexed
FOROPBAGLA&COLLP
CHARTERED]ACCOUNTANTS

FRN 000018N{N500091

ATUL AGGARWAL

M.No. 92656
Place: New Delhi
Dated:

&\\\ W

MG. DIRECTOR
(DIN:-00061354)

IVEK GUPTA SHARAD §

(DIN:-02745454)



LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Dec, 2023

I} Equity share capital {Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Balance as at January 1, 2022 99.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
[Balance as at December 31, 2022 I | | 99.50 |
Changes in equity share capital during the year .
[Batance as at Dec 31, 2023 [ | [ 99.50 |

1f} Other equity

Reserve & Surplus
Other
Particulars Retained earnings | Capital Reserve| comprehensive Total
income
As at January 1, 2022 ' ) 8,847.53 -66.00 -2.31 8,779.22
Profit / Loss for the year 4,788.51 - - 4,788.51
R ement gains/iosses on defined employment benefit (Net of . - 2.54 2.54
Taxes)
As at December 31, 2022 13,636,04 -66.00 -4.85 13,565.20
Reserve & Surplus
Other
Particulars Retained eamings | Capital Reserve| comprehensive Total
income
As at January 1, 2023 . 13.6365.04 -66.00 -4.85 13.565.20
Profit / Loss for the year 4,074.70 - - 4,074.70
'Remeasurement gainsfiosses on defined employment benefit (Net of N N 250 250
Taxes)
Balance as at Dec 31, 2023 17,710.74 17,637.39

In terms of our report of even date annexed
FORO P BAGLA & COLLP

CHARTERER ACCOUNTANTS

FRN 00001/; N§00

M.NG. 92656
PLACE : NEW DELHI
DATED :

24 \\ WM

DIREETOR

(DIN:-02745458)




LUNARMECH TECHNOL OGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR Y.E. 31.12.2023

{Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

|Particulars | 31.12.2023 31.12.2022 ]
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extra ordinary items 5,401.08 6,517.29
Adustment for :
Depreciation 961.16 819.02
Interest Paid 120.22 152.73
Remeasurement of pest employment benefit -3.35 -3.40
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets -5.64 1.48
Interest on Lease hiabilities 7.52 15.61
Unwinding of interest on security deposit -3.17 -2.42
Gain on Derecognition of Financial instrument -8.07 -
Interest Received -360.82 . -175.76
Operating Profit before Working Capital Facilities ] 6,108.93 | 7,324.55 |
Adjustment for :
Trade & Other Receivable 4,785.18 -4,948.09
Inventories -493.36 34.66
Trade Payabie 1,061.67 317.48
Cash generated from operation | 11,462.42 2,728.60 |
Direct Taxes Paid -1,351.37 -1,584.54
Net Cash Flow from operating activities | 10,111.05 1,144.06 |
B. Cash Flow From Investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets -5,111.49 -1,092.95
Capital work in progress -236.85 -
Sale of Fixed Assets 6.00 -
Interest Received 360.82 175.76

- Qutftow for Bank Depusits with more than 3 months maturity -4,274.04 1,398.19
Net Cash used in investing activities | -9,255.56 481.01 |

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from/Repayment of fong term borrowings -1,366.11 -1,748.44
Proceeds from/Repayment of Short Term borrowings -1,415.15 2,894.86
Payment of lease liabilities -90.33 -80.70
Interest Paid ' -120.22 -152.73
Net Cash used In financing activities | -2,991.81 903.00 |
Net increase/{decrease) In cash & cash equivalents -2,136.32 2,528.07
Cash & Cash equivalent Opening 4,341.38 1,813.32
Cash & Cash equivalent Closing | 2,205.06 4,341.38 |
Notes:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as setout intheInd AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows".

In terms of our report of even date annexed
FOROPBAGLA&COLLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

M.No. 92656 {DIN:-00061354) {DIN:-02745454)

PLACE :DELHI

AN




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD.

{Ammunt in Rupeses Lacs, unfess otherwise stated)

3(a) Property, plant and equipment
PARTICULAR Free Hold Land | Building Plant & Office Abreamaditi |F sre & Lab Sotar Plant Tatal
& Site i Ei i oner Fixtutus

Cost ]
As at January 01, 2022 | .00 88,01 9,188.58 1217 21.83 1881 16.04 1174 19.24 2.59 - 9,377.02
Additions 1.077.76 1246 840 - 1.22 - 0.1 109295

als - - -
As at December 31, 2022 200 86.01 10,266.34 2563 2223 18.81 16.04 12.96 19.24 2,70 - 10,489.97
Additions kxxXo] 1,781.02 - 9.89 128 445 3.0¢ - 2,978.73 5,111.49
Dispossis - 716 718
As at 31,2023 333.01 86.01 12,040.20 2583 3223 2009 16.04 1741 2228 270 297873 15,574.30
As at Junuary 01, 2022 - 60.72 4,167.51 7.86 1879 11.88 1524 7.53 15863 0.41 - 4,302.57
Depresigtion change for the year B850 73338 1.85 0.58 082 - 1.78 0.39 0.22 74752
As at Decamber 31, 2022 . 69.32 4,900.89 9.81 16.28 1250 15.24 9.31 16.02 0.63 - 5050.09
Deprecistion charge for the year 883 785.13 3487 138 1.18 9.00 291 058 032 82.30 893.41
Disposals - 6.80 §.80
As at D: 31,2023 - 7788 5,679.23 13.68 17.77 1387 15.24 12.22 16.70 0.85 £89.30 5,338.70
Net Bioek )
As at Dae 31,2023 333.1 8.06 6,360.98 11.96 1446 542 0.80 5.19 5,55 1.75 2,889.44 9,637.60 §
As at 31, 2022 £.00 16.69 538645 15.83 .36 632 0.80 365 3.23 207 - 5,419.89




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD.

3(b)CWIP as at 31 December 2023

(Amount in Rupees Lacs, uniess otherwise stated)

Particular Amount
Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at 01 January 2023 -
Addition for the year 236.85
Transfer to Property/ Plant & Machinery -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 236.85
CWIP as at 31 December 2022

Particular Amount

Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at 01 January 2022

Addition for the year

Transfer to Property/ Plant & Machinery

Balance as at 31 December 2022




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD. )
(Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3(c) Right-of-use asset -

AS AT AS AT
31ST DECEMBER 31ST DECEMBER
Particulars 2023 2022
Buildings (Refer Note- 35) - 92.03
{ - 92.03 |
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and movements during the period.
BUILDINGS BUILDINGS
As at January 01, 2022 163.53 235.03
Addition/(Deletion) - .
Amortization expense 71.50 71.50
As at December 31, 2022 [ 92.03 163.53 ]
Addition/(Deletion) - -
Amortization expense ' 67.75 71.50
Derecognition of ROU 24.28

As at December 31, 2023 | -0.00 92.03 |




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements

(Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Other Financial Assets Non-current Current
AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '318T
DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022 | DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022
PARTICULARS
Security deposits B80.77 102.64 17.46 2.51
Claim Receivable - - 37.88 53.17
Other recoverable - - 165.20 62.65
Pre-Spent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses - - - -
| 80.77 | 102.64 | 220.54 | 118.34 |
Other Assets Non-current Current
AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT *31ST AS AT *31ST
DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022 | DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022
PARTICULARS
Capital Advance 716.61 1,375.99 - -
Balance With Govt. Authorities - - 950.25 21.65
Advances to Suppliers, Contractors & Others - - 30.43 321.00
Prepaid expenses/Amount recoverable - - 164.61 49.59
I 716.61 | 1,375.99 | 1,145.29 | 392.15 |




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements
(Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS As At As At
31ST DECEMBER 2023 31ST DECEMBER 2022

6 Inventories
(As certified by the management)

Raw Material 1,446.73 1,408.08
Raw Material Inventories in transit 269.49 56.87
Packing Material 15.47 2413
Semi Finished Goods - 33.50
Fuel (Deisel) 2.76 -
Finished Goods - : 130.59 0.75
Finished Goods-in Transit 320.52 208.94
Stores, Spares and Others 144.07 103.98
TOTAL l 2,329.63 | 1,836.26 |
Note:

For mode of valuation refer Accounting policy number 2.8




LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes of the financial statements

(Amount in Rupess Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS
AS AT AS AT
31ST DECEMBER  31ST DECEMBER
2023 2022
7 Trade receivables
Trade Receivable considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured 1,287.88 6,243.98
Trade Receivable which have significant incresse in credit Risk, and . .
Trade Reteivable - Credit Impaired T . .
TOTAL 1,287.88 | 6,243,98 |

Note:
1 Refer Note no 34 for related party disclosures
2 Additional disclosures
AS ON 31-12-2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particutars . Not Due Less than s!s mionths -1 Total
veur 1-2years | 2-3years | Morethan 3 Years

(i} Undisputed Trade receivables considered good - 1.287.88 | - - - - 1,287.88
(it} Undisputed Trade Receivables which have significant increase in

credit risk - - . - - .

{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables credit impaired - - - - - B -
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - M - . .
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables which have significant increase in

credit risk - - . - - - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables credit impaired . - . . - - N

AS ON 31-12-2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particula . Not D 516 months -

- i otbue  |Less tml : & Symﬁs 1 1-2years | 2-3years | Morethan 3 Years Total
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables considered good - 4903.85| 1340.13 0 0 0 6243.98
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables which have significant increase in
credit risk - - - - - .- -
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables credit impaired . . . . R R .
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables which have significant increase in
credit risk - . - - - - -

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables credit impaired - - - - - - .




8 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-In Current Account
-Deposits with maturity with in three months
(Lien Marked Rs 980.16 lacs) (Previous year Rs 577.89 lacs)
-Chegques/Remittance in transit
Cash on hand

TOTAL I

For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalent comprises of the

following:
Balances with banks
Cash on hand

9 Other bank balances

Bank Deposit with more than three months maturity
(Lien Marked Rs.NIL (Previous year Rs.NIL )

1,007.91 5.82
1,144.06 3,267.88
51.11 1,066.90
1.98 0.78
2,205.06 | 4,341.38 |
2,203.08 4,340.60
1.98 0.78
| 2,205.06 | 4,341.38 |
5,690.37 1,416.33
5,690.37 1,416.33 |

TOTAL ' |




10 Equity share capital

AUTHORISED
1,100,000 Shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each 110.00 110.00
(Previous Year 1,100,000, equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each)

| 110.00 110.00 |
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP
995,020 Shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each. 99.50 99.50
(Previous year 995,020 Shares of par value of Rs.
10/- each)

| 99.50 | , 99.50 |
Notes:

a) The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding as at the begining and end of the year.

[ Equity share capital | | 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31ST DECEMBER 2022 |
No. of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,95,020 . 9,95,020
Add: Equity shares issued as fully paid up shares.

No. of Shares outstanding at the end of the year | 9,95,020 | 9,95,020 |

b)The company has anly one class of equity shares having a par value of * 10/- each. The holders of the equity shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their share
holding at the meetings of shareholders. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive assets of the Company remaining after settlement of all liabilities. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Varun Beverages Limited is the holding company of the company, holding 597645 equity shares of the company.

d) Following Shareholders hold shares more than 5% of the total equity shares of the company.

Name of the shareholder 31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December , 2022
Varun Beverages Limited 597645(50.07%) 547645(55.04%)
Lunarmech Investments & Holdings NIL 50000(5.03%)
Mr.Vivek Gupta 397159(39.91%) 397159(39.91%)

e) The company has not issued any bonus shares or shares pursuant to contract without payment being recovered in
cash during the period of last 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. However the company has issued
735000 equity shares during the FY 20-21 in persuent to the scheme of amalgamation without payment being recovered

in cash.
S. No.|Promoter’ Name No. of Shares %age of shares held
1 |Varun Beverages Limited 597645 60.07
2 |Vivek Gupta | 397159 39.91
3 |Vivek gupta (HUF) , 108 0.01
4 |Shalini Gupta Jointly with Vivek Gupta 108 0.01
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a)

b)

Other equity

Retained Earning

As per Last balance Sheet

Add: Net Profit after Tax

Remeasurement gains/losses on defined employment benefit

Total-(A)

Capital Reserve
As per Last balance Sheet

Total-(B)

Total-(A+B)

13,631.20

8,845.23

4,074.70 4,788.51

-2.50 -2.54
17,703.39 | 13,631.20 |

-66.00 -66.00
-66.00 | -66.00 |
17,637.39 | 13,565.20 |
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Borrowings Non-current Current
AS AT '348T AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT "31ST
DECEMEER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022 | DECEMBER 2023 { DECEMBER 2022
PARTICULARS
Secured term loan from Banks :
- Foreign Currency Loans (Buyers credit)
-Indusind Bank -SBLC-3B (Repayable on 10/01/2024 and rate of interest 982.82 951.22 - -
is Euribor+88 bps PA)
<Indusind Bank -SBLC-3A (Repayable on 28/12/2023 and rate of interest - 951.22 - -
is Euribor+88 bps PA))
- Indusind Bank -SBLC-2 (Repayable on 20/02/2023 and rate of interest is - 950.96 - -
Euribor+55 bps PA)
- Indusind Bank -SBLC-1 (Repayable on 10/01/2023 and rate of interest is - 950.96 - -
Euribor+48 bps PA)
Indusind Bank Buyer's Credit ( CG )-SBLC-4 (Repayable on 31/05/2024 486.89 466.49 - -
rate of interest is Euribor+88 bps PA))
indusind Bank Buyer's Credit ( CG )-SBLC-5 (Repayable on 14/04/2025 652.82 951.22 - -
rate of interest is Euribor+75 bps PA))
Term Loan Hdfc Bank Jammu Project : 10.00 - - -
HDFC BANK C.A. - 05720330000235 - - - 41.73
Current maturities of long term debt, discolsed under current borrowing -1,478.71 -2,853.14 1,479.71 2,853.14
| 1,002.82 | 2,368.93 | 1,479.71 | 2,894.86 |
Notes:

A) Term loan in the form of Buyers credit against Standby letter of Credit (SBLC) taken from Indusind Bank
i) The securities are as follows:

a) First and Exclusive charge on Hypothecation of entire Plant & Machinery funded by Indusind Bank.

b) First Pari passu charge over entire current assets of the company, both present and future.

¢) First pari passu charge on Hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the borrower.

B) The Working capital limit taken from Indusind Bank is secured against following securities
i) Against first Pari passu charge entire current assets of the company, both present and future,

ii) First pari passu charge on Hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the borrower.
i) The working capital limits carry an interest rate ranging 8.70%.
iv) The limit is not utilised as on balance sheet date.

C) The Term Loan taken from HDFC Bank is secured against following securities

i} The term loan from HDFC Bank were secured against first Pari passu charge over current assets, entire movable & immovable fixed assets of the

Jammu project, both present and future.

i) The Term loan carry an interest rate 8.10% P.A

D) There has been no default in repayment of any of the loans or interest thereon as at the end of the year.

E) The Company has registered/satisfied all the charges whereever required with Registrar of Companies within the statutory period.

F) The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken.
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14

Lease Libilities Non-current Current
AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST
PARTICULARS DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022 | DECEMBER 2023 |DECEMBER 2022
Lease Libilities - 32.21 - 82.82
- 32.21| - 82.82}
a) The following is the lease liabilities movement for year ended:
Balance at beginning of the year 115.03 180.12 - -
Additions - - - -
Finance cost incurred during the period (Refer Note 25) 7.52 15.61 - -
Payment of lease liabilites -90.33 -90.70 - -
Derecognition of lease liability -32.21 -
Balance at end of the year 0.00 | 115.03 | - - |
Non Current - 32.21 -
Current - 82.82 -
- | 115.03 | - | |
Provisions Non-current Current
AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '318T
PARTICULARS DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022 | DECEMBER 2023 |DECEMBER 2022
{Refer note 24)
Defined benefit liability (net) - Gratuity 63.93 49.38 7.46 6.08
Other employee obligations - Leave encashment 18.83 13.76 2.23 1.91
82.76 | 63.14 | 9.69 | 7.99 |




15 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax arising from temporary differences
As at beginning of the year 68.55 ’ 101.62
Adjustment during the year 464.13 -33.07

Total l 532.68 | 68.55 |




(A in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS
AS AT

31ST DECEMBER
2022

AS AT
31ST DECEMBER 2023

16 Trade payables
Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterpr {as per the intimation received from )
i) Principal amount dus to suppliers under MSMED Act 172 57.77
it} Interest acerued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount - -
iy Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyorwd
appointed day during the year
iv} Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act
v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the sucteeding years, until such date when the
v) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act
towards payments already made -
vi} Interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year -
vii) The amount of further interest remaining due and -
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when ’ -
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small -

e

Othier trade payables 1,5468.33 93.68
TOTAL 1 1,648.05 | 1,051,46 |

Notes:
Disclosure with respect to related party transactions is given in note 34
31-12.2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

nbitled Dues | Not D ,
Particulars v ues | NotDue "”i:':" Tl savess | 23Years More than 3 Years Total

i. MSME - - 1.72 - - - 172
ii.Others . 312.66 - 1,227.12 5.85 - 0.70, 1,546.33

!iiivDisputed duss- MSME - - - - . N N
!iv,Disputed dues- Others - - - -

31-12-2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

i D D
Particulars Unbilled Dues | Not Due Laei:::n 1 12 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Years Total

iMSME - - 57.77 - - - 57.76
ii.Others 221.29 - 771.29 0.41 0.70 - 993.68
iii.Disputed dues- MSME - B -] - - -

jv.Disputed dues- Others R - - . N .
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Other financial liabiiities Non-current Current
AS AT “31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST AS AT '31ST
PARTICULARS DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022 | DECEMBER 2023 | DECEMBER 2022
Security Received From Transporters 5
- - 8. “
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 70.42 58.92

78.92 | 58.92 |




18

19

20

PARTICULARS As At As At
31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31 DECEMBER 2022

Other Current liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable 821.77 85.38
Advances from customers and others 3.38 216.02
TOTAL | 825.15 | 301.40 |
Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for current tax
As per last balance sheet 744.02 567.55
Add:- Provision for Current Year 825.24 1,685.74
Less:-Amount adjusted during the year -31.24 33.84
Less:-Set off against Taxes paid/Mat credit -1,284.10 -1,543.11
Provision for current tax ( Net ) | 253.93 | 744.02 |
TOTAL | 253.93 | 744.02 |

PARTICULARS As At As At
31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 DECEMBER 2022
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 19,681.81 22,735.70
Sale of Solar Power 265.30 -
| 19,947.11 22,735.70 |
Other operating revenue
Export Incentive 19.36 37.99
Scrap Sales 44.57 40.01
| 63.93 78.00 |

TOTAL INCOME | 20,011.04 | 22,813.70 |




A)

B)

C)

Disclosure on revenue pursuant to ind AS 115- Revenue from contract with customers:

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Gross revenue/Contracted price ' 19,685.53 22,738.17
Adjustments:

Sales return -3.72 -3.47
Revenue as per Statement of Profit and Loss ! 19,681.81 | 22,735.70 |
Disclosure of disaggregated revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on geographical segme

Revenue from customers outside India 2,373.74 ' 5,916.49
Revenue from customers within India 17,308.07 16,819.21
Revenue as per the Statement of Profit and Loss L 19,681.81 | 22,735.70 |

Contract balances:
The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:




Receivables
Trade receivables 1,287.88 6,243.98
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss - -

1,287.88| - 6,243.98 |
Contract liabilities
Advance from Customers 1.29 213.66
1.29 | 213.66 |

D) Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract
liabilities are on account of the advance payment received from customer for which performance obligation has not yet
been completed.

The performance obligation is satisfied when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customers based on th
contractual terms. The Group does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods ¢
for a shorter duration. Further, there are no contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to
which transaction price has been allocated.

Payment terms with customers vary depending upon the contractual terms of each contract and generally falls in the range
to 120 days from the completion of performance obligation.

There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.
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22

23

Other income

Interest On Fixed Deposit Receipts 360.82 175.76
Interest Received on Electricity Security 3.73 297
Net Gain in Foreign Currency Transactions -15.87 390.22
Profit on Sale of Fixed assets - -1.48
Profir on Sale of Transformer 5.64
Unwinding of interest on security deposit 3.17 2.42
Gain on Derecognition of Financial instrument _ 8.07 -
TOTAL : | 365.56 569.89 |
Cost of material consumed
Raw material and packing material consumed
Inventories at Beginning of the Year 1,489.09 1,169.22
Add : Purchases during the year (Net) 11,006.01 12,510.39
12,495.10 13,669.62
Less : Sale of Raw material 66.30 648.18
Less : Inventories at the end of the year _ 1,731.68 1,489.09
Consumed | 10,707.12 11,532.34 |
Packing Material Consumed - -
TOTAL , | 10,707.12 | 11,532.34 |
Changes in Inventories of finished goods; stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
AS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR v
Finished Goods 0.75 7.30
Finished Goods-in Transit 208.94 594.57
Semi Finished Goods 33.50 22.20
| 243.18 | 624.07 |
AS AT THE CLOSING OF THE YEAR
Finished Goods 130.59 0.75
Finished Goods-in Transit 320.52 208.94
Semi Finished Goods - 33.50
| 451.11 | 243.18 |
NET | -207.92 | 380.88 |




24 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages * 751.26 £84.58
Employer’s contribution to provident and other funds 16.49 14.81
Staff welfare expenses 23.99 23.88
TOTAL 7 _ | 791.74 | 723.27 |
* Managerial Remuneration paid to Directors 180.00 171.00

Employee benefits
| Defined contribution plans
Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under:
Employer’s contribution to provident and other funds 16.49 14.81

Il Defined benefit plans :
The Company operates a gratuity plan wherein
every employee is entitled to the benefit. Gratuity is
payable to all eligible employees of the Company on
retirement, separation, death or permanent
disablement, in terms of the provisions of the
Payment of Gratuity Act.
The following table sets out the status of the gratuity
plan as required under Ind AS 18 - Employee
Benefits as at 31 December 2022, 31 December
2023 : : '

i. Changes in present value are as follows:

Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 55.46 40.42
Interest cost 4.13 2.66
Current service cost 8.46 ] 5.06
Benefits settled . - -6.49
Actuarial loss/(gain) 3.35 4.81

Balance at the end of the year 71.39 55.46




ii. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31ST DECEMBER 2022
Current service cost 8.46 ’ 5.06
Interest cost _ 4.13 2.66
Liability taken of transferred employees from holding company
Total 12.59 7.72 )
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31ST DECEMBER 2022
Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening - -
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO -3.35 -4.81
Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on Asset - -
Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) for the year -3.35 -4.81 |
Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31ST DECEMBER 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation 71.39 ) 55.46
Fair value of plan assets
Net assets/(liability) recognized in balance sheet as provision -71.39 -55.46
Bifurcation of closing net liability at the end of year 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31ST DECEMBER 2022
Current 7.46 6.08
Non-Current 63.93 49.38
iii.Actuarial assumptions
a) Economic assumptions
Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31ST DECEMBER 2022
i} Discounting rate 7.3%% 0.08
iiy Future salary increase 6.00% 0.06




b) Demographic assumption

Particulars

' 31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December, 2022

i} Retirement age (years)

iy Mortality table

iiiy Ages
Up to 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

58.00

100% Of IALM(2012-14) 100% Of IALM(2012-14)

Withdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal rate (%)

3 - 3.00
2 2.00
1 1.00

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present Value obligation at the end of the period
Impact due to increase of 0.5%

Impact due to decrease of 0.5%

Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Vaiue obligation at the end of the period
Impact due to increase of 0.5%

Impact due to decrease of 0.5%

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Risk associated:
Investment risk
Interest risk (discount rate risk)

discount rate

71.39 55.46
-3.85 -2.99
4.22 3.27
71.39 55.46
4.14 3.30
-3.92 -3.04

Mortality risk

Salary risk increases will

Withdrawls

The following payments are maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligations in future years:

Year 1 31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December , 2022
Oto 1 year 7.46 6.08
1to 2 year 2.13 0.87
2 to 3 year 1.17 . 3.40
3to4year 1.46 0.83
4 to 5 year 1.16 0.99
5to 6 year , 1.50 0.81
R ——— e 56824 . . 42.48




lll. Compensated absences (Other benefits)

The Company recognises the compensated
absences expenses in the Statement of Profit and
Loss based on actuarial valuation.

Actuarial valuation of compensated absences has
been performed by an independent actuary using
the following assumptions:

i. Changes in present value are as follows:

Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December , 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 15.67 13.25
Add: Interest cost 1.17 0.71
Add: Current service cost 3.61 1.74
Less: Benefits paid - -1.26
Add: Net actuarial gain/loss during the year 0.61 1.22
Balance at the end of the year 21.06 | 15.67 |
it. Change in the fair value of plan assets:
The scheme does not have any assets as at the
valuation date to meet the compensated absence
liability.
iil. Amount recognised in the balance sheet

31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December, 2022

Particulars

Present value of defined benefit obligation 21.06 15.67
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net assets/(liability) recognized in balance sheet as provision -21.06 -15.67
iv. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31 December, 2022
Current service cost 3.61 1.74
Interest on defined benefit obligation 1.17 0.71
Net actuarial gain/loss in the year 0.61 1.22
Total 5.38 3.68




Actuarial assumptions
a) Economic assumptions

Particuiars

31ST DECEMBER 2023

31 December, 2022

i) Discounting rate
i) Future salary increase*

*The estimates of future salary increases
considered in the actuarial valuation take into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

b) Demographic assumption

0.08
0.06

Particulars

31ST DECEMBER 2023

31 December, 2022

i) Retirement age (years)

i) Mortality table

58

100% of IALM(2012-14)

58.00

100% of IALM(2012-14)

iii) Ages Withdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal rate (%)
Up to 30 years 3 3
From 31 to 44 years 2 2
Above 44 years 1 1

Particulars 31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December, 2022

Bifurcation of closing net liability '

Current 2.23 1.91

Non-current 18.83 13.76




A)
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present Value obligation at the end of the period
Impact due to increase of 0.5%

Impact due to decrease of 0.5%

Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Value obligation at the end of the period
Impact due to increase of 0.5%

Impact due to decrease of 0.5%

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding al other assumptions constant.

Risk associated:

Investment risk

Interest risk (discount rate risk)
Mortality risk

Salary risk

Withdrawls

21.06 15.67
-1.17 ~0.83
1.27 0.90
21.06 15.67
1.28 0.91
-1.18 -0.84

funded then
discount rate
and diability
increases will
withdrawls

The following payments are maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligations in future years:

Year 31ST DECEMBER 2023 | 31 December, 2022
0to 1 year 2.23 1.91
110 2 year 0.82 0.27
2to 3year 0.35 1.59
3to 4 year 0.49 0.22
410 5 year 0.34 0.27
5 to 6 year 0.85 0.21
6 year onwards 15.98 11.19
Finance costs
Intereston :
- Term loans(Including buyers credit) 109.63 133.74
- Working capital Loans 0.30 0.07
- Lease Liability 7.52 15.61
- Others 278 3.31
TOTAL [ 120.22 | 152.73 |
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Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3(a))
Depreciation of property, Solar _

Depreciation of right-of-use asset (Refer Note 3(b))

Other expenses

Manufacturing Expenses
Power and Fuel

Stores & Spares Consumed
Repairs & Maintenance

- Plant & Machinery

- Building

- Miscellaneous

Bank Charges

Rent, Rates & Taxes

Printing & Stationery

Communication Expenses

Conveyance & Travelling

Insurance

Legal & Professional Charges

General Office & Misc. Expenses
Irrecoverable balance written off
Computer Expenses

Vehicle Running & Maintenance
Auditors' Remuneration

- As Audit Fees

- For Tax Audit and Income Tax Matters
- For Other Services

Director Sitting Fee

Freight Outward & Octroi Charges
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

TOTAL

804.11 747.52
89.30 -
67.75 71.50

961.16 | 819.02 |

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31ST DECEMBER 2023 31 December , 2022

797.61 747.76
33.37 28.26
75.53 71.82
42.59 25.71
37.86 14.18
15.75 16.46
17.31 17.37
2.41 245
3.89 3.79
52.55 24.28
38.17 50.30
22.56 64.81
49.04 34.59
- 69.89
1.61 0.95
24.39 26.65
275 275
0.35 0.33
0.00 1.49
7.50 0.50
777.65 389.18

109.21 75.33

2,112.10 |

1,668.85 |




28 Income Taxes
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2623 and 31 December 2022 are:
A. Statement of profit and lass:

(i) Profit & lass section

[ 31-12-2023 31-12-2022]

Current income tax charge 825.24 1.665.74

MAT credit entitiement - -

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 36.18 75.26

Deferred tax:

Retating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 464.97 . -32.22

Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit & loss 1,326,39 1,728.78
(it} OCl Section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Net loss#{gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans -0.84 -0.68

income tax charged to OCI -0.84 -0.86

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for FY ended 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022:

[ 31-12-2023 31-12-2022)
Aceounting profit before tax from continuing operations 5,401.08 6,517.28
Profiti(loss) before-tax from a discontinued operation . - -
Accounting profit before income tax 5,401.08 6,517.29
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 December 2022:25.17%) 1,359.34 1,640.27
Expenses not aliowed as deduction 16.51 17.59
Adjustmens in respect of current income tax of previous year 36.18 75.26
Impact of change in provisional and actual tax liabllity -85.64 -4.35
At the effective income tax rate of 24.56 %({31 December 2022; 26.52%) 1,326.39 1,728.78
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and lass 1,326.39 1,728.78
ncome tax attributable to a discontinued operation . -
1,326.38 1,728.78
C. Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Balante sheet St of profit and loss
31-12-2023 31:42:2022 31-12-2023 31-12-2022
Deferred tax arising from temporary differances -532.68 -68.55 464.97 -32.22
Tax (income)/expense during the period recogrised in OC! -0.84 -0.85
Deferred tax expense/(income) 464,13 -33.07
Net deferred tax assets/(Habilities) -532.68 -68.55 - .
Reflected in the balance shest as foliows:
[ 31-12-2023 31-12-2022]
Deferred tax assets {continuing operations) : - -
Deferred tax liabilities {continuing operations) -532.68 -68.55
Deferred tax Hablilities, net - -532.68 -58.55
Reconcifiation of deferred tax Habilities (net):
[ 31-12-2023 31-12-2022]
Opening balance €8.55 101.62
Tax (income)lexpense during the period recognised in Profit & loss 464.97 ~32.22
Tax (income)/expense during the period recegnised in OCI -0.84 -0.86

Discontinued operation - -
Closing balance 532,68 . 68,55




29 Fair values measurements

(Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
(i) Financial instruments by category

Particulars 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
FVTOCI Amortised cost |FVTOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Other financial assets (non current) - 80.77 - 102.64
Trade receivables - 1,287.88 - 6,243.98
Cash and cash equivalents - 2,205.06 - 4,341.38
Other bank balance - 5,690.37 - 1,416.33
Other financial assets (current) - 220.54 - 118.34
Total financial assets 0 9,484.63 - 12,222.68
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (non current) - 1,002.82 - 2,368.93
Borrowings {current) ’ - 1,479.71 - 2,894.86
Lease Liabilities(non current) - 32.21
Lease Liabilities(current) - 82.82
Trade payables - 1,548.05 - 1,051.46
Other financial liabilities - 78.92 - 58.92
Total financial liabilities 0 4,109.51 - 6,489.19

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

For cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, short term borrowing, trade payables and other current
financial liabilities the management assessed that their fair value is approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments. ,

The fair values of the Company’s long-term interest free security deposits are determined by applying discounted cash flows
{‘DCF’) method, using discount rate that reflects the market borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty
credit risk.




30 Components of other comprehensive income (OCI)

(Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

During the year ended 31 December 2023

Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax effect

During the year ended 31 December 2022

Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

| Retained Earnings l Total |
-3.35 -3.35
-0.84 -0.84
-2.50 -2.50
| Retained Earnings Total |
-3.40 -3.40
-0.86 -0.86
-2.54 -2.54




31 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabifities, other than derivatives, comprise , trade and other payables, security deposits, employee liabifities. The Company’s principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits/ foan that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s managusment oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior
management is supported by a Risk Management Compliance Board that advises on financial rigks and the appropriate finsncial risk governance framework for the

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuste because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include , deposits.
the sensitivity analyses of the above mentioned risk in the following sections refate to the pasition as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying valugs of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-
financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations. The analysis for contingent llabilities is prowided in Note 24,

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.
A Inferest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposu
Increase/ Effect on profit
decrease in before tax
basis points

{" Rsin Lacs)
31-Dec-23
INR +0.5% -12.41
INR -0.5% 12.41
31-Dec-22
INR +0.5% (26.32)

INR - 0.5% 26.32

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a signiticantly higher
volatility than in prior years.

B. Foreign currency sensitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in exchange rates. Foreign currency risk senstivity
is the impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary sssets and liabilities. The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in USD and EURD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,

Change in Effect on profit
Foreign before tax
currency rate

{ Rs in Lacs)

31-Dec-23 5% -123.65
5% 123.65
31-Dec-22 5% -261.13
-5% 261.13

The movement in the pre-tax effect on profit and loss is a result of a change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments not designated in a hedge relationship and
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in INR, where the functional currency of the entity is a currency other than INR.

Il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing attivities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

Credit risk from investments with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Treasury functions in accordance with the management policies. Investments of
surplus funds are only made with approved counterparties who meet the appropriate rating and/or other criteria, and are only made within approved limits. The

management continually re-assess the Company's policy and update as required. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial
loss through counterparty failure.

The mazimum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by the carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date




A. Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to c credit risk managi
Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit review and individual eredit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

At the year end the Company does not have any significant concentrations of bad debt risk other than that disclosed in note 8.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clignts. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disciosed in Note 29. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent
markets.

B. Financial instruments and cash deposifs

Credit risk from batances with banks and financial institutions is ged by the Company’s y department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties.

1. Liquidity risk
The Company’s abjective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 1 year 1to 5 years > § years Total
Year ended
31-Dec-23
Borrowings 1,479.71 1,602.82 - 2,482.54
Lease liabilities ' - - - -
Trade payables 1,548.05 - - 1,548.05
Other financial liabilities 78.92 - - 78.92
3,10669 1,002.82 - 4,109.51
Year ended
31-Dec-22
Borrowings 2,834.86 2,368.93 - 5,263.80
Lease liabilities 90.33 33.43 - 123.76
Trade payables 1,051.46 - - 1,051.46
Other financial liabilities ) 58.92 - - 58.92
4,095.57 2,402.36 - 6,497.93

IV, Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular indastry.




32 Capital Management

The objective of the Company’s capital management structure is to ensure that there remains sufficient liquidity within the Company to carry out committed
work programme requirements. The Company monitors the long term cash flow requirements of the business in order to assess the requirement for changes
to the capital structure to meet that objective and to maintain flexibility.

31 Detember 2023 31 December 2022
Total Liabilities 5,813.72 7,674.30
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,205.06 4,341.38
Net debts 3,608.65 3,332,91
Total equity 17,736.89 13,664.70
Gearing ratio (%) 20.3%)| - 24.4%

33 Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

The Company has no outstanding derivative instrument at the year end. The amount of foreign currency exposure that are not hedged by derivative
instruments or otherwise are as under -

Particulars

Liabilities

Indusind BANK (CAPEX)
Interest Payable

Trade Payable

Trade Payable

Advance from Customers
Assets

Trade Receivable

HDFC Bank (EEFC A/c)

Currency

EURO
EURO
usb
EURC
usp

usb
usb

-Cheques/Remittance in transit USD

31 December 2023 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
Foreign Currency (In {Rs in Lacs) Foreign Currency {Rs in Lacs)
Lacs) (In Lacs)

26.87 2,472.54 59.24 5,222.07

0.76 70.37 0.62 55.02

6.53 542.82 6.85 566.95

- - 2.55 210.94

8.91 740.87 38.87 3,217.93

0.62 51.68 12.89 1,066.90




34 Retated party disclosures
In accordance with the Accounting Standards (Ind AS-24) on Related Party Disclosures, where control exists and where key management personinel are able to exercise significant influe

A}

i} Holding / Fellow Subsidiaries®
M/s Varun Beverages Ltd Holding
M/s Varun Beverages {Nepal} Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
M/s Varun Beverages Lanka (Private)} Limited Fellow Subsidiary
M/s Varun Beverages Moraceo SA Fellow Subsidiary
M/s Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited; Fellow Subsidiary
M/s Varun Beverages {Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited Fellow Subsidiary
M/s Varun Beverages DMC, Dubai Fetlow Subsidiary
M/s Ole Spring Bottler Pyt. Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary
M/s Devyani Food industries Kenya Limited Subsidiary of ulth parent AT

i) Entities with joint control or significant influence over the entity *
Shri NSMM Charitabie And Welfare Trust bi s and their relatives having control.

i) Key Managerial Personnel*
@ Mr. Vivek Gupta Whole time diractor
@ Mr. Praveen Jain Chief Financial Officer (upto 12/08/3022)
* With whom the company has transactions during the current year and/ar previous year.

B} Transactions during the year
Deseription Relationship Entities with joint control or sigr Entities with joint control or sign

31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22

Purchase Of Rm/Pm
M/S Varun Beverages Ltd Holding 608.31 1,273.79
Reimbursemnent Of Taxes & Expenses Paid To
M/S Varun Beverages Ltd Holding - " 0.36
Remuneration paid to KMP
Mr. Vivek Gupta Key Managerial Personnel 130.00 171.00
Mr. Praveen Jain Key Managerial Personnel - 9.12
Sale of Finished goods (Net of GST & inculsive of freight & insurance in case of Exports )
M/S Varun Beverages Lid Holding 17,694.79 16,510.63
M/s Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 1,093.22 5,391.66
M/s Varun Beverages Moroceo SA Fellow Subsidiary 571.29 852.45
M/s Varun Beversges (Zambia) Ltd Feltow Subsidiary 197.96 £86.69
M/s Varun Beverages {Lanka) Pvt Ltd Feltow Subsidiary 505.15 539.27
M/s Varun Beverages Nepat Pvt. Ltd., Nawalprasi Nepal Feliow Subsidiary 1810 26.20
M/s Ole Springs Bottiers {Pvt.) Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary 3751 -
M/s Varun Beverages DMC, Dubai Feltow Subsidiary - 250.25
M/s Devyani Food Industries Kenya Limited Fellow Subsidiary 2833 37.76

¢} Balantes outstanding as at the year end

31 Dec 2023 (Negative 31 Dec 2022 {Negative

Description ind# credit bal ) ind} credit bal )
Mr. Vivek Gupta Key Managerial Personnel 9.95 9.88
M/S Varun Beverages Ltd Holding 781.87 - 3,026.06
M/s Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 292.38 1,928.23
M/s Varun Beverages Morotco SA Feliow Subsidiary 3204 25493
M/s Varun Beverages {Zambia) Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 20.55 481.68
M/s Varun Beverages {Lanka) Pvt Ltd Feltow Subsidiary 67.70 208.11
Varun Beverages Nepal Pvt, Ltd., Nawalprasi Nepal Fellow Subsidiary 439 5.15
M/s Varun Beverages DMC, Dubai Fellow Subsidiary - 7842
M/s Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt.) Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary - -
M/s Devyani Food Industries Kenya Limited Fetlow Subsidiary - .

b X g the Beriad v reaect 5F e o B it "




35 Leases

A. Leases where the Company is a lessee
The Company has taken buildings on lease for Factory & Wharshouse. Lease payments are generally fixed as defined in agreement and average lease termis 5
years. The lease is, however, terminated during the year as the company is shifting its factory to other location.

i, Right-of-use asset

Right-of-use assets related to leased properties that do not meet the definition of investment property are presented on face of balance sheet below property, plant

] 31-12-2023 31-12-2022]
Opening balance (refer note 3B) 92.03 163.53
Additions - -
Depreciation -67.75 -71.50
Derecognition of ROU . -24.28 -
Closing balance i -0.00 , 92.03 |
ii. For lease liabilities refer note 13
iii. Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
31.12-2023 31-12-2022
Note
Depreciation 26 67.75 71.50
Interest on lease liabilities 25 7.52 15.61
Expense refating to short term lease/variable lease payments not included in the me 27 8.62 2.00
Net impact on statement of profit and loss . | 83.88 89.11 |
iv. Amounts recognised in the cash flow statement
For the year ended For the year ended
31-12-2023 31-12-2022]
Payment for finance cost 752 15.61
Principal repayments 82.82 75.09
Total cash outflows I 90.33 90.70 l

v. Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment, vehicles & others and all lzases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basi

vi. The average effective interest rate contracted approximates 10.00 per cent.




36 Financial Ratios

Ratio Numerator D L 31-12-2023}  31-12-2022{% change for variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.07 2.79 10.00
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.14 0.39 -63.67 {Increase in total Equity
Earnings for debt service = Net profit after |Debt service = Inferest &
taxes + Non-cash operating Lease Payments + Principal
Debt Service Coverage ratio expenses+interest Repayments 25.38 25.27 0.44
Net Profits after taxes — Preference
Return on Equity ratio Dividend Average Shareholder’s Equity 0.26 0.42 -38.21 |Decrease in Profit
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 5.68 7.70 -26.30 |Decrease in COGS
Net credit sales = Gross credit sales - sales
Trade Raceivable Turnover Ratio [return Average Trade Regeivable 5.31 5.24 141
Net credit purchases = Gross credit
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio purchases - purchase return Average Trade Payables 8.85 13.24 -33.19 |Decrease in Purchase
Working capital = Cutrent
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales return assets — Current liahilities 2.30 2.48 -7.08
Net sales = Total sales - sales
Net Profit ratio Net Profit return 0.20 0.21 -3.04
Capital Employed = Tangible
Net Worth + Total Debt +
Return on Capital Employed Earnings before interast and taxes Deferrad Tax Liability 0.27 0.35 -23.98
Return on Investment Earnings before interast and taxes Average tota! asssts 0.25 0.37 -33.51 |Decrease in EBIT

* Average= (Opening+Closing)/2




37 Segment information:
‘The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Plastic (PP) Closures & Sofar Power Generation. There are, therefore, two separate reportable segments within the company as
defined by Ind As -108 "Operating Segments” issued by ICAL These operating segments are reviewsd by chief operating decision maker - {CODM’). Segment information has been
prepared in conformity with the aceounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the finaneial statéments of the company.

{Amaunt in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the period ended For the period ended
‘315t December 2023 '31st December 2022
Particulars P:s;;;:z Solar Total Plastic Cap & Closure {Solar Total
Revenue
Revenue from customers 19,745.74 265.30 20,011.04 22,813.70 - 22,813.70
Total Revenue 19,745.74 265.30 20,011.04 22,813.70 | - 22,813.70
Result
i3 Result 4,635.59 159.33 4,794.92 5,924.37
Finance cost 120.22 152.73
Finance income 360.82 175.76
Non opersting intome 365.56 568.89
Profit Before Tax 5,401.08 6,517.29
Other Segs items
Deprecistion and amortization exp i 871.88 _88.30 961.16 819.02 819.02
Impairment of non-financial assats - - -
Other Information
22 Assats 18,438.22 2,507.32 21,245.55 16,997.61 16,997.61
Unallocated Assets - i 2,205.06 4,341.38
Total Assets . 23,550.51 21,338.99
g Liabilities 23,550.61 2,507.32 23,550.61 21,338.99 - 21,338.99
Total Liabilities : 23,550.61 - 21,338.99
As part of Secondary reporting, the cornpany reports following geographical information
{Amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
Paerticulars 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Revenue from customers outside India , 2,393.10 5,954.49
Revenue from customers within India 17,617.93 16,859.21
Total 20,011.04 22,813.70




a)

OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

38 .Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars 31 Decerrsber 2023 31 December 2022
®) ()

Contingent liabilities:
In respect of TDS defauits {As per 26AS5 Statement).
Capital commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and nut provided for {net of advances) 4,179.86
Letters of Credit epsred in favour of inland/uversaas suppliers 102.40
4,132.26

39 In the opinion of the Management current assets, loans and advan:es have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they
are stated except where indicated otherwise.

40 The Company is engaged in manufaciuring of Plastic (PP) Cioswes The Company is masnagad organizationally as a unified entity with various functional heads repurting to the
top management and is not organized along product lings. There are therefore, no separate segments within the company as defined by Ind As -108 (Segmental Repoiting)
issued by ICAL

41 The company is required to form a commitiee on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of Campanies Act 2013 and required to spend 2% of its average net
profits during the three immediately preceding financial years. Relevant informalion is given hereunder:

31 Decgwsher 2023 31 December 2022
Amount requited to be spent for the year on CSR activities as per section 135({5} of companies Act 2013 96.30 45.35
Carry forward fiom previous year 12.91 29.98
Grass amount required to be spent 109.21 75.33
Amount spent during the year 43.67 62.42
Unspent amount/{Pre-spent) 65.54 12.91

42 Value of imported/indigenous raw material and packing material consumed and the percestage of each to total conswmption:-

Particulars % 31.12.2023 % 31.12.2022

RAW MATERIAL & PACKING MATERIAL

- fmported 50.44 Q,683.52 23868 10,227.25

- Indigenous 9.56 11.32 1,303 06
10,707.12 11,532.34

43 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Il

{1) Details of henami property held No pracesdings have besn initiated on or are pending against the entity for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

{ii) Borrowing secured against current assets Enfity has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quartery retuins or
statements of current asssats filed by the entity with banks and financial institutions are in agresment with the books of accounts.

{ifi) Wilful defaulter Enfiy hasn't been deciared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial instifutinn or governraent or any gevernment authority.

(iv) Retationship with struck off companies Entity has no transactions with the comparies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies Entity has complied with the nismber of fayers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi} Compliance with approved scheme(s} of arrangements Entity has not enfered into any schame of arrangement which has an accounting impact on cunent or prev
financial year.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium Entity has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: a. directly or indirectly lerid or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or on
behalf of the group (Ultintate Beneficiaries) or b. provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries Entity has not received any fund from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign enfities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise) that the greup shall: a. directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entifies identified in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the Funding Parly (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or b. provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(viii) Undisclosed income There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
that has ot been recorded in the books of account.

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency Entity has not traded or invested in crypt cuirency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property Bty
or both during the curient or previous year. ?}52:?
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44 Earnings per share (EFS)

Year ended Year ended
31 Derember 2023 31 Decenbrer 2022
Profit/lioss) for the year 5,401.08 6,517.29
Less: Pravision for Ircoine Tax 825.24 1,685.74
Less: ingenmes Tax Adjusirment 36.18 75.28
Less Deferred Tax 464.97 -32.22
Peofitf{Less) attributable to the Equity Sharehodders — (A) . 4,074.70 4,788.51
Basic /Weighted average nurmber of Equity Shares outstanding duriog the year (B) {Bafar pgse-43) 9,95,020.00 9,95,020.00
Nosranal value of Equity Shates {Rs) 10.00 10.00
Basic/Diluted Eatnings per shere {Rs) ~ [A)/(8) 409,51 481.25

In terms of cur repart of sven date anaexed
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S L MG DIRECTOR o

PLACE : Delhi

(DiN:-00051353) DIN:-02745454)

DATED:

i&«\\ %t




